
 

 

Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting 
 

 

 

Workshop: Thursday, February 8, 2018 – 10:00 a.m. 

Meeting: Thursday, February 8, 2018 – 3:00 p.m. 



Roll Call & Establishment of a 
Quorum 



Adoption of Agenda 



 
 

 

Agenda 
Assembly Meeting 

(packet available on website www.aleutianseast.org ) 

 
Date:   Thursday, February 8, 2018 
Time: Workshop: 10:00 a.m.  Meeting: 3:00 p.m. 
 

Location: Sand Point AEB office building and by teleconference in each designated community 
location below: 

King Cove AEB office 
Nelson Lagoon Corp.  
False Pass-city office 

  

Akutan -city office  
Cold Bay Library 
Anchorage office – 3380 C St

All communities will be provided with conference calling information for the designated location in your 
community.  Public comments on agenda items will take place immediately after the adoption of the 
agenda.  The meeting will also be broadcast on KSDP Public Radio. Additional public comments can be 
made at the end of the meeting. 
 
ASSEMBLY MEETING AGENDA 
 
1. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum. 
 
2. Adoption of the Agenda. 
 
3. Community Roll Call and Public Comment on Agenda Items. 
 
4. Minutes.  

 January 11, 2018 Assembly Meeting Minutes. 
    

5. Financial Reports.  
 January, Financial Reports.  
 December, Investment Report.  

 
6. Consent Agenda. 

 Introduction Ordinance 18-06, Records Management. 
 Introduction Ordinance 18-07 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Mayor to negotiate and execute 

assignment, assumption and consent of Tidelands Lease for False Pass Seafoods, LLC, to 
assume the Tidelands Lease Between Bering Pacific Seafoods, LLC and the Aleutians East 
Borough. 

 Introduction Ordinance 18-08 - An Ordinance Authorizing the Mayor to negotiate and execute 
a Tidelands Lease with False Pass Seafoods, LLC for the outfall line to be used to construct a 
False Pass processing facility. 

http://www.aleutianseast.org/
tanderson
Typewritten Text



 

 

 Resolution 18-24, a resolution of the Aleutians East Borough Assembly amending Section 
9.05 of the Aleutians East Borough Employee Handbook.  

 Resolution 18-25, a resolution of the Aleutians East Borough Assembly authorizing a 
salary increase for the Borough Clerk. 

 Resolution 18-26, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly Authorizing a Deed of 
Easement to the City of Akutan for the Akutan Raw Water Transmission Line Project. 

 Resolution 18-27, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly Approving the Projects and 
Initiatives Identified on the Borough Strategic Plan.    

 Resolution 18-28, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly Requesting the Alaska 
Legislature Prioritize Funding for the Continued Service of the AMHS. 

 
7. Public Hearings. 

 Public Hearing Ordinance 18-04, amending Title 40, Chapter 40.05 of the AEB Code of 
Ordinance, adding new section 40.05.105 to provide a platting board. 

 Public Hearing Ordinance 18-05, amending the operating and capital budget for fiscal year 
2018.   
 

8. Ordinances. 
9. Resolutions. 
10. Old Business. 
11. New Business. 
12.  Reports and Updates.  
13. Assembly Comments. 
14. Public Comments. 
15. Next Meeting Date. 
16. Adjournment.  



 

 

Community Roll Call & Public 
Comment on Agenda Items 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text



Minutes 



 

 

  
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Alvin D. Osterback called the Assembly meeting to order by teleconference in each community on 
January 11, 2018 at 3:01 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL   
 
Mayor Alvin D. Osterback  Present 
Chris Babcock  Present 
Carol Foster  Present 
Warren Wilson  Present 
Josephine Shangin  Present 
Paul Gronholdt  Present 
Brenda Wilson  Present 

 Chris Emrich  Present 
  

 Advisory Members: 
 Angela Simpson, Cold Bay  Absent-excused 

Justine Gundersen, Nelson Lagoon  Present 
 

A quorum was present. 
 
Staff Present: 

Roxann Newman, Finance Director 
Tina Anderson, Clerk 
Anne Bailey, Administrator  
Laura Tanis, Communications Director 
Ernie Weiss, Resource Director 
Mary Tesche, Administrator Assistant 
Charlotte Levy, Administrative Assistant  
Emil Mobeck, Maintenance Director 
 

Adoption of the Agenda: 
MOTION  
Paul moved to adopt the agenda with the following amendment:   

 Remove Resolution 18-23 from Consent Agenda, and move to Resolutions. 
 

Second by Carol.  Hearing no objections MOTION CARRIED. 
 

Community Roll Call and Public Comments on Agenda Items: 
The communities of King Cove, Nelson Lagoon, False Pass, Akutan, Sand Point and the Anchorage 
office were participating by teleconference.  Also broadcast over KSDP radio.  

 
City of King Cove Mayor, Henry Mack, said the City of King Cove Council meets on January16th.  He 
plans to bring Resolution 18-23 to his Council requesting they pass the same resolution.  He will also 
include a discussion of letters of support for Duncan Fields for Board of Fisheries and review of 
NPFMC candidates.  Henry Mack also supports salary increases to the longest standing employees, 
the Borough Clerk and Finance Director.   

 
Minutes, December 14, 2017 Assembly Meeting Minutes: 
MOTION 
Carol moved to approve the December 14, 2017 Minutes and second by Chris B. second.  Hearing no 
objections, MOTION CARRIED.   
(Chris Emrich arrived.) 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 

January 11, 2018 

 

2 
 

    
December, Financial Report: 
MOTION 
Carol moved to approve the December Financial Report and second by Josephine.   
 
DISCUSSION 
Administrator said, Fund 22, Other Revenue, $187,500 was received from the City of Akutan through the 
Designated Legislative Grant for Akutan helicopter operations. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Chris B.-yes, Carol-yes, Josephine-yes, Warren-yes, Paul-yes, Chris E.-yes, (Brenda-had not arrived 
yet).  Advisory: Justine-yes.  MOTION CARRIES.  
 
November, Investment Report: In packet. 
Administrator said the Permanent Fund has increased some since last month. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 Resolution 18-21, Assembly selecting and promoting capital projects for the health, safety and welfare 

of its residents. 
 Resolution 18-22, Assembly authorizing the Mayor to negotiate and execute a helicopter services 

amendment with Maritime Helicopters, Inc. to provide helicopter services between the Akutan airport 
on Akun Island and the Community of Akutan.  

 Introduction Ordinance 18-04, amending Title 40, Chapter 40.05 of the AEB Code of Ordinance, 
adding new section 40.05.105 to provide a platting board. 

 Introduction Ordinance 18-05, amending the operating and capital budget for fiscal year 2018.   
 
MOTION 
Paul moved to approve the Consent Agenda and second by Carol. 
 
(Brenda Wilson Arrived) 
 
ROLL CALL 
Paul-yes, Josephine-yes, Chris E.-yes, Brenda-yes, Carol-yes, Chris B.-yes, Warren-yes. Advisory: 
Justine-yes.  MOTON CARRIES. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Public Hearing Ordinance 18-02, adding new Chapter 2.18.010, Borough Administrator. 
MOTION 
Carol moved to adopt Ordinance 18-02 and second by Josephine. 
 
Mayor Osterback opened for Public Hearing.  Hearing none, Public Hearing closed. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Paul asked if there are any changes from the introduction last month. Mayor said no. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Carol-yes, Brenda-yes, Paul-yes, Warren-yes, Chris B.-yes, Josephine-yes, Chris E.-yes.  Advisory: 
Justine-yes.  MOTON CARRIES. 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 

January 11, 2018 

 

3 
 

 
ORDINANCES 
 
RESOLUTIONS. 
 
Resolution 18-23, Assembly in support of changing the transferability of limited entry salmon permits by 
allowing an additional name on the permit.  

MOTION 
Brenda moved to approve Resolution 18-23 and second by Chris E. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Paul asked for a summary from Mayor Osterback. 
 
Mayor Osterback said Resolution 18-23 covers ideas that he put together over a year ago.  The 
Governor requested suggestions to help stabilize small rural communities. He put together a 
proposal on limited entry permits and transferability.  Resolution 18-23 supports allowing an 
additional name on limited entry permits, the first name still owns the permit. The second name on 
permit can go out fishing with the permit holder or without.  It would allow a second skipper to be 
mentored into the fishery to the point he is able to produce and take it to the bank for a loan to 
purchase the permit.  It will also allow the surviving spouse of a permit holder to retain the ability to 
be the first name on the permit and allow a second name to fish the permit.  Currently, state law says 
the survivor can either fish or sell the permit after two years.  Two names on permit would add 
stability and possibly have more local participation in the fishery as some permit holders get older 
and get out, getting more locals into fishery.   
 
When many of us were young, you just needed a $10 fishing license and a boat or skiff to go fishing.  
Now, it is a lot of stress for youth.  Every fishery is about impossible for a young person to buy into.  
Salmon, is limited entry; halibut, individual fishing quota; and state water fishery is open access but 
problems going on.  This may ease some of the stress on young people if they knew there was a 
possibility that they can work with you and eventually buy your fishery operation, becoming part of 
the productive community. 
 
Brenda strongly supports and wants AEB to actively pursue to get this moving forward.  We want to 
keep our communities viable and productive.  Our young people need to have hope to get into 
something.  Permits cost too much, $50,000 to $400,000.  She expressed her concern about permits 
leaving the State of Alaska. She agreed mentoring young people to learn the industry will raise the 
level of hope in our generations to come, male and female. 
 
Paul noted the Mayor will be visiting Juneau soon, to talk to the fisheries commission and to talk to 
our legislature people and everyone is interested on how the state is going to address this issue. 
 
Mayor Osterback suggested bringing Resolution 18-23 to the attention of SWAMC for discussion at 
the March meeting. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Brenda-yes, Carol-yes, Warren-yes, Chris E.-yes, Paul-yes, Chris B.-yes, Josephine-yes. Advisory: 
Justine-yes.  MOTION CARRIES. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion of letters of support for Board of Fisheries and NPFMC candidates: 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 

January 11, 2018 

 

4 
 

Mayor Osterback said this is an update so people can consider who would be good nominations to 
support. 
 
Resource Director, Ernie Weiss reviewed the Governor’s process of nominations on the board of 
Fisheries and NPFMC.  On the Council side the Governor will put forward three names to the 
Secretary of Commerce by March 15. On the Board of Fisheries, the Governor will put one name 
forward, to be determined by legislature.  A list from the Governor’s office, should be available this 
week. One candidate that has reached out for Board of Fish appointment is Duncan Fields of Kodiak.  
He could not foreshadow comments on intercept issue, however, Kodiak and Area “M” are getting 
closer, with similar intercept issues.  On the NPFMC, Chairman Daniel Hull and Andy Mezirow seats 
expire.  
 
Paul said NPFMC appointments will be clearer where the state is leaning next month.  In regards to 
the Board of Fish, Duncan Fields did a lot of work on Kodiak’s comments regarding intercept fishery 
in Kodiak and Cook Inlet.  He doesn’t have any problem supporting someone from Kodiak on salmon 
issues.  After Mayor’s trip to Juneau and Washington, D.C. we will have more information. 

 
REPORTS AND UPDATES (Reports in packet) 
 
Administrator Report: 
 Strategic Plan: The Administrator, Anne Bailey, said the Planning Session was well attended and 

turned out a good product. She and Mary Tesche met with Professional Growth to begin going 
through the strategic initiative, breaking them out into one year goals. On January 29th they will meet 
again with Mayor Osterback and Professional Growth.  By the February 8 Assembly meeting, we will 
have a plan before the Assembly, for approval. 

 
 Sale of hovercraft: The maritime attorney out of Seattle, is currently reviewing the purchase and sale 

agreement, making a lot of changes. Also, working with Keith Whittemore at Hoverlink, on logistics 
for transporting the hovercraft.  
 

 Budget work session: Scheduled on February 28, 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.  The work session will 
coincide with the SWAMC conference, March 1-2. The auditor, Newhouse & Vogler and investors, 
APCM will be available for the budget work session. 

 
 False Pass harbor litigation: The Administrator said AEB and Corps of Engineers (COE) entered into 

a project cooperation agreement, cost share 80% federal, 20% AEB on the False Pass harbor 
project.  Boat harbor was completed in 2009.  Contractor, Kelly Ryan Inc. filed a lawsuit against the 
COE, in litigation for a long time.  Court notified the COE that Kelly Ryan was awarded $20M.  AEB 
would be responsible for 20% of that judgement, which is $4M.  AEB does not have that money 
appropriated.  This dispute had nothing to do with the design, engineering or construction but with the 
COE, on the contractual side.  AEB Attorney, Joe Levesque, and D.C. Lobbyist, Brad Gilman, feel we 
shouldn’t be required to carry this financial burden.  Gilman is working on an amendment to the 
Water Resource Development Act bill to address this issue.  Joe Levesque and Foster Pepper, 
Seattle law firm will review the facts for the case.  While in Washington, D.C. we will meet with the 
Alaska delegation on this issue.  There will be a summary on the dispute between Kelly Ryan and the 
COE in the next Assembly meeting packet. 

 
Justine asked why AEB was identified.  The Administrator said because of the project cooperation 
agreement signed, 80% Army Corps of Engineer, 20% AEB.  Mayor Osterback said 80/20 is 
standard when you’re building breakwaters.  AEB lobbyist, Gilman, is putting together a packet to talk 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 

January 11, 2018 

 

5 
 

with congressional delegation and also the COE.  He noted, this is extraordinary circumstances that 
didn’t have anything to do with the AEB. 

 Travel itinerary:   Mayor Osterback, Laura Tanis, and Anne Bailey will be in Washington, D.C., 
January 20-24; and Mayor Osterback and Anne Bailey will be in Juneau, January 24-26.   

 
Resource Director Report: 
 The Resource Director, Ernie Weiss, said he submitted AEB Resolution 18-20, under NPFMC staff 

tasking for the February NPFMC, requesting them to schedule that action.  Most important issue for 
our area on the February NPFMC meeting is Chinook PSC limit adjustments for trawl.  He will 
advocate that those are raised.  

 A 2018 Gulf of Alaska Pacific cod fishery disaster relief request letter was signed by all the AEB 
municipalities and tribes. Kodiak also submitted one also.  It is going to be a tough year for Pacific 
cod.       

 December 28, AEB winter fisheries meeting. There was a lot of discussion about cod, all allocations 
were reviewed.  Some fishery locations won’t even be open due to the small quota and fish needed 
for incidental catch in other fisheries.   

 Weiss and Charlotte Levy are scheduled to attend Alaska Marine Science Symposium. He hopes to 
network with researchers to get a research project funded for low powered trawl vessel bycatch 
excluder for halibut and Chinook.  There hasn’t been a research project in our area and a lot of 
interest from Commissioner’s office. 

 Submitted comments for Board of Game in support of increasing the bag limit for caribou.  As 
population increases the bag limit will increase.  The only proposal he supported at this time. 

 Involved in the Stellar sea lion issues and will follow through by submitting comments. 
 President Trump is taking action to open many areas for oil & gas leasing on the Outer Continental 

Shelf (OCS), except North Aleutian Basin. 
 
Paul said SWAMC Executive Director, Doug Griffin, will be attending the public hearing on OCS 
proposals on January 23rd in Anchorage, Weiss plans to also.   
 
Communications Director Report: 
 Laura Tanis said there has been a flurry of activity from media that has kept her busy on the King 

Cove Road.  Been working on a document on myth vs. facts about the road issues.   
 Also, working on background related to Resolution 18-23, in packet.  She added Washington State 

allows two people on limited entry permits and will continue to do research.   
 Next In the loop, will have information from the Planning Session, for the rest of the public to get 

informed. 
 
Mayor Osterback reported saying, the communities want to take a more active stand to protect our 
fisheries. He would like to review being shut down for immature salmon.  He suggested reviewing and 
preparing during the winter months, putting information together to be ready to use, if needed. He 
suggested spotlighting why one area gets penalized, and other areas don’t have closures for immature 
salmon.  If an area loses 4-5 fishing periods on sockeye salmon, there is a lot of revenue lost.   
 
Administrator Assistant: 
 Met with Professional Growth Systems twice this week. The strategic plan is starting to take shape 

and will be before the Assembly in February.   
 Cold Bay clinic: applying for a $375,000 Rasmussen grant.  The clinic is also on Resolution 18-21, 

capital projects priority list to the State. 
 Helicopter transported over 13,000 lbs, and 200 plus passengers transported.  Have dealt with 

employee issues.  She will be travelling to Akutan in February with the Administrator. 
 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 

January 11, 2018 

 

6 
 

  
 
ASSEMBLY COMMENTS 
 
Justine supports increases for the two long-time employees, they have done a stellar job. Mayor 
Osterback said they are reviewing.  In December staff members were taking vacation time so not much 
work was accomplished on the review.   
 
Justine asked about OCS areas to be open for oil & gas exploration and development. Weiss answered, 
saying all open except for North Aleutian Basin, and Florida area was later taken off the list.  Shumagin 
area is open. 
 
Chris Babcock asked, what more has to be done on the Nelson Lagoon School before it is turned over to 
Nelson Lagoon Village Council.  Mayor Osterback said the delay is due to the Borough’s 50 year land 
lease, the lands are being held for the future city of Nelson Lagoon.  The State of Alaska and the 
community of Nelson Lagoon are working on a land deal, so should be transferred soon.  The 
Administrator added that we’ve been working with DCCED and Nelson Lagoon Tribal Council for two 
years.  Once the Nelson Lagoon Tribal Council passes a resolution to accept, the state will then transfer 
the deed to the Village Council.  
  
Chris Babcock, asked about the $100,000 AEB grant toward the City of Sand Point airport certification.  
Bailey said the $100,000 grant for the sand building was completed, City of Sand Point Mayor has signed 
off on the project. As far as airport certification, does not know how that is going.   
 
Chris Babcock brought up a concern with King Cove School being without heat during the holiday break.  
He asked about the waste heat system to the school and how there could be no heat in the school. He 
said, if it was colder, the school would have broken pipes.  Mayor Osterback said a company went out to 
assess the heating system, as soon as the School District was made aware of the problem.  The 
Maintenance Director, Emil Mobeck, is working with the School District and assessor. Once assessment 
is complete, the Maintenance Director will receive a report. 
 
Emil Mobeck further explained that Long Technologies is putting together a scope of things that need to 
be done at the King Cove School, along with some of the electrical issues.  He is aware of what is going 
on, but just found out a couple days ago.   
 
Chris Babcock suggested the Maintenance Director visit the communities more than what has occurred 
in the past.  He feels we need to be a little bit more responsible for the AEB owned buildings.  The 
Administrator said at the planning work session, one of the things identified that needs to be done is 
assessment of AEB owned property.  We started the process, and will continue the projects.  We have 
$50,000 to do an assessment for the False Pass School, and $50,000 for the King Cove School 
assessment.  Once property is assessed, and needs identified, the projects will be prioritized and repairs 
completed. 
  
Mayor Osterback said Emil Mobeck just came onboard as Maintenance Director.  In a short amount of 
time, he has been working steady.  We did a walk through at Sand Point School with the Superintendent, 
principal and maintenance personnel.  Mobeck took notes and is following through on maintenance 
needed.  Once we assess outside of building, we will have to address the leaks.   
 
Justine said she received an e-mail from the Maintenance Director requesting a list of people interested 
in working.  Mayor Osterback said the purpose is to get a list of people he can contact to work rather 
than bring in an offsite crew.  It would cut down on expenses of moving people.   
 



Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting Minutes 

January 11, 2018 

 

7 
 

Mayor Osterback said a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the School District and AEB is 
being drafted.  An MOU will make the maintenance program run more smoothly.  When he went through 
the interview process for a new maintenance director he included the Administrator and the 
Superintendent in the process.  He felt it was important that both entities cooperate well together to 
accomplish what needs to get done with the least amount of resistance. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
City of Akutan Mayor, Joe Bereskin said the Akutan city council meets January 23.  Sale of hovercraft 
and the building itself is on the agenda.  He said, the past administration said they would give Akutan the 
building once the hovercraft is sold. Mayor Osterback said Bailey and Tesche will be in Akutan next 
month.   
 
City of King Cove Administrator, Gary Hennigh, acknowledged January 22 land transfer signing event in 
Washington D.C. He is excited and hopes the signing ends in a road.  He will be travelling to Washington 
D.C. with Mayor Henry Mack and Della Trumble for the signing. There is a lot of media attention that 
Laura Tanis has been outstanding in handling and we could not maintain that without Laura’s 
organizational skills.  Mayor Osterback will also be attending the signing. 
 
AEBSD Superintendent, Mike Seifert, said the last week with Emil Mobeck and Mayor Osterback have 
been the most beneficial he has experienced in the five years he’s been with the School District.  Mobeck 
and the Mayor did a walk through at the Sand Point School, leaving with a large list of projects. 
Refreshing to see the support. 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE 
Thursday, February 8, 2018. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
Carol moved to adjourn and second by Josephine.  Hearing no more, the meeting adjourned at 4:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
             
Mayor Alvin D. Osterback    Tina Anderson, Clerk 
 
Date:      



Financial Report 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text
.



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Revenue Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-18

02102118 2:34 PM

Page'1

17-18

YTD Budget
17 -18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt
't7-18 "k of Y-ro

YrD B{g1ce BClgeL

Fund 01 GENERAL FUND

Active R 01-201 INTEREST REVENUE

Active R 01-203 OTHER REVENUE

Active R 01-206 AEBSD Fund Balance Refun

Active R 01-218 AEB RAW FISH TAX

Active R 01-229 Southwest Cities LLC

Active R 01-233 STATE PERS ON-BEHALF
Active R 01-265 STATE RAW FISH TAX

Active R 01-266 STATE EXTRATERRITORIA
Active R 01-267 STATE FISH LANDING TAX

Active R 01-268 State"Loss" Of Raw Fish Tax

Active R 01-270 STATE REVENUE OTHER

Active R 01-276 AEB SCHOOL

Active R 01-277 STATE BOND REBATE

Active R 01-291 PLO-95 PAYMNT lN LIEU O

Active R 01-292 USFWS LANDS

Total Fund 01 GENERAL FUND

$3 200 779 00 $2,722,608.42 $215,174.16

$35,000.00

$50,000.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$2,067,181.00

$101,299 00

$3s,222 00

$0.00

$258,921 00

$0 00

$1,31 1,650.00

$559,000 00

$36,256 00

$1 1 ,312 02

$47,873.73

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$2,093,686.72

$0.00

$5,017.44
$0.00

$315,831 00

$0 00

$ 1 53,1 96.00

$0 00

$0 00

$7,914.73

$26,1 00.00

$0 00

$23,687 98

$2,126.27

$0 00

$478 170 58

$0 00

$0 00

-$26,50s.72

$101,299.00

$30,204.56
$0.00

-$56,910 00

$0 00

$1,158,454 00

$559,000.00

$36,256.00

32.324

95 75%
0 00%

85 06%

0 00%

0.00%

101 28%
0 00%

14 .25o/o

0.00%

121 980/o

0 00%

11 68%

0.00%

0 00%

6e Bb%

$0 00

$0 00

$o oo

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$o oo

$7,655,308.00 $5,349,525.33 $249,188.89 $2,305,782.67

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text
1



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-18

17-18 17 -18

YTD Amt

02t02t18 2 33 PM

Page 1

JANUARY

MTD Amt
17 -18

YTD Balance
% of YTD

YTD B
Fund 01 GENERAL FUND

DEPT 1OO MAYORS OFFICE
Active E 01-100-000-300 SALARIES
Active E 01-'100-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 01-100-000-400 TRAVEL AND pER

Active E 01-100-000-425 TELEPHONE
Active E 01-100-000-475 SUPPLIES
Active E 01-100-000-554 AK LOBBTST

Active E 01-100-000-555 FEDERAL LOBBTS

SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 100 MAYORS OFFTCE

DEPT lOsASSEMBLY
Active E 01-105-000-300 SALARTES

Active E 01-105-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 01-105-000-400 TRAVEL AND pER

Active E 01-105-000-475 SUppLIES
SUBDEPT OOO

Totat DEPT 105 ASSEMBLY
DEPT 150 PLANNING/CLERKS DEPARMENT

Active E 01-150-000-300 SALARTES

Active E 01-150-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFITS
Active E 01-150-000-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 01-150-000-425 TELEPHONE
Active E01-150-000-450POSTAGE/SpEED
Active E 01-150-000-475 SUPPLTES

Active E0'l-150-000-526UTtLtTtES
Active E 01-150-000-530 DUES AND FEES
Active E 01-150-000-650 ELECTTON

SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 150 PLANNTNGiCLERKS
DEPARMENT

DEPT 151 Planning Commission
Active E 01-151-000-300 SALARTES
Active E 01-151-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 01-151-000-380 CONTRACT LABO
Active E 01-151-000-400 TRAVEL AND pER

SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 151 Planning Commission
DEPT 2OO ADMINISTRATION

Active E 01-200-000-300 SALARTES
Active E 01-200-000-350 FRINGE BENEFTTS
Active E01-200-000-3SIENG|NEER|NG
Active E 01-200-000-382 ANCHORAGE OFF|
Active E 01-200-000-400 TRAVEL AND pER

Active E 01-200-000-425 TELEpHONE
Active E01-200-000-450POSTAGE/SpEED
Active E 01-200-000-475 SUppLtES
Active E01-200-000-525RENTAL/LEASE
Active E 01-200-000-530 DUES AND FEES
SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 200 ADMtN|STRAT|ON

$80,364.00

$29,232 00

$36,000.00

$1,500 00

91,000.00

$45,000.00

_q-Zq,60_9,0q
$268,696 00

lzoe,696 oo

$25,000 00

$90,000.00

$40,000 00

$3,000 00

:il-r."9.,
$1s8,000.00

$93,974.00

$34,946 00

$12,500.00

$7,500 00

$1,000.00

$5,000.00

$20,000 00

$5,000 00

- $lg,go._q_gg

_*91xe:e2q e0

$189,920.00

$10,000 00

$500.00

$2s,000 00

$20,000.00

$60,272 01

$22,648.65

$18,731.91

$1 ,168.57

$1 800.97

$24,500.00

$3lqo_g 0q

$166,922 1 1

Staa,sliI

$17,100 00

$77,278.54

$25,349 40

$1,e00.0q

$121 ,627.94- $iil,ini s4

$52,897 88

$22,953.33
$7,851 86

$3,009.42

$474 11

$2,067.84

$7,678.s4

$4,904.65

-* $4:l9g9o
$106,537 63

$6,697 00

$3,1 16 64

$4,582.10

$14 58

$951 55

$7,000.00

$0,qq

_ 9?2.1q1 8r
$22,361 87

$2,400 00

$10,712.19

$200 00

$0.00

- s1131, ie
$i5:31rle

$7,496 81

$3,277 16

$0 00

$457.48

$63.36

sb/J.zJ
$2 333.55

$1,500,00

$0.00

:jl?
$15,801 59

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$20,091 99

$6,583 35

$17,268 09

$331 43

-$800 97

$20,500 00

$_32 90q,9_q
$92, ss3 73

$e2 55t7t

$7,900.00

$12,721 .46

$14,650.60

$1r!_g,g!
93!.1?,q9
$36,372 06

$41 ,076.12

$1 1,992.67

$4,648.14

$4,490 58

$525.89

$2,932 16

$12,321.46
QOA 24

$9i90o:99

_ $82 s61 6g*

$82,561 66

$10,000 00

$500 00

$25,000 00

$20 ooo.qg

75.00%

77.48o/o

52 03%

77 90%
180 10%

54.44%

50 00%

a).tz;t"
62 12%

68 404/o

85 87%

63.37%

_ gg,!1%:

76 98%

1i..sl"i"

qA )oo/^

65 68%
62 810/o

40.13%

47 41%

41.36%

38 39%

98.09%

. !!,gol1:
56 10%

-56r O%"

0.00%
0 00%

0 00%

_i 09i/:

$1 06,537 63

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$55,500.00 $0.00 $0 00 $55,s00 00 0 00%
$55,500.00

$1 77,008 00

$66,438 00

$25,000.00

$0 00

$25,500 00

$7,100 00

$2,500.00

$15,000.00

$23,404.00

$2,500 00

$0 00

$103,457 64

$42,861 30

$0 00

$ 14,476.90

$9,460 46

$3,834.63

$147.67

$9,824.22
$13,461 01

_-_s].oiggq
9198:g-73:g-3
$1 98,s73 83

$0 00

$15,1 13 54

$6,147 26

$0 00

($805.73)

$631 98

$647.87

$147.67

$1,792.48

$2,107.21

$0 00

$73,550 36

$23,576 70

$25,000 00

-$14,476 90

$16,039 54

$3,265 37

$2,352.33

$5,175.78
$9,942.99

$1,450 00

58.45%
64.51%

0 00%

0 00%

3710%
54.01%

5 91%

65 49%
57.5244

42.00%

$55,500.00 0 00%

$344,450.00"ss+a,?so 
oo - _$2_?:782:?9 __$r3e,617.58 57 65%o

$25,782.28 $i3s,6i7-58 
* 

57-iE;1"

tanderson
Typewritten Text
2



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17_18

02102118 2:33 PM

Page 2

17-18 17.18 JANUARY
_ _yI! Egdsgt _ ylq Arnt MrD Amt 

"r, 
Jji"u"" 

,H:[?
DEPT 201 Assistant Administrator
Active E 01-201-000-300 SALARTES
Active E 01-201-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 01-201-OO0-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 0i -201-0OO-425 TELEPHONE
Active E 0't-201-000-475 SUppltES
Active E01-201-000-525RENTAL/LEASE
SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 201 Assistant Administrator
DEPT 250 FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Active E 01-250-000-300 SALARTES
Active E 01-250-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 0'1-250-OOO-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 0i-250-000-425 TELEpHONE
Active E01-250-000-450POSTAGE/SpEED
Active E 01-250-000-475 SUppltES
Active E 01-250-000-526 UTtLtTtES
Active E 01-250-000-550 AUDTT

SUBDEPT OO()

Total DEPT 250 FTNANCE DEPARTMENT
DEPT 650 RESOURCE DEPARTMENT

Active E 01-650-000-300 SALARTES
Active E 01-650-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 01-650-000-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 01-650-000-402 NPFMC Meetings
Active E 01-650-000-403 BOF Meetings
Active E 01-650-000-425 TELEpHONE
Active E 01-650-000-475 SUppltES
Active E01-650-000-525RENTAL/LEASE

SUBDEPT O()O

Total DEPT 650 RESOURCE DEPARTMENT
DEPT 651 COMMUNICATION DIRECTOR

Active E 01-651-01 1-300 SALARTES
Active E 01-65i -01 i -350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 01-651-0i 1-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 01-651-01 1-425 TELEPHONE
Active E 01-65'1-01 1-475 SUppLtES
Active E 01-65i -0'1 1-525 RENTAL/LEASE
Active E01-651-011-532ADVERT|StNG
SUBDEPT 011 PUBLIC INFORMATION

Total DEPT 651 COMMUNTCATTON DTRECTOR
DEPT 7OO PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

Active E 01-700-000-300 SALARTES
Active E 01-700-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 01-700-000-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 01-700-000-425 TELEpHONE
Active E 01-700-000-475 SUppltES
Active E 01-700-000-526 UTtLtTtES
SUBDEPT O()O

Totat DEpT 700 pUBLtC WORKS
DEPARTMENT

$11,464 28 $ss"oib ii
$11,46428 $85,016 21

39.12%

38 29%
83 60%
29 68%
14 E10/

_ !! e]_v:

l?!5%
42.05%

$60,173 86 5s.44%
$16,244.79 69 56%
-$2,845 96 140.66%
$2,158.43 73 02%

$s00 00 50 00%
$459.93 93.87%

$3,624 40 27 51%

:96,!a_4:?!_ 119,!1'1:
$72,759.25 72 42%

$72.759 25 72 42%

$38,571 18 58.33%
$7,932 30 74.79%

$12,675 47 36.62%
$12,232.01 18 45%
$28,000.00 6 67a/o

$826 30 44.910/"

$1,955.36 21 79y"

$3,930 68 55 85%
$105 365 15 47 45%-Sros sos1s q1 q5"/"

$95,863.00
I $31,422 00

$ 1 0, 000.00

$2,000 00

$2,500 00

$8,903 00

sl so,oa8.oo
- -$150"688-0

$135,049.00
i $53,365.00

$7,000.00

$8,000 00

$1,000 00

$7,500.00

$s,000.00

_ q!o,qq9_!q

$266,91 4 00

- -$26qaaoo

$92,571.00

$31,462.00

$20,000.00

$15,000 00

$30,000.00

$1,500 00

$2,500.00

$8,903 00

-.-_-ggr.g_rgqq
$201,936.00

$98,973.00

$34,1 58.00

s15,000.00

$2,400.00

$2,s00 00

$10,0'16 00

__ $15,000.00

,*i!Ii ry7 ry-

$37,500 00
$12,030 80

$8,359 96

$593 53

$789.1 5

_ !1,9q\15
$63,362 1I

1633621e

$7,500 00

$2,305.46

$0.00
$100.s1

$740 56

$817.75

$58,363 00

$19,391 20

$1,640.04
$1 ,406.47
$1 ,7'r0 85

$4,814 25

$74,875.14 $10,258 30
$37120.21 $5,176.18
$9,845.96 $50 00
$5,841.57 $784.43
$500.00 $0 00

$7,040 07 $471.51
$1,375.60 $146 44

___$qq,I0-1,?7 _ - "_ $0 9_g_

$193,302 82 $16,S86 86

Jrss soz az $16,886 86

$s3,999 82 $7.714 26
$23,529.70 $3,364.70
$7,324.53 $2OO.OO

$2,767.99 $74B.OO

$2,000 00 $o oo

$673 70 $100.52
$544.64 $27 66

$4,972.32 $828.72
s95 812 70 $12,983 86

$95,812 70 $12,983 86

$s7,734.32

$16,685.82

$4,672.18

$1,737.56

$431 78

$5,098 02

"_ $il-,511_3-Z-

__$e_2,814 05

$97,874.05

$29,423 56

$9,984 41

$2, 1 99 00

$591 95

$2,8'1 3 67

__$ltlg
$45,126.40

$tslza a,o

$8,247.76

$2,368 46

$367.69

$252 50

$112 92

$849 67

_._911918
__$:?917*:t

$12,677.18

$5,416.66

$2,125.44

$0 00

$72 78

$233.80

_ ,_ qqoq

_$7-rq18 6-3_

$41,238.68

$17,472.18

$10,327 82

$662 44

$2,068.22

$4,917.98

**_$11-8j 63
$77,547 45" 
vt iit [s

58 33%

48.85%
11 lEO/Jt.tJ/o

72 40%

17 27%

50 90%

t o. / o"/a

54.97%
$178,047 00

$64,633.00

$31,024 00

$15,000 00

$1,000 00

$5,000 00

, !2,ry0 qq

$118 657 00

$ir e.oszoo

54.97%

$35,209 44 4552%
$21,039 59 32 18%

$12,801.00 14.66%

$408 05 59.20"/"

$2.186 33 56270/0

$1,886 19 5.69%

$72,873 88 38.03%
$7,s48 68 $72,873.88 saojv"

tanderson
Typewritten Text
3



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-18

17-18 17-'18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt

02t02t18 2 33 PM
page 3

% of YTD
YTD

$2,500.00

$20,000.00
$4,000.00

$1,000 00

91e0r!q0r00
$1 27,500 00- 
$117-60000

$800 000 00

$25,000.00

$20,000.00

17 -',t8

YTD Balance B
DEPT 844 KCAP

Active E 01-844-000-300 SALARTES
Active E 01-844-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 01-844-000-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 01-844-000-475 SUppLtES
Active E01-844-000-603 MATNTENANCE
SUBDEPT OOO

TOTAI DEPT 844 KCAP
DEPT 850 EDUCATION

Active E 01-850-000-700 LOCAL SCHOOL C
Active E 01-850-000-70i SCHOOL SCHOLA
Active E 0t -850-000-756 STUDENT TRAVEL
SUBDEPT OOO

Totat DEpT BS0 EDUCATTON
DEPT 9OO OTHER

Active E 01-900-000-500 EeUtpMENT
Active E 01-900-000-526 UTtLtTtES
Active E 01-900-000-527 Ateutia Crab
Active E 01-900-000-551 LEGAL
Active E 01-900-000-552 TNSURANCE
Active E 01-900-000-600 REpAtRS
Active E 01-900-000-727 BANK FEES
Active E 01-900-000-752 CONTRTBUTTON T
Actave E 01-900-000-753 M|SC EXPENSE
Active E0'1-900-000-757DONAT|ONS
Active E 01-900-000-760 REVENUE SHARTN
Active E 01-900-000-943 WEB SERVTCE
SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 900 OTHER
Total Fund 01 DENERAL FUND

$845,000 00 $400,000.00 $2OO,OOO.OO

$35,000.00

$25,000 00

$58,522.00

$100,000 00

$160,000.00

$5 000 00

$12,000 00

$150,000.00

$96,000.00
$23,500.00

$1 2,900 00

93g.ggg,0g
$707,922 00- 

-$?o?-92200- $.61€230 oo

$845,000 00 g4oo,oo0 o0 $20o.ooo'oo

$167.04

$4,015.42

$46,111 22

$14,539 40

$793.00

$s2.92

$2,203.46
$37,500.00

$21 ,927 11

$0 00

$0 00

-$1r9_s4:00
$129,263.57

-q1r9:g$,
$523,562 22

$445,000 00

s++spoooo

$19,723 74

$1 8,1 45 66

$12,410 78

$s1,915 75

$4,058.39

$936.55
-$3,050 20

$75,000 00

-$31 ,415 38

$1 2,700 00

-$2,889.00

917 :271 55-

$172,856 67

l1?2 s56o?
$1,505,93'1.70

$0.00

$3,519.41

$0 00

$1,080.67

iqlggl qq

$59,591.94-$se"sel 
%

$400,000 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$188.00

$!L!91 jg
$55,'179 86- 
$55J7e 86

$200,000.00

$0 00

$0 00

$2,500.00

$1 6,480.59

$4,000 00

-$80 67

_ q€q!q!
_q9l9s? q6

$67,908.06

$400,000 00

$2s 000 00

920,000.00

0.000/a

17 60%
0 00%

108.07%

54.99%
qa.ii;r"

46 74%

50 00%

0.00%

_-, ryg%-

-_4!:!"/"
47 34%

43.65%

27 42%

78 79%

48.08%

97 46%

81 270/a

125.42%

50.00%

132 72%
45 96%

122 40%

42 43%

$15.276.26

$6,854 34

$46,1 11 .22

$48,084 25

$155,941.61

$4,063 45

$15,050.20

$75,000.00

$127,415.38
$10,800.00

$15,789.00

$12,728.45

ssjj,i r+ 10

ss:sJ I  r 6

$r"08134t??

_ -75 31%

_ 7531%
57.62%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
4



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Revenue Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17_18

02t02t18 2.34 PM
page 2

17-18

YTD Budget
17-18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt
17 -18

YTD Balance
% of YTD

t
Fund 20 GMNT PROGRAMS

Active R20-201 TNTEREST REVENUE
Active R 20-203 OTHER REVENUE
Active R20-204 OPERAING TRANSFER F
Active R20-207 AEB Grant Revenue
Active R 20-209 AEB Grants
Active R20-211 AEB Grant Fy18
Active R20-287KCAP/09-DC_359
Active R 20-426 DCCED/Akutan Harbor Float
Active R 20-499 Cold Bay Airport_Apron&Taxi
Active R 20-503 CDBG-Nelson Lagoon Erosi

Totat Fund 20 9RANT 9ROGRAMS

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$1 ,1 68,000 00

$1,207,000 00

$2,954,000 00

$1,587,088 50

$ 150,602.9'1

$249,449.26

$592 832 88

$7,908,973 55

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00
$21 ,392 13

$0 00

$100,017 26

$'r00,636.04

$222,045 43

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0.00

$o oo

$20,984 70

$0 00

$0 00

$10,844 45

$31 829.1s

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$1 ,1 68,000 00

$1,207,000.00

$2,954,000 00

$1,s65,696 37

$150,602.91

$149,432.00

$492,196 84

$7,686,928 12

0 00%

0 00%

0 0070

0 00%

0 00%

0 00%
1 35%

0.00%

40 10%

16 98%

2 810/o

tanderson
Typewritten Text
5



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-18

17-18 17-18

YTD Amt

02t02t18 2.33 PM

Page 4

JANUARY

MTD Amt
17 -18

YTD Balance
% of YTD

Fund 20 GRANT PROGRAMS

DEPT 426 DCCED/Akutan Harbor Floats
Active E 20-426-000-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 426 DCCED/Akutan Harbor Floats
DEPT 427 Akutan Harbor Contribution

Actrve E 20-427-000-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT OOO

Active E 20-427-209-850 CAp|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant
Total DEPT 427 Akutan Harbor Contribution

DEPT 499 Cold Bay Airport-Apron&Taxiway
Active E 20-499-049-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT 049 DCCED-13-DC-501

Total DEPT 499 Cold Bay Airport-
Apron&Taxiway

DEPT 504 Nelson Lagoon Erosion
Actave E 20-504-208-300 SALARTES
Active E 20-504-208-350 FRTNGE BENEFITS
Active E 20-504-208-380 CONTRACT LABO
Active E 20-504-208-400 TRAVEL AND pER

Active E20-504-208-475SUppLtES
Active E20-504-208-500EeUtpMENT
SUBDEPT 208 CDBG /Nelson Lagoon
Erosion

Active E 20-504-209-850 CAPITAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant

Total DEPT 504 Nelson Lagoon Erosion
DEPT 513 COLD BAY APRON PROJECT

Active E 20-513-000-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT ()OO

Total DEPT 513 COLD BAy APRON PROJECT
DEPT 520 Cold Bay Ctinic
Active E 20-520-000-850 CAp|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT OOO

Active E 20-520-209-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant

Totat DEpT 520 Cotd Bay Ctinic
DEPT 802 CAPITAL - COLD BAY
Active E 20-802-000-850 CAp|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 802 CAP|TAL - COLD BAy
DEPT 8't3 Akutan AirporUClp Trident
Active E 20-813-000-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 813 Akutan AirporUClp Trident
DEPT 814 False Pass Harbor House

Active E 20-814-209-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant

Total DEPT 814 False pass Harbor House
DEPT 831 SAND POINT HARBOR

YTD Bu

$150,602 91 $0.00 $0.00

B

-- $15q602 91_ 0.00%

$150,602.91 0.00%

STSqOOZST 
-O-OO't"

$150,602.91 $0.00 $0.00
$150,602 91

,!?q9.143:6_6
$259,743 66

$5919q8:oq

__$53,088n0,
$312,831.66

$ 1 49,432.00

$149,432 00

$ 1 49,432.00

$376,389 99

$0.00

$24,232.98

$20,920.00

$7,754 49

$ 1 65,535 63

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00 $259,743.66
$0 00

qq,0i9,g1
$6,089 01

sopas ol

- $10,066 69

$1 0,066 69

$10,066 69

$28,728 86

$1 ,516 66

$13,412.78

$10,020 00

$340 1 3

$46,497.61

$0.00

$q99
$0 00

szs-g,7a3 06

$46,998.99

0.00%

0.00%

11 47%

$46,998.99 11 A7r;
$0.00

$0 00

$306,742 65

$139 365 31

$ 130,517.1 1

$130,517 1 1

$347,661 13

-$1,516 66

$10,820.20

$10,900.00

$7,414 36

$ll!,0!B q1

1 95%

6.74%
$0 00 6.74%

$o oo

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$o oo

$0 00

$0.00

6 74%

7.63%
0 00%

EE 
' 

EO/

47.90%
4.394/0

28.09%
$594,83309 $100,516.04

_ $15. I eq i.8 _ _$] 2o.oo
$35 196 58 $120 Oo

soio ozg oz sioo,oto oa

$225,000.00

$0 00 $494,317 05 16 90%

$0.00 $35,076 58 0 34%

$22s,000 00

$225,000.00 $225,00000

$481 ,1 39.00 $0 00

$225,000 00
giTs,ooooo

$35,076.58 0 34%
$Ue,3e5 6J i5 sil;/;

$0 00 100.00%

100.00%

1 o0 0or.

$481,139 00 0 00%
l+er, isg^oo o ooiz"

$2,1 37,000.00 0 oo%

$9,99

$0 00

$0 00
-o-oo

$o oo

$0.00

$0 00

$O OO

$481 ,1 39.00

_$_?,1I_,900,0!
$2,1 37,000 00

$0 00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00 $0 00 $2,1 s7,000 00

$2.6i8J Jgoo

$313,738 96

$31 3,738.96

lsrazaago

_ _il!9,900,9.9
$100,000 00

cj ooT;

0 00%

oooz
0 00%

0 00%

$2,618,139.00

_ $q9 oqq:oo

$60_,-ogo:gg

$60,000 00

$313,738.96

$31 3,738 96

$0 00

$o.oo

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 OO SOo.OOo OO

so oo s60,000 00

$60,000 00 0 00%

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00 $100,000 00

$0.00
$313,738.96

$100 000 00
$100,000.00

-Jiooooooo

$0.00

$0 00

0.00%

$0.00
- - 

j_09-%

0 00%
$0 00 0 00%

0.00%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
6



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17_19

17 -18 17 -18

YTD Amt

02102118 2:33 PM

Page 5

JANUARY

MTD Amt
17-18 % of yrD

Active E 20-831-209-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant

Totat DEpT 831 SAND pOtNT HARBOR
DEPT 862 NELSON LAGOON DOCK

Active E20-862-209-600REpAtRS
SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant

Total DEPT 862 NELSON LAGOON DOCK
DEPT 864 SAND POINT AIRPORT BUILDING

Active E 20-864-209-600 REpAtRS
SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant

Total DEPT 864 SAND pOtNT A|RPORT
BUILDING

DEPT 866 AEB PROJECTS

Active E 20-866-209-506 SURVEYING
Active E 20-866-209-888 pROJECT CONTTN
SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant

Totat DEpT 866 AEB PROJECTS
DEPT 867 KCC Alternative Road

Active E 20-867-000-300 SALARTES
Active E 20-867-000-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 20-867-000-380 CONTRACT LABO
Active E20-867-000-3SIENG|NEER|NG
Active E 20-867-000-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 20-867-000-475 SUppLtES
SUBDEPT OOO

Actrve E 20-867-168-300 SALARTES
Active E 20-867-168-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E20-867-168-33IENG|NEER|NG
Active E 20-867-168-400 IRAVEL AND pER
Active E 20-867-168-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT 1 68 KCAP/09-DC-359

Active E 20-867-209-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT 209 AEB Grant

Total DEPT 867 KCC Alternative Road
DEPT 9OO OTHER

Active E 20-900-000-753 M|SC EXPENSE
Active E 20-900-000-850 CAPITAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT OOO

Totat DEpT gOO OTHER
Total Fund 20 GRANT 9ROGRAMS

_$100,000 00 $IOOrOOO OO

$1_0o.ooo 0o_ srooooo oo
$1oo.oooo0 g10o,0oo.0o

0.00%

9,997"
0 00%

100.00%
$o oo 1oo 0o%

lo oo ioo ooy.

YTD

__- ql_qq.o!! 0q

$100,000.00

- $100"000 oo

_,_$915,246.09
ggl ?r24-6:09
s915,246 00

$8,867 78
-$r,iiq64n 

s7

$0.00

99'09
99 99
$0.00

-Sap|a,.azzB

_9116 ir_q 
19-

$176,378.10

$176,378 10

$0 00

YTD Balance

q16_,12_q 19 :76 gB:!2

-$76,378.10 17638%- 
-$76378 10 va.ia"n

$36,977 40

$36,977.40

$36,977.40

$0.00 _$915 246 00

$9'15,246 00

Ss15,z;6 oo

$0 00
- 

$0-0n
[0 09

$0 00

$!:0.q0!.00
$100,000.00- gloopoo oo

$1 17,'161 48

_ $502,000 00

_ _991?,191_18
$619,161 .48

$0 00

$0 00

$535,463.88

$0 00

$0.00

- -$-9-_0-q$535,463 88

$6,775.00

$0.00
$857,950 00

$5,926.49

$719,657 42

$1,590,308.91

$8,867 78

$525 00

_$11!,7q9!1
$1 1 1 ,234.51- s111234sr

$2,025.00

$8,478.96

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

__ _$,0!_q

910,503 96

$675.00

$58.38

$0.00

$0 00
q?g qq8.7q

$21,392 13

$0 00

$0 00
-$iTBsb-^oe

$0 00

$0.q9
$o:00

$0.00

$116,636.48

$39r,Zgo.+g

_$!g-?.gT!J_

$5r4Bte e2

$6,100 00

-$58.38

$857,950 00

$5,926.49

$698,998 67

$-1's68Biar8
$8,867.78

$8,867.78

v2,lo;744A8

045%

_405" _
17 97%^17sV/;

I SA;h

9.96%

0 00%
0 00%

0 00%

_._ 2 87%

1.35%

0 00%

$o oo

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00 $507,926.97

$150.00 -$2,025 00 0 oo%
$12 98 -$8,478.96 0 OO%

$0.00 $53s,463 88 0 00%
$0 00 $o oo o.OO%

$0.00 $0.00 O Oo%

$0.00 $0.00 o Oo%

$162 98

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00-- -$16re8

$0.00
$0 00

so qb

$0 00

$761 ,300 44 $1 37 1 4038

$0 00 0.00%

$0.00 0 00%
bo.oo o oo/"
$b oo o oox

0 00%* 
l ae;t,

$7,658,673 61 9.03%

$0.00

tanderson
Typewritten Text
7



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Revenue Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-18

02t02t18 2.34 PM
page 3

17-18

YTD Budget
17-18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt
17-18

YTD Balance
% of YTD

Fund 22 OPERATIONS

Active R22-203 OTHER REVENUE
Active R 22-221 COLD BAy TERMTNAL LEA
Active R22-222 COLD BAy TERMTNAL OTH
Active R22-301 HELTCOPTER/TtCKETS
Active R22-302HELtCOPTER/FREtcHT

Totat Fund 22 O9ERATIONS

$0 00

$139,620 00

$0 00

$300,000 00

$95,000 00

$187,500.00

$77,545 54

$0.00

$1 12,898 8s

L!_-9!:L
$405,908 s1

$0.00
$11,792 22

$0 00

$6,478.06

$0 00

$1 82r028

-$1 87,500.00

$62,074.46

$0 00

$1 87,1 01 .1 5

$67,035 88
g-128,7 1t Ag

0 00%

0 00%

37.63%

29 44%
$s34,620 00 75.92%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
8



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure 

G uideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-18

17-18 17-18

YTD Amt

02/02t18 2 33 PM

Page 6

JANUARY

MTD Amt
17-18

YTD Balance
% of YTD

Fund 22 OPERATIONS

DEPT 802 CAPITAL - COLD BAY
Active E 22-802-200-300 SALARTES
Active E 22-802-200-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 22-802-200-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 22-802-200-425 TELEpHONE
Active E 22-802-200-475 SUppLtES
Active E22-802-200-526UTtLtTtES
Active E 22-802-200-576 GAS
Active E 22-802-200-577 FTJEL

SUBDEPT 2OO COLD BAY TERMINAL
Total DEPT 802 CAP|TAL - COLD BAy

DEPT 845 HELICOPTER OPERATIONS
Active E 22-845-300-300 SALARTES
Active E 22-845-300-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 22-845-300-380 CONTRACT LABO
Active E22-845-300-400 TRAVEL AND pER

Active E 22-845-300-425 TELEPHONE
Active E22-845-300-475SUppltES
Active E22-845-300-525RENTAL/LEASE
Active E 22-845-300-526 UTtLtTtES
Active E 22-845-300-552 TNSURANCE
Active E 22-845-300-576 cAS
Active E22-845-300-577FUEL
SUBDEPT 3OO HELICOPTER OPERATIONS
Total DEPT 845 HELTCOPTER OpERATTONS

Totat Fund 22 O4ERATTONS

$84,07s 00

YTD

$27,9s8.00
$3,617.00

$0 00

$4,500 00

$7,500.00

$24,000.00

$1,500.00

$15,000 00

$16,308.88
$1,410 64

$0.00

$2,411 34

$3,329.01

$3,71215
$0 00

$6,718.15

_$33,890 17

$33,890.1 7

$73,1 05.35

$18,297 89

$599,337 28

$0 00

$2,219.77

$54,462 22

$14,452.20

$600.00

$0.00
$6,086.53

,,i18,t? !g
$81 6,998 83

$46.99,8_ !1
$850,889 00

$2,329.84
$201 52

$0 00

$348 18

$81.64

$818 53

$0.00

$0.00
$3lzgl
$3,779.71

$8,475.1 5

$2,390 05

$102,791 .46

$0.00

$149 45

$3,491 31

$2,043.00

$150.00

$0 00

$1,556.43

$6,520 25

-$1 
275611 o-

sizzjozr o

srsi,iT6ei

$1 1 ,649.12
$2,206 36

$0.00

$2,088 66

$4,1 70.99

$20,287.85

$1,500 00

_- $8,281.85
$49,829 38

-$4932S38

$57,414.65

$13,842 1 1

$853,662.72

$5 000.00
-$79.77

$5,537 78

$9,547 80

$7,400.00

$18,200 00

$5,913.47

$101,562 41

L-L8l!l 0e

$1,078,401 09

si ti.ajtoil

EO aaa/JO JJ /O

39 00%

0.00%

53.59%

44.39%

15.47%

0.00%

^ tlJ%_
40.31%

- qo.zl"l"

56 01%

56 93%

41 25%

0 00%

103 73%

90.77%

60.22%
7.50%
0 00%

50 72%

92,23!,
43 11%

43 11%
qi g,g%,

$84,075.00

$ 1 30,520 00

$32,1 40.00

$1,453,000 00

$5,000 00

$2, 1 40 00

$60,000.00

$24,000 00

$8,000.00

$18,200.00

$12,000.00

_-! 1 50-:009,.00

$1,895,000 00_--gf 
rss obo^oo-sGTgCsno

tanderson
Typewritten Text
9



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Revenue Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-18

02t02t18 2.34 PM

Page 4

17-18

YTD Budget
17-18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt
17-18 % ofyrD

YTD Balance
Fund 24 BOND CONSTRUCTTON

Active R24-201 TNTEREST REVENUE
Active R24.203 OTHER REVENUE
Active R24-227COE-HARBORPROJECTS
Active R 24-259 BOND PROCEEDS
Active R 24-270 STATE REVENUE oTHER
Actrve R24-271 STATE BOND REBATE

Totat Fund 24 BOND CONSTRUCTTON

-$22,220 96 o o0%
-$33 275 77 0 oo%

$0 00 0 ooouo

$0 00 0.00%

$0 00 0 00%

_ $q !9, _0.00.%
-$55,496.73 0.oo%

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00
$0.00

$0 00

$22,220.96
$33,275 77

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0 00 $55,496 73

$8,1 18 92

$0.00

$0.00

$o oo

$0 00

$0 00

$8,118.92

tanderson
Typewritten Text
10



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-19

17-18 17-18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt

02102118 2:33 PM

Page 7

% of YTD

Fund 24 BOND CONSTRUCTTON

DEPT 809 Akutan Airport/Grant
Active E 24-809-000-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEpT 809 Akutan AirporUGrant
DEPT 833 FALSE PASS HARBOR

Active E 24-833-OOO-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT ()OO

Totat DEpT 833 FALSE PASS HARBOR
DEPT 839 AKUTAN HARBOR

Active E 24-839-000-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT OOO

Totat DEpT 839 AKUTAN HARBOR
DEPT 9OO OTHER
Active E 24-900-000-380 CONTRACT LABO
Active E 24-900-000-725 BOND TNTEREST
Active E 24-900-000-745 Bond Sale Expense
Active E 24-900-000-850 CAptrAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT ()OO

YTD

* _9y!!!,_4_?
$525,177 42-" w{i,-1?iA2

_ _$!!9,0r3.3e
$339,073 39* 
$5id,otu Je

$2 658 99

$0.00

$400 00

_. _,0-,_0gl1q

0.00%--"o 
ooz

,qq 0o,%

100 00%

$g0g
$0 00

17 -'t8

YTD Balance

$0 00 $525,177 42
$0 00 $525,177 42

$Abin i,$0 00

$400.00
s400.00 $400.00

$338,673.39 0 12%o

$338,673.39 0 12%

$338,673 39 012%

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00 '1 00 00%

$400.00

$2 6s8 99

$400 00

$0 00

$0 00$2,658.99
- szssagg

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0.00

$2,658 99

$2,6s8.99

$26,727 89

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$3,91 5.21

$0.00

$0 00

$0.00

-$26,727 89

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

0 00%
0 00%
0 00%

0 00%

o^00%
Totat DEpT 900 OTHER $0.00

Total Fund 24 BOND CONSTRUCTTON ---*SAOO.bOS*80

- $26n? 3s - - ss,9157- szatzras _$g..e1.5j1
$29,786.88 $4,315.21 $837J22 92 3.44%

-$26,727 89

_ -g%,z_1ao 0 00%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
11



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Revenue Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-19

02/o2t18 2 34 PM
page 5

17-18

YTD Budget
17-18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt
17-18

YTD Balance
% of YTD

Fund 30 BOND FUND

Active R 30-201 TNTEREST REVENUE
Active R 30-203 OTHER REVENUE
Active R 30-204 OPERAT|NG TRANSFER F
Active R 30-259 BOND PROCEEDS

Totat Fund 30 BOND FUND

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
$0.00 $0 00 $0 00 $0 00 0 ooo/o

tanderson
Typewritten Text
12



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 1Z-19

17-18 17 -18

YTD Amt

02102118 2:33 PM

Page 8

JANUARY

MTD Amt
17-18 % ofYTD

Fund 30 BOND FUND
DEPT 9OO OTHER

Active E 30-900-OOO-725 BOND TNTEREST
Active E 30-900-000-726 BOND pRtNCtpAL
Active E 30-900-000-745 Bond Sale Expense
SUBDEPT OOO

Total DEPT 900 OTHER
Total Fund 30 BOND FaJND

YTD

, _ q"9,99-

$0.00

$0 00 $546,814 10

$0 00 $1,375,000.00
$0.00 $0.00

gi,gzi,ar +.'io
$i,erT,8i4.io
st "gzr "ala: o

$0 00

$0 00

$9,-0,.9

$0.00

$0 00"

YTD Balance

-$546, B1 4. 1 0

-$1,375,000 00

$0.00
-si,bii,ar+ro
-$i erl,Bia io
-Sr eZBtalo -

0 00%

0 00%

" 9,9-9"1:
0.00%

o 0or;
$0.00 $0 00 0.00%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
13



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Revenue Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-18

02t02t18 2.34 PM
page 6

17-18

YTD Budget
17-18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt
17 -18

YTD Balance
% ofYTD

Fund 40 PERMANENT FUND
Active R 40-201 TNTEREST REVENUE
Actrve R 40-203 OTHER REVENUE
Active R 40-204 OPERATING TRANSFER F
Active R 40-230 LAND SALES

Totat Fund 40 PERMANENT FIJND $35,000 00 $3,059,292 36

$'r ,755,832.79 -$3,059,292 36

$0.00 $35,000.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00

$1,755,832 79 -$3,024,292 36

$0.00

$35,000.00

$0 00

$0.00

$3,059,292 36

$0 00

$0,00

"_ - $000

0.00%

0 00%

0 00%

0 00%

8740.84%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
14



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-18

17-',t8 17-18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt

02t02t18 2 33 PM
page 9

% of YTD

$0.90

$0.00

$0.00

$26,727.90

$0 00

$26,727.90

$26ni so

$16Jr? so

$3,91 5.21

__-9q,9!
$3,915.21

$3,915,
$3"91521

17 _18

YTD Balance

-$26,727.90

_ $ooo
$26,!4e0
-$26,727.90

-$26,727.90

YTD
Fund 40 PERMANENT FUND

DEPT 9OO OTHER
Active E 40-900-000-380 CONTRACT LABO
Active E 40-900-000-751 OPERAT|NG TRAN
SUBDEPT OOO

Totat DEpT 900 OTHER
Total Fund 40 PERMANENT FIJND

$0 00

$0 00
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0 00%

0.00%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
15



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Revenue Guideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17_1g

02/02118 2:34 PM

Page 7

17 -18

YTD Budget
17-18

YTD Amt
JANUARY

MTD Amt
17'18 % ofYTD

Fund 41 MAINTENANCE RESERVE FUND
Actrve R 41-201 TNTEREST REVENUE
Active R 41-203 OTHER REVENUE
Active R 41-204 OpERATING TRANSFER F
Active R 41-207 AEB Grant Revenue
Active R 41-230 LAND SALES
Active R 4i-276 AEB SCHOOL
Total Fund 41 MATNTENANCERESERVE

FUND

$0 00

$2,757,050.22

s0.00

$200,000.00

$0 00

_ $1 ,457 388.89

$4,414,439 11

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$o oo

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

YTD Balance

$0.00 0 00%

$2,757,Os).22 o.oo%

$0.00 0 oo%
$200,000 00 o.oo%

s0 00 0.00%
$1,457 388 89 o.oo%
st flq.qis t1 o 0o%$0 00 $0 00

tanderson
Typewritten Text
16



ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
*Expenditure 

G uideline@

Current Period: JANUARY 17-1g

17 -18 17 -18

YTD Amt

02t02118 2:33 PM

Page 1 0

JANUARY

MTD Amt
17-18 % ofYTD

YTD YTD Balance
Fund 41 MAINTENANCE RESERVE FUND

DEPT 8OO CAPITAL - SCHOOL
Active E 41-800-857-300 SALARTES
Active E 41-800-857-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Actrve E 41-800-857-380 CONTRACT LABO
Active E 41-800-857-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 41-800-857-475 SUppLtES
Active E 41-800-857-850 CAp|TAL CONSTR
SUBDEPT 857 FALSE PASS SCHOOL

Active E 41-800-865-300 SALARTES
Active E 41-800-865-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 41-800-865-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 41-800-865-475 SUppLtES
Active E 41-800-865-888 PROJECT CONTTN
SUBDEPT 865 Akutan Schoot

Active E 41-800-866-888 PROJECT CONTTN
SUBDEPT 866 NELSON LAGOON SCHOOL

Active E 41-800-867-300 SALARTES
Active E 4'l-800-867-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 41-800-867-380 CONTRACT LABO
Active E 41-800-867-400 TRAVEL AND PER
Active E 41-800-867-475 SUppLtES
Actrve E 41-800-867-850 CAP|TAL CONSTR
Active E 41-800-867-888 PROJECT CONTTN
SUBDEPT 867 Sand point School

Active E 41-800-868-300 SALARTES
Active E 41-800-868-350 FRTNGE BENEFTTS
Active E 41-800-868-380 CONTRACT LABO
Active E 41-800-868-400 TRAVEL AND pER
Active E 41-800-868-475 SUppLtES
Active E 41-800-868-551 LEGAL
Active E 41-800-868-577 FTJEL
Active E 4'1-800-868-850 CApITAL CONSTR
Active E 4'1-800-868-852 ASPHALT pAVtNG
SUBDEPT 868 King Cove School

Active E 41-800-869-888 PROJECT CONTTN
SUBDEPT 869 COLD BAY SCHOOL

Totat DEPT 800 CAP|TAL - SCHOOL
DEPT 9OO OTHER

Active E 41-900-000-753 MtSC EXPENSE
Active E 41-900-000-880 LAND
SUBDEPT OOO

Totat DEpT 900 OTHER
Total Fund 41 MATNTENA/VCERESERVE

FUND

$50,000 00 $o o0
$160,965 00 $60,209 72

$0 00 0.00%
$50,000 00 0.00%
$50.000.00 o 0o%

$100,361 17 37.41%

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00 0 00%

$0.00 0 00%
$0 00 0.00%
$0 00 0 00%
$0 00 0.00%
$0.00 0 00%

$o.oo

$0.00

$0 00

$o oo

$0 00

$48,680.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

* i11ir9!9
$37,576.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

,__$111-01,99
$11,104 00

$50,000 00

0.00%

0 00%

0 00%

0.00%

0 00%

_ 77 E!,
7719%
0 00%

$48,680.00

$50,000.00
$0.00

$0 00
$50,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

_$12 285i0
$12,285 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$6,960.00

$602 04

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$15,071 68

$22,633 72

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$o oo

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0.00

$o oo

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$7,288.90

$50,000 00
-$6,960 00

-$602 04

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00
-$2,786 68

-stqzazu:
$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

$0 00

_, _ s9!9

0.00%

0 00%

0 00%

0 00%

0 00%

0 00%

0.00%
122.68%

laqia"i
0.00%

0 00%

0 00%

0 00%

0 00%

0 00%

0 00%

0.00%
0 000/o

$7,288.90

$0 00

$0.00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00

$0.00
$0.00

$50,000.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0 00

$0.00

$0 00

$0 00 $7,244 71

qqo-o $o.oo
$0 00 $7 ,244 71

$0.00 $7,244.71
$160,965.00 $67.454.43

$1,39e 25 -$7,244 71 ooo?"
$B 688 1 5 $93.1 1 6.46 41 91 ra

$7,288 90

$1,399 25

, qq,gq
q1 200 ra

-$7 ,244 71

qo: oo

-$7 ,244.7 1

0 00%

0.00%

0.00%

tanderson
Typewritten Text
17



 

INVESTMENT REPORT  

 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception to
Date

Portfolio 0.91 3.73 13.85 13.85 6.57
Benchmark 0.77 3.55 13.78 13.78 6.28

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

P
er

ce
nt

 T
ot

a
l R

e
tu

rn
 (

G
ro

ss
)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
Equity Blend

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Fixed Income
32%

US Lg Cap
38%

US Md Cap
6%

Int'l
10%

Emer Mkts
5% Real Estate

9%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Amber Frizzell, AIF®
Amber@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Jason Roth

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-17 45,925,378

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -1,029
Change in Market Value 122,149
Interest 29,224
Dividends 267,100

Portfolio Value on 12-31-17 46,342,822

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2017



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY AND TARGET
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH

December 31, 2017

%
Asset Class & Target Market Value Assets Range

FIXED INCOME  (34%)
US Fixed Income  (34.0%) 14,451,633 31.2 25% to 60%

Cash  (0.0%) 268,526 0.6 na

Subtotal:  14,720,159 31.8

EQUITY  (66%)
US Large Cap  (36.0%) 17,398,425 37.5 30% to 50%

US Mid Cap  (5.0%) 2,922,612 6.3 0% to 10%

Developed International Equity  (10.0%) 4,860,919 10.5 5% to 15%

Emerging Markets  (5.0%) 2,318,675 5.0 0% to 10%

Real Estate  (10.0%) 4,122,031 8.9 5% to 15%

Subtotal:  31,622,663 68.2

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 46,342,822 100



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio 0.11 0.29 0.87 0.87 1.53
Benchmark 0.10 0.28 0.84 0.84 1.02

P
er

ce
n

t 
T

ot
a

l R
et

u
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
Citi 90 Day Tbill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 1.32%   Average Maturity: 0.16 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-17 1,524,177

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -63
Change in Market Value 567
Interest 1,068
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 12-31-17 1,525,749 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION
Cash and T-

Bills
8%

US Treas
92%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Amber Frizzell, AIF®
Amber@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Jason Roth

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

AEB/AKUTAN HARBOR - 2006 A
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2017



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

AEB/AKUTAN HARBOR - 2006 A
December 31, 2017

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

22,789 22,789 1.49

U.S. TREASURY 
550,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.91 549,500 99.99 549,934 36.04 4,812 2,223 1.16

0.875% Due 01-15-18
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.35 200,695 99.96 199,928 13.10 2,000 755 1.28

1.000% Due 02-15-18
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.84 199,672 99.87 199,750 13.09 1,750 450 1.38

0.875% Due 03-31-18
450,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.77 448,984 99.83 449,226 29.44 3,375 723 1.35

0.750% Due 04-15-18
Accrued Interest 4,151 0.27

1,398,852 1,402,989 91.95 4,151

TREASURY BILLS
100,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.92 99,922 99.97 99,971 6.55 NA 0 0.97

0.000% Due 01-11-18
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 1,521,563 1,525,749 100 11,937 4,151



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio 0.11 0.29 0.86 0.86 1.51
Benchmark 0.10 0.28 0.84 0.84 1.28

P
er

ce
n

t 
T

ot
a

l R
et

u
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
Citi 90 Day Tbill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 1.30%   Average Maturity: 0.19 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-17 2,547,883

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -136
Change in Market Value 859
Interest 1,846
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 12-31-17 2,550,453 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Cash and T-
Bills
11%

US Treas
89%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Amber Frizzell, AIF®
Amber@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Jason Roth

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

AEB OPERATING FUND
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2017



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

AEB OPERATING FUND
December 31, 2017

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

31,460 31,460 1.23

U.S. TREASURY 
375,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.90 374,630 99.99 374,955 14.70 3,281 1,516 1.16

0.875% Due 01-15-18
565,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.93 564,581 99.96 564,797 22.14 5,650 2,134 1.28

1.000% Due 02-15-18
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.93 199,852 99.93 199,860 7.84 2,000 597 1.34

1.000% Due 03-15-18
300,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.84 299,508 99.87 299,625 11.75 2,625 674 1.38

0.875% Due 03-31-18
525,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.78 523,870 99.83 524,097 20.55 3,937 844 1.35

0.750% Due 04-15-18
300,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.83 299,484 99.86 299,577 11.75 3,000 390 1.38

1.000% Due 05-15-18
Accrued Interest 6,154 0.24

2,261,924 2,269,065 88.97 6,154

TREASURY BILLS
250,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.92 249,806 99.97 249,927 9.80 NA 0 0.97

0.000% Due 01-11-18
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 2,543,191 2,550,453 100 20,494 6,154



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio 0.10 0.26 0.84 0.84 1.48
Benchmark 0.10 0.28 0.84 0.84 1.21

P
er

ce
n

t 
T

ot
a

l R
et

u
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
Citi 90 Day Tbill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 1.30%   Average Maturity: 0.20 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-17 2,486,484

Contributions 0
Withdrawals 0
Change in Market Value 707
Interest 1,694
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 12-31-17 2,488,886 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Cash and T-
Bills
26%

US Treas
74%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Amber Frizzell, AIF®
Amber@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Jason Roth

Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH SERIES E BOND
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2017



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH SERIES E BOND
December 31, 2017

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

30,607 30,607 1.23

U.S. TREASURY 
575,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.89 574,362 99.99 574,931 23.10 5,031 2,324 1.16

0.875% Due 01-15-18
505,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.94 504,684 99.96 504,818 20.28 5,050 1,907 1.28

1.000% Due 02-15-18
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.93 199,852 99.93 199,860 8.03 2,000 597 1.34

1.000% Due 03-15-18
150,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.53 149,297 99.83 149,742 6.02 1,125 241 1.35

0.750% Due 04-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.46 100,457 99.60 99,602 4.00 1,000 378 1.64

1.000% Due 08-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.43 100,434 99.52 99,516 4.00 1,000 298 1.69

1.000% Due 09-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.05 100,047 99.35 99,352 3.99 875 187 1.71

0.875% Due 10-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.77 100,770 99.54 99,543 4.00 1,250 162 1.78

1.250% Due 11-15-18
Accrued Interest 6,095 0.24

1,829,902 1,833,460 73.67 6,095

TREASURY BILLS
625,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.92 624,515 99.97 624,819 25.10 NA 0 0.97

0.000% Due 01-11-18
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 2,485,024 2,488,886 100 17,331 6,095

* Callable security



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio 0.08 0.10 0.69 0.69 0.37
Benchmark 0.05 0.00 0.64 0.64 0.38

P
er

ce
n

t 
T

ot
a

l R
et

u
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
50% Barclays 1-3 Yr Gov/50% 90 Day Tbill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 1.49%   Average Maturity: 0.70 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-17 1,025,441

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -73
Change in Market Value -93
Interest 874
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 12-31-17 1,026,150 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION
Cash and T-

Bills
3%

US Treas
97%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Amber Frizzell, AIF®
Amber@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Jason Roth

Contact Phone Number: 907/272-7575

AEB 2010 SERIES A GO BOND/KCAP
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2017



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

AEB 2010 SERIES A GO BOND/KCAP
December 31, 2017

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
CASH RECEIVABLE 1,250 1,250 0.12
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

27,134 27,134 2.64

28,384 28,384 2.77

U.S. TREASURY 
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.08 200,152 99.99 199,976 19.49 1,750 808 1.16

0.875% Due 01-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.93 99,930 99.96 99,964 9.74 1,000 378 1.28

1.000% Due 02-15-18
175,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.93 174,870 99.93 174,877 17.04 1,750 522 1.34

1.000% Due 03-15-18
150,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.57 149,361 99.74 149,613 14.58 937 161 1.41

0.625% Due 04-30-18
75,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.95 74,962 99.48 74,608 7.27 937 44 1.80

1.250% Due 12-15-18
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.68 199,367 99.11 198,226 19.32 2,500 7 1.85

1.250% Due 06-30-19
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 98.77 98,770 98.29 98,293 9.58 1,125 289 1.90

1.125% Due 03-31-20
Accrued Interest 2,209 0.22

997,412 997,766 97.23 2,209
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 1,025,796 1,026,150 100 10,000 2,209



Clients are encouraged to compare this report with the official statement from their custodian.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

Current
Month

Current
Quarter

Year to
Date

Latest 1
Year

Inception
to Date

Portfolio 0.08 0.13 0.71 0.71 0.35
Benchmark 0.05 0.00 0.64 0.64 0.38

P
er

ce
n

t 
T

ot
a

l R
et

u
rn

 (
G

ro
ss

)

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

Current Account Benchmark:
50% Barclays 1-3 Yr Gov/50% 90 Day Tbill

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA   Yield to Maturity: 1.56%   Average Maturity: 0.61 Yrs

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Portfolio Value on 11-30-17 2,041,041

Contributions 0
Withdrawals -85
Change in Market Value 60
Interest 1,596
Dividends 0

Portfolio Value on 12-31-17 2,042,612 PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION
Cash and T-

Bills
2%

US Treas
98%

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Client Relationship Manager: Amber Frizzell, AIF®
Amber@apcm.net

Your Portfolio Manager: Jason Roth

Contact Phone Number: 907/272-7575

AEB 2010 SERIES B BOND/AKUTAN AIR
Account Statement - Period Ending December 31, 2017



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

AEB 2010 SERIES B BOND/AKUTAN AIR
December 31, 2017

Yield
Average Total Market Pct. Annual Accrued to

Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
FEDERATED GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 
INSTITUTI

36,636 36,636 1.79

U.S. TREASURY 
325,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.90 324,673 99.99 324,961 15.91 2,844 1,314 1.16

0.875% Due 01-15-18
300,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.48 298,441 99.74 299,226 14.65 1,875 321 1.41

0.625% Due 04-30-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.84 99,836 99.77 99,773 4.88 875 77 1.42

0.875% Due 05-31-18
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.15 200,305 99.84 199,688 9.78 2,250 105 1.47

1.125% Due 06-15-18
160,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.47 159,150 99.51 159,213 7.79 1,200 502 1.60

0.750% Due 07-31-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.46 100,457 99.60 99,602 4.88 1,000 378 1.64

1.000% Due 08-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.43 100,434 99.52 99,516 4.87 1,000 298 1.69

1.000% Due 09-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.05 100,047 99.35 99,352 4.86 875 187 1.71

0.875% Due 10-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.77 100,770 99.54 99,543 4.87 1,250 162 1.78

1.250% Due 11-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.25 100,250 99.48 99,477 4.87 1,250 58 1.80

1.250% Due 12-15-18
100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.95 99,953 99.27 99,273 4.86 1,125 520 1.83

1.125% Due 01-15-19
125,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.05 123,809 98.79 123,486 6.05 937 354 1.84

0.750% Due 02-15-19
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.46 198,922 99.00 197,992 9.69 2,000 597 1.85

1.000% Due 03-15-19
Accrued Interest 4,874 0.24

2,007,046 2,005,976 98.21 4,874
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 2,043,682 2,042,612 100 18,481 4,874



Consent Agenda 



 

SAND POINT OFFICE ANCHORAGE OFFICE KING COVE OFFICE 
P.O. BOX 349 3380 “C” STREET, SUITE 205 P.O. BOX 49 
SAND POINT, ALASKA 99661 ANCHORAGE, ALASKA 99503 KING COVE, ALASKA 99612 
(907) 383-2699 (907) 274-7555 (907) 497-2588 
(907) 383-3496 FAX (907) 276-7569 FAX (907) 497-2386 FAX 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
To: Mayor Osterback and Assembly 
From: Tina Anderson, Clerk 
Date:  February 8, 2018 
Re: Ordinance 18-06, Public Records 
 
 
As the Aleutians East Borough gets older, it has become necessary to get a public records 
management program in place.  Before starting a public records program, the Assembly 
needs to pass an ordinance designating the clerk as the records manager. Ordinance 18-06 
says we will have a program.  The program will take responsibility for retention 
schedules, inactive storage, disposal process, protection of archival records, identify and 
protect vital records.  This ordinance also covers the records that are exempt from 
inspection and public disclosure. 
 
Once the retention schedule is completed, that will be brought before the Assembly in the 
form of a resolution to adopt.  A detailed description of the obsolete records destroyed 
will be brought before the Assembly annually. 
 
 
 
 
 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



ORIDNANCE 18-06 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY ENACTING ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 

CODE CHAPTER 2.21, PUBLIC RECORDS, TO GOVERN THE MANAGEMENT AND DISSEMINATION OF 

BOROUGH RECORDS. 

 

WHEREAS, certain state and federal laws require the Borough to retain certain records for a specific 

period of time; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a political subdivision of the State of Alaska, the Borough shall promote the principles of 

efficient records management for local public records kept in accordance with state law; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the best interest of the Borough to adopt a comprehensive system for the collection, 

management, use and retention of Borough records; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH: 

 

Section 1. That a new chapter 2.21 is hereby enacted as follows: 

 

Chapter 2.21 – Public Records 

 

 2.21.010 Purpose & Policy 

 2.21.020 Definitions 

 2.21.030 Borough Records Declared Public Property 

 2.21.040 Records Subject to Inspection and Copying 

 2.21.050 Records Exempted from Public Disclosure 

 2.21.060 Requests for Borough Records 

 2.21.070 Records Management 

 2.21.080 Duties of Borough Departments 

 2.21.090 Adoption of Regulations 

 

2.21.010 Purpose & Policy. 

 

A. The Management and Preservation of Public Records Act (AS 40.21) provides for the orderly 

management of current local public records, and the preservation of noncurrent public records 

of permanent value. 

 

B. This chapter is intended to provide the Aleutians East Borough with a comprehensive system for 

the creation, acquisition, use, preservation, security, maintenance, transmission, retention, 

dissemination and disposal of Borough information contained in any recorded medium. 

 

C. It is the Borough’s policy to provide access to public records in a manner that promotes the right 

of the people to remain informed, and balances that right against the sometimes-competing 

interests of reasonable personal privacy as well as the need for confidentiality with respect to 



some limited areas of Borough affairs.  In balancing these interests, this chapter shall be 

construed as requiring the disclosure of public records in the Borough’s possession or control, 

except for those classes of records specifically exempted herein, or by other applicable law. 

 

2.21.020 Definitions. 

 

For the purposes of this chapter the following words and phrases shall have the meanings set forth in 

this section: 

 

A. “Borough” means any department, division, office, board, commission, agency or other 

instrumentality of the Aleutians East Borough. 

 

B. “Confidential information” means information, the disclosure of which is restricted by any 

Borough, state or federal law, ordinance, regulation, rule or judicial decision. 

 

C. “Historic Value” means the value of a record for use at a later date in reconstructing a general 

history of the development and government of the borough. 

 

D. “Legal Value” means the value of a record for use as evidence in pending or threatened litigation 

or to document a legal relationship or event, including without limitation property and 

commercial transactions and legislative and judicial actions of the Aleutians East Borough. 

 

E. “Record” means all recorded information acquired or stored by the borough for future use or 

preservation, regardless of physical form or characteristic, which is developed or received in 

connection with the transaction of official business.  The term “Record” does not include any 

proprietary software program. 

 

F. “Record Center” means a record depository managed by the Clerk’s Office for the storage and 

disposition of noncurrent records. 

 

G. “Record Series” means any group of identical or related records which are normally used and 

filed as a unit and which permit evaluation as a unit for retention scheduling purposes, each 

record series shall be segregated according to series and the year of acquisition. 

 

H. “Requester” means a person who submits a request to the borough to inspect or obtain a copy 

of any borough record. 

 

I. “Retention Schedule” means the schedule developed by the clerk that prescribes retention 

periods and other policies governing the management of Borough records according to series, 

including the prompt and orderly disposition of records that no longer possess administrative, 

legal or historic value. 

 



J. “Vital Record” means records that are necessary to assure continuance of essential 

governmental operations to protect the legal and financial operations of the Borough in the 

event of disaster or catastrophic loss of Borough records. 

 

2.21.030 Borough records declared public property. 

 

A. All borough records are property of the borough.  Unless otherwise authorized or required by 

law, no person shall: 

 

1. Deface, alter or destroy any borough record; 

 

2. Remove any borough record from the borough’s possession; or, 

 

3. Otherwise disclose confidential information contained within any borough record. 

 

B. In addition to any other penalty prescribed by law, violation of subsection (A) by a borough 

employee may be cause for disciplinary action. 

 

2.21.040 Records subject to inspection and copying. 

 

A. Except as otherwise provided by ordinance, or by any other provision of state or federal law, the 

borough shall make borough records open to reasonable inspection during regular business 

hours. 

 

B. Nothing in this chapter requires the borough to create, compile, summarize, outline, or in any 

other way create information from existing borough records in order to comply with a request 

to inspect borough records. 

 

C. The borough is not required to produce public records for inspection, or to copy records, in the 

exact medium they are stored; provided, that the substantive content of the information 

contained within the record is not altered. In the event that the substantive content of a record 

is altered, a written statement explaining the nature of the change and why such change was 

necessary shall be issued to the requester. 

 

2.21.050 Records exempted from inspection and public disclosure. 

 

This chapter shall not be construed as requiring the disclosure of: 

 

A. Any privileged communication between the Borough Attorney and the borough; 

 

B. Files related to pending or actual litigation involving the borough, or any document prepared by 

the Borough Attorney in the provision of legal services or legal advice to the borough; 

 



C. Borough personnel, payroll, or medical files, or other files that reveal the financial or medical 

status of any specific individual, the release of which would constitute an unwarranted invasion 

of privacy, except for the following information: 

 

1. The names and position titles of borough officers and employees, including any prior 

positions held; 

 

2. The dates of appointment and separation of a borough officer or employee; 

 

3. Salary levels and fringe benefits of borough officers and employees as may be required 

by law, including information in regard to the pay range and step grade of an employee 

or officers; and, 

 

4. The names of all applicants for borough employment as department heads, 

administrator, or deputy administrator; 

 

D. Bids or proposals submitted to the borough as part of a procurement process governed by Title 

3 of this Code of Ordinances, unless the borough has issued a notice of intent to award; 

 

E. Proprietary information which a manufacturer, consultant, contractor or supplier of goods and 

services reasonably requires to be kept privileged or confidential to protect the interests of 

persons providing the information or data; 

 

F. Information obtained by and in the custody of insurance carriers insuring the borough, and their 

attorneys and agents, regarding possible and pending claims against the borough, and records 

maintained in the borough regarding such claims; 

 

G. Records concerning the predecisional deliberative process in any quasi-judicial proceeding 

conducted by the borough; 

 

H. Any record, nondisclosure of which is authorized by a valid Alaska or federal statute or 

regulation, or by privilege, exemption or principle recognized by the courts, or by a protective 

order authorized by law; 

 

I. Confidential tax information; 

 

J. Other documents with respect to which the borough’s need for confidentiality outweighs the 

public’s right to know. 

 

2.21.060 Requests to inspect and copy borough records. 

 

A. All requests to inspect borough records shall be submitted in writing to the Borough Clerk, on a 

form provided by the Borough, along with any applicable fee. In the event that a requester is 

unable to submit a written request due to a physical or mental disability, the Borough Clerk shall 



either assist the requester in preparing a written request, or treat the oral request as a written 

request. 

 

B. All requests for records shall be approved or denied by the Borough Clerk. 

 

C. The Borough Clerk shall refer all approved requests to the department head responsible for 

maintaining those records to which the request is applicable. The Borough Clerk or designee 

shall, consistent with the orderly conduct of borough business and the records and information 

management program, make a good faith and reasonable effort to locate records that are 

adequately identified in the request. 

 

D. The department head responsible for maintaining the record shall forward it to the Borough 

Clerk. Before any record may be made available for public inspection and copying, the Borough 

Clerk or the Clerk’s designee shall review the record to confirm that it may be disclosed.  Within 

10 business days after receiving a request, the borough clerk shall either: 

 

1. Make the borough record available to the requester for inspection, or provide the 

requester with a copy of the record, as requested; or 

 

2. Notify the requester in writing that the borough record is not subject to inspection, 

including a citation to the provision of borough, state or federal law that authorizes or 

requires the borough to withhold the record, or the date upon which the record was 

destroyed in accordance with the borough’s adopted records retention schedule. 

 

E. The Borough Clerk may extend the initial 10-business-day period established under subsection 

(D) of this section for a period not to exceed 10 additional business days by providing notice to 

the requester within the initial 10-business-day period. The notice must state the reason for the 

extension and the date by which the Borough Clerk expects to be able to furnish the requested 

record or to issue a determination that the record is not subject to disclosure. 

 

F. Any denial of a request for information or inspection of borough records shall be appealable to 

the Mayor, upon written notice submitted within seven days of the Borough Clerk’s decision. 

 

G. The fee for copying borough records shall be established by the borough’s fee schedule as 

recommended by the borough Clerk and approved by the Borough Assembly. The fees shall not 

exceed the maximum fees allowable under A.S. 40.25.110. 

 

 

2.21.070 Management of Public Records. 

 

A. The borough clerk or clerk’s designee shall serve as the records manager and shall have the 

primary responsibility for the development, maintenance and operation of the Borough’s 

records management system. 

 



B. Each department director shall designate a records coordinator.  The records coordinator shall 

manage the department’s records according to the adopted procedures, regulations, and 

retention schedule.  Each department director shall provide the records manager the name and 

contact information of the records coordinator. 

 

C. The records manager shall develop and provide each department with a records classification 

and procedures manual listing a description of all record series maintained by the borough and a 

general schedule for the annual relocation of inactive records to the record center for storage or 

digital imaging for transfer to microfilm or another storage medium. 

 

D. The records manager shall cause records stored in computer memory device systems to be 

reviewed, stored and destroyed in the same manner and at the same time as if the records were 

maintained in written, printed or photographic form. 

 

E. The assembly shall adopt by resolution a records retention schedule and approve by resolution 

any changes to that retention schedule setting forth time schedules for retention of particular 

series of records. 

 

F. The records manager shall review and update the retention schedule biannually.  Department 

records coordinators shall work with the records manager to review and update the 

department’s record series and retention schedule biannually.  Records coordinators shall fill 

out a retention schedule change form submit it to the department director for approval and 

submit it to the records manager for action. 

 

G. The records manager shall develop a schedule for the destruction or other disposal of obsolete 

records at the end of the retention period established for that type of record series.  That 

schedule shall not apply to records of vital, historical, legal or financial value.  Thirty days prior 

to destruction of an obsolete record, the records manager shall circulate to each department 

head for comment a detailed listing of all records to be destroyed and the date for destruction.  

The department director must respond prior to the date for destruction to prevent disposal of 

any record in the detailed listing. 

 

H. The records manager shall maintain a permanent log of all destroyed records.  The borough 

clerk shall report to the Assembly annually a detailed description of the obsolete records 

destroyed. 

 

I. The records manager shall have the authority to provide a microfilm and/or electronic 

document imaging of records as designated for efficient management of active and inactive 

records. 

 

J. The records manager may replace any original record which is lost, worn or damaged by a 

certified copy of that record, and the replacement shall be considered an original record for all 

purposes. 

 



2.21.080 Regulations. 

 

The borough assembly may adopt regulations to effectuate this chapter.  The borough clerk’s office shall 

submit regulations to the assembly for approval, by resolution, to carry out the proposed purposes as 

set forth in this chapter. 

 

2.21.090 Duties of Borough Departments. 

 

Each department shall establish and maintain a file system in the most organized and efficient manner 

possible and in compliance with any records management regulations approved by the assembly. 

 

Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its enactment. 

 

ENACTED BY THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS    DAY OF   

 , 2018. 

 

            

Mayor Alvin D. Osterback 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Tina Anderson, Clerk 

 

 

 

  

 

 

tanderson
Typewritten Text































































  DRAFT 

 
Dock Tidelands Lease Assumption and Consent Agreement 
Page | 1 
 6328273.1 

DOCK TIDELANDS LEASE ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION AND CONSENT AGREEMENT 

 THIS DOCK TIDELANDS LEASE ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION AND CONSENT AGREEMENT 
(this “Assignment”) is entered into as of the Effective Date, set forth below and is by and 
among Aleutians East Borough (“Lessor”), Bering Pacific Seafoods, LLC, an Alaska limited liability 
company (“Assignor”) and False Pass Seafoods, LLC, an Alaska limited liability company 
(“Assignee”). 

RECITALS 
 

A. Lessor is the owner of that certain tidelands described in the Dock Tidelands 
Lease associated with the dock located in False Pass, Alaska between Lessor and Assignor, 
dated June 1, 2013, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Dock Tidelands 
Lease”).    

B. Assignor and Assignee are limited liability companies that are currently wholly 
owned and operated by APICDA Joint Ventures, Inc., an Alaska corporation that is wholly 
owned by APICDA.  

C. Assignee is a limited liability company set up to hold the assets of Assignor as 
part of a transaction in which a portion of the Membership and Percentage Interest in the 
Assignee will be sold to Trident Seafoods, Corp.  The Trident acquisition of the interests in 
Assignee has not yet occurred.   

D. Assignor wishes to transfer its interest in the Dock Tidelands Lease to Assignee as 
provided in this Assignment.  

E. Assignee wishes to accept, without reservation, the obligations and benefits of 
Assignor as provided in this Assignment.    

F. Lessor wishes to provide written consent to the assignment and assumption of 
the Tidelands Lease as provided in this Assignment. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, for the exchange of promises and other good and sufficient 
consideration, the sufficiency of which is expressly agreed, the parties to this Assignment agree 
as follows: 

1. Assignment and Assumption. Effective as of the Effective Date of this 
Assignment: 

1.1. Assignment.  Assignor hereby irrevocably assigns, transfers and sets over 
to Assignee, its successors and assigns, all of Assignor's right, title and interest in, to and under 

tanderson
Typewritten Text



  DRAFT 

 
Dock Tidelands Lease Assumption and Consent Agreement 
Page | 2 
 6328273.1 

the Dock Tidelands Lease, and delegates to Assignee all of its duties and responsibilities under 
the Dock Tidelands Lease performable and first arising from and after the Effective Date to the 
same extent as if Assignee had been the original tenant under the Lease, and to be liable to 
Lessor for the full performance of all such obligations under the Dock Tidelands Lease.  

 
1.2. Assumption.  Assignee hereby accepts the foregoing assignment and 

acknowledges and agrees to be bound by the provisions of the Dock Tidelands Lease. By such 
acceptance of this Assignment, Assignee hereby agrees that it will promptly keep and perform 
each of Assignor's obligations under the Dock Tidelands Lease which arise from and after the 
Effective Date to the same extent as if Assignee had been the original tenant under the Dock 
Tidelands Lease, and to be liable to Landlord for the full performance of all such obligations 
under the Dock Tidelands Lease. 

2. Consent. Lessor, by its signature hereto, expressly and without reservation, 
consents to the assignment and assumption of the Dock Tidelands Lease as provided in this 
Assignment.  Lessor represents that it has obtained any consents, authorizations and satisfied 
all requirements that it may be required to obtain to authorize the transaction outlined in this 
Assignment.   

3. Lease Update.  The parties hereto acknowledge that the “Facility” as defined in 
Section B of the Dock Tidelands Lease has been constructed, but the “as-built” survey 
referenced in Section A of the Dock Tidelands Lease has not yet been utilized to update the 
Dock Tidelands Lease and define the “legal description” which will constitute the leased area 
for the balance of the Term of the Dock Tidelands Lease.  Lessor, Assignor and Assignee agree 
to work promptly and cooperatively to complete the survey and identify “as-built” area and 
execute such documents as are reasonably necessary to define the “legal description” and 
amend the Dock Tidelands Lease. 

4. Entire Agreement. This Assignment shall constitute the entire agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter contained herein, and this Assignment may not be 
modified except in a writing signed by the parties. 

5. Time is of Essence. Time is of the essence of each provision of this Assignment. 

6.  Successors and Assigns. This Assignment and all provisions hereof shall extend 
to and be obligatory upon and inure to the benefit of the respective heirs, legatees, legal 
representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

7. Governing Law. This Assignment shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the internal laws of the State of Alaska. If any of the provisions of this 
Assignment are deemed to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Assignment shall 
not be affected. 



  DRAFT 

 
Dock Tidelands Lease Assumption and Consent Agreement 
Page | 3 
 6328273.1 

8. Lease Otherwise Unmodified. Except as expressly set forth herein, the Lease 
remains unmodified and in full force and effect. 

9. Further Documents.  The parties agree that they shall promptly execute and 
deliver such additional documents and take actions which are reasonable and necessary to 
complete the transactions contemplate by this Agreement. 

10. Recordation.  The parties hereto agree to promptly draft, execute and record a 
memorandum of the Lease and this assignment.  Any party hereto may cause the 
memorandum of the Lease and this Assignment to be recorded.   

11. Counterparts and Facsimile.  This Assignment may be executed in counterparts 
and by facsimile, with copies effective for all purposes.   

THIS ASSIGNMENT shall be effective as of January ___, 2018 (the “Effective Date”). 
 

LESSOR: 
 
Aleutians East Borough 
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 

Name:  _______________________________ 

Its:  __________________________________ 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF ALASKA   ) 

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 

On  ___________________, personally appeared  ____________________________, and 
personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the 
person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me 
that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity on behalf of which the 
person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

Dated: January ____, 2018 



  DRAFT 

 
Dock Tidelands Lease Assumption and Consent Agreement 
Page | 4 
 6328273.1 

 
  

  
(print notary’s name) 

Notary Public in and for the State of 
___________________. 
residing at  . 
My commission expires:  . 

 



  DRAFT 

 
Dock Tidelands Lease Assumption and Consent Agreement 
Page | 5 
 6328273.1 

 
ASSIGNOR: 
 
Bering Pacific Seafoods, LLC  
an Alaska limited liability company. 
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 

Name:  _______________________________ 

Its:  __________________________________ 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF ALASKA   ) 

___________ JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 

On  January ___, 2018, Lawrence Cotter, CEO of APICDA JV, Inc., the sole member and 
manager of Bering Pacific Seafoods, LLC, personally appeared and personally known to me (or 
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose name is subscribed 
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized 
capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, the entity on the behalf of which he  
acted, executed the instrument. 
 

Dated: January ____, 2018 
 

  

  
(print notary’s name) 

Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska  
residing at  . 
My commission expires:  . 

 



  DRAFT 

 
Dock Tidelands Lease Assumption and Consent Agreement 
Page | 6 
 6328273.1 

 
ASSIGNEE: 
 
False Pass Seafoods, LLC  
an Alaska limited liability company. 
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 

Name:  _______________________________ 

Its:  __________________________________ 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF ALASKA   ) 

THIRD JUDICIAL DISCTRICT ) 
 

On  January ___, 2018, Lawrence Cotter, CEO of APICDA JV, Inc., the sole member and 
manager of False Pass Seafoods, LLC, personally appeared and personally known to me (or 
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose name is subscribed 
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized 
capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, the entity upn behalf of which he  acted, 
executed the instrument. 
 

Dated: January ____, 2018 
 

  

  
(print notary’s name) 

Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska  
residing at  . 
My commission expires:  . 

 



  DRAFT 

 
 6328273.1 

EXHIBIT A 

Attached is a true and correct copy of the Tidelands Lease between Aleutians East 
Borough and Bering Pacific Seafoods, LLC dated June 1, 2013. 



tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text









tanderson
Typewritten Text



tanderson
Typewritten Text

















  DRAFT 

Page 1 of 14 
 

TIDELANDS LEASE 

 

This Lease is entered into on ______2018, between the Aleutians East Borough ("Lessor") and 
False Pass Seafoods, LLC ("FPS" or "Lessee"). 

 
Recitals 

A. Lessor is the owner of the tidelands as shown in Exhibit 1 hereto, described as: 
Section 28, T. 61 S., R. 94W., Seward Meridian, USGS Quad Map False Pass D-5; latitude 
54.8626 deg. N., longitude 163.4142 deg. W., in False Pass Alaska. The easement requested is 
in the southeast comer of section 28. A section of the tidelands, approximately 500 feet in length 
and 20 feet in width will be required as easement for the outfall line. Upon completion of the 
installation of the outfall, an "as-built" survey will be performed. · Once completed, the "as-built 
survey will be utilized as the legal description of the tideland easement. 

 
B. Lessee, on jts own or through its affiliate, plan to construct a fish processing facility 

("Facility") in False Pass Alaska. The parties contemplate that Lessee may, from time to time 
during the life of this Lease, replace or expand the Facility as it is planned at execution of this 
Lease. 

 
C. Use of the Tidelands for an outfall line will facilitate construction and operation of the fish 

processing facility. 
 

D. Lessee desires to lease the Tidelands from Lessor, and Lessor desires to lease the 
Tidelands to Lessee. 

 
E. To facilitate the mutual goals of Lessor and Lessee, they hereby enter into this Lease to 

document the terms and conditions under which Lessor will lease the Tidelands to Lessee. 
 

Terms and Conditions 

 
1. Premises. Lessor leases to Lessee the Tidelands. 

2. Term. The Term of this Lease shall be 30 years, beginning on ____________, 2018, and 
ending on ________________, 2037, subject to renewal or earlier termination as described below. 

3. Rent. Lessee shall pay rent to Lessor at the rate of $100.00 per year, due and payable on 
the date of full execution of this Lease and on the first day of each calendar year thereafter. 

 
4. Renewal. The parties intend that this Lease will last for a maximum 50 years including the 

30-year Term and up to two 10-year renewals.  In the event Lessor or does not receive wri tten 
notice of non-renewal from Lessee not less than 365 days before the end of the Term or the 
first renewal thereof, this Lease shall be renewed for an additional period of 10 years, subject 
to the terms and conditions contained in this Lease as the parties may, from time to time, 
agree to amend. 

 
5. Termination.  Lessor may terminate this Lease upon Lessee’s default, as defined in Article 13 

hereof, upon 90 days’ written notice of termination.  No such termination shall be sent unless 
Lessor has given Lessee written notice of default and an opportunity to cure in accordance with 
Article 13.  Lessee may terminate this Lease upon 90 days’ written notice to Lessor. 

6. Regulatory compliance.  Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining all required State 



  DRAFT 

Page 2 of 14 
 

and Federal permits.  A copy of all such permits is attached hereto as Exhibit 2. 
 

7. Use. The Tidelands are leased to Lessee to use as Lessee deems necessary or desirable to 
achieve Lessee's business objectives in constructing and operating the Facility, as it may from 
time to time be expanded or replaced. Lessee shall at all times comply with all applicable laws, 
ordinances and regulations of duly constituted authorities now or hereafter in effect, with respect 
to Lessee's use of the Tidelands. 

 
Lessee agrees that nothing in this Article or in this Lease shall create any third-party 

beneficiary rights or relationship in Lessee or in any other entity. 
 

8. Return of Premises. Lessee agrees to return the Tidelands to Lessor, without further 
demand, at the expiration or sooner termination of the Term or any renewal thereof including 
alterations, improvements or modifications. Lessee agrees that holding over its occupancy at 
the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease will result in the creation of a month-to-month 
tenancy at the prorated rental rate in effect at the time. 

 
9. Possession. Upon execution of this Lease and payment of the first rental payment, Lessee 

shall have the right to possession of the Tidelands. 
 

10. Taxes.  Lessee shall be responsible for any and all property taxes assessed during the 
term of this Lease against any leasehold interest. Lessee shall pay any sales or other tax levied 
on the rent. 

 
11. Insurance.  Lessee shall maintain in force during the term of this Lease a commercial 

comprehensive general liability insurance policy ("Policy''), written on an occurrence basis, 
covering the Tidelands. The Policy shall have a coverage limit of at least $1,000,000 for injury 
to or death of any one per on $2.000,000 for the injury to or death of more than one person 
aris ing out of any accident or occurrence and $1,000,000 for damage to property. The Policy 
shall name Lessor as an additional insured and loss payee. Such insurance shal l  be primary 
with any insurance carried by Lessor. Lessee shall provide Lessor a copy of the Policy or other 
satisfactory evidence of coverage. The Policy or a separate agreement between Lessee and the 
insurance company shall provide that the insurance company shall give Lessor at least 30 
days' prior written notice before cancellation or termination of coverage. The requirement of 
insurance coverage does not relieve Lessee of any other obligation under this Lease. 

 
Lessor and Lessee shall review the policy coverage limits as set out in this Article every 10 

years while this Lease remains in effect, to ensure that the limits remain adequate for their 
purposes.  In the event that Lessor concludes in good faith that coverage limits should be 
increased, Lessee shall purchase and maintain such increased coverage. 

 
12. Inspection by Lessor.  Lessee permits Lessor to enter the Tidelands to inspect, or to enforce 

or carry out any provision of this Lease.  In the event of an emergency, Lessor may enter without 
notice.  In the event no emergency exists, Lessor will endeavor to give Lessee 24 hours’ notice 
before entering. 

 
13. Default.  The occurrence of any or more of the following evens shall constitute a material 

default in breach of this Lease by Lessee. 
 
a. failure to make any payment required under this Lease as and when due, where such failure 

shall continue for a period of 30 days after Lessee's receipt of written notice from Lessor 
 



  DRAFT 

Page 3 of 14 
 

 
 

b. failure to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions, rules, or any other 
nonfinancial provision of this Lease, where the failure shall continue for a period of 30 days after 
Lessee's receipt of written notice of the failure from Lessor; and/or 

 
c. filing of a petition in insolvency or bankruptcy, or a statement of insolvency. 

 
 In the event of any default by Lessee under this Lease, in addition to any other remedy, Lessor 

shall have the right, with or without terminating this Lease, to reenter and relet the Tidelands. 
Lessee hereby agrees to pay Lessor the cost of recovering possession of the Tidelands, 
including attorney’s fees, paralegal fees, and costs· the expenses of reletting; and any other cost 
or damage arising out of Lessee's default. Lessee hereby waives all rights of notice to quit in the 
event it abandons the Tidelands. 

 
14. Limitation on assignment. Lessee may assign its rights and obligations under this Lease 

only to an entity: 
a. owned wholly or in part by the Aleutian Pribilof Community Development Association; and 

 
b. engaged in fisheries processing. 

 
15. Miscellaneous. 

 
a. Entire Agreement. This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between the parties as to the 

subject matter hereof. Any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the date 
of this Lease shall not be binding upon either party. 

 
b. Amendment. The parties may amend this Lease. Any such amendment shall be effective only 

if it is in writing and signed by both parties hereto. 
 

c. Timeliness. Time is of the essence of this Lease. 
 

d. Construction. Lessee and Lessor both have had the opp01tunity to have lawyers review and 
negotiate the terms of this Lease. The rule of construction that ambiguity is construed against the 
drafter will not apply. 

 
e. Headings. Headings in this Lease are intended for information only, and not as terms or 

conditions of the Lease. 
 

f. Signatures. This Lease may be signed in counterparts; a facsimile signature is as valid as 
an original signature. 

 
g. Notices. Any notice, request, or other communication required or permitted to be given or made 

under this Lease shall be made when hand delivered, or mailed, by registered or certified mail, and 
addressed as follows: 

 
If to Lessee:      If to Lessor: 
False Pass Seafoods, LLC    Aleutians East Borough 
         3380 C Street, Suite 205 
         Anchorage, AK 99503 
Phone:         Phone:  907-274-7555 
 



  DRAFT 

Page 4 of 14 
 

 
 
 

IN WTNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease the day and year first above written. 
 
 False Pass Seafoods, LLC     Aleutians East Borough 
 
 By:  _____________________    By:  ________________________ 
 
 Its:   _____________________    Its:  _________________________ 
  



  DRAFT 

Page 5 of 14 
 

STATE OF ALASKA ) 
) ss 

FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT) 
THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________ Day of ______________, 2018, 

before me, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared 
___________________, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed on the 
foregoing instrument and, duly sworn, stated to me under oath that s/he is the 
______________, of False Pass Seafoods, LLC, that s/he has been authorized by said 
municipal corporation to execute the foregoing instrument on its behalf, and s/he executed 
the same freely and voluntarily as the free act and deed of said corporation. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official on this day and year in this certificate first written above.  
 
   

 _________________________________ 
 Notary Public for Alaska 

   My Commission Expires:  ____________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA ) 

) ss 
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT) 

THIS CERTIFIES that on this ________ Day of ______________, 2018, 
before me, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared 
___________________, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed on the 
foregoing instrument and, duly sworn, stated to me under oath that s/he is the 
______________, of the Aleutians East Borough, that s/he has been authorized by said 
municipal corporation to execute the foregoing instrument on its behalf, and s/he executed 
the same freely and voluntarily as the free act and deed of said corporation. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official on this day and year in this certificate first written above.  
 

 _________________________________ 
 Notary Public for Alaska 

      My Commission Expires:  ____________ 
  



  DRAFT 

Page 6 of 14 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1 

 

 



  DRAFT 

Page 7 of 14 
 

 



  DRAFT 

Page 8 of 14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 

 

REQUIRED STATE AND FEDERAL PERMITS 

 



  DRAFT 

Page 9 of 14 
 



  DRAFT 

Page 10 of 14 
 

 



  DRAFT 

Page 11 of 14 
 



  DRAFT 

Page 12 of 14 
 

 



  DRAFT 

Page 13 of 14 
 



  DRAFT 

Page 14 of 14 
 

 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
  
  

 
 

Agenda Statement 
 
Date:   January 31, 2018 
To:  Mayor Osterback and Assembly 
From:  Anne Bailey, Borough Administrator 
 
Re: Resolution 18-24 Amending Section 9.05 of the Aleutians East Borough Employee 
Handbook 
 
The Aleutians East Borough Employee Handbook outlines the Borough’s personnel policies. 
Section 9.05 Annual Evaluation and Salary Adjustment governs the methods by which the 
Borough awards merit-based salary adjustment to its eligible employees. Since the Mayor is the 
Personnel Officer for the Borough he or she can provide pay increases to Borough employees. 
The Assembly has requested that the Borough provide raises to employees. Based off this 
request, the following merit pay increase tied to employee longevity has been proposed for 
Assembly review and approval. Please note this merit-based pay is pay above the cost of living 
allowance that is given to employees annually. 
 
The changes to Section 9.05 would include a merit-based pay adjustment tied to an employee’s 
longevity. Employees become eligible for a one-time, 2.5% merit-based pay increase on the 10th, 
15th, 20th, and 25th year of Borough employment. An employee shall receive such an increase 
only after a performance evaluation reflects the employee’s satisfactory performance of his or 
her work duties. 
 
Merit-based increases other than those described above may be awarded when an employee has 
reached some tangible, professional milestone, such as completion of the educational courses, 
degrees, or certifications that directly relate to the employee’s work duties for the Borough. This 
type of increase shall be awarded at the Mayor’s sole discretion but may only be awarded at any 
level up to and including the amount of the cost of living adjustment; however, the Mayor may 
deviate from this guideline with the approval of the Assembly.  
 
If Resolution 18-24 is approved, this merit-based salary adjustment policy will go into effect 
immediately for any eligible employee that meets the longevity requirements.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Administration recommends approval of Resolution 18-24 amending Section 9.05 of the 
Aleutians East Borough Employee Handbook.  
 



 

 
 

ANCHORAGE OFFICE * 3380 C Street, Ste. 205 * Anchorage, AK 99503-3952 * (907)274-7555 * Fax (907)276-7569 * Email: admin@aleutianseast.org 
KING COVE OFFICE * P.O. Box 49 King Cove, AK  99612 * (907) 497-2588 * Fax (907)497-2386 * Email: finance@aleutianseast.org 

SAND POINT OFFICE * P.O. Box 349 * Sand Point, AK  99661 * (907)383-2699 * Fax: (907)383-3496 * Email: clerk@aleutianseast.org 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY 
AMENDING SECTION 9.05 OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 

WHEREAS, A.S. 29.20.410(a) authorizes m unicipalities to create  and im plement 
personnel systems to govern the terms of municipal employment; and, 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that authority, the Al eutians East Borough enacted Section 
7.10.020 of the Aleutians East Borough Code of Ordinances, which directed the Borough to 
adopt a personnel policy; and, 
 

WHEREAS, according ly, the Borough has adopted the Aleutians East Borough  
Employee Handbook; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Section 9.05 of the Employee Handbook governs the methods by which the 
Borough awards merit-based salary adjustments to its employees; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Assembly wishes to a mend Se ction 9.05 to provide for a new policy 
that is more sustainable, predictable, and clear than the current policy; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Section 7.10.030 authorizes the Assembly to amend the policies set forth in 
the Employee Handbook by resolution. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Aleutians East Borough as follows: 
 

Section 1. Section 9.05 of  the Aleutians East B orough Employee Handbook shall be 
amended as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 



 

 
 

 
PASSED AND AP PROVED BY THE ALEUTIANS EA ST BOROUGH ASSE MBLY 

on this 8th day of February, 2018. 
 
       
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH, ALASKA 
 
 

_________________________________  
Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Tina Anderson, Clerk 



EXHIBIT A 
RESOLUTION 18-24 

49  The annual evaluation is a type of performance review. Other performance reviews may take place at the end 
  of an employee’s probationary period, after a disciplinary action or corrective action plan has been completed, 
  or at such other time as the AEB deems appropriate and beneficial. 
 
February 8, 2018  Aleutians East Borough Policies and Procedures  Page 47 of 61 
    Employee Handbook 

 

9.05  Annual Evaluation49 and Salary Adjustment 
 
A.  Supervisors and employees are strongly encouraged to discuss job performance and goals 

on an informal, day-to-day basis. Formal performance evaluations are conducted at the end 
of an employee’s probationary period in any new position. This probationary period allows 
the supervisor and the e mployee to discuss the job resp onsibilities, standards,  and 
performance requirements of the new position. Additional formal performance reviews are 
conducted to provide both supervisors and employees the opportunity to discuss job tasks, 
identify and correct weaknesses, encourage and recognize strengths, and discuss positive, 
purposeful approaches for meeting goals. 

 
B.  Cost of living adjustm ents funded by the Assembly will b e given ann ually to regular 

employees, who exhibit satisfactory perform ance as  determ ined by evaluation. Cost of 
living adjustments and will be bas ed upon the Consum er Price Index for Anchorage as 
computed for the preceding fiscal year. 

 
C. Merit-based pay adjustments are awarded by the Borough in an effort to recognize truly 

superior employee performance. Merit-based pay is pay above the cost of living allowance 
that is given to employees annually for satisfactory performance. The decision to award a 
merit-based adjustm ent is dependent upon nu merous factors, including the inform ation 
documented by this form al evaluation and perfor mance review process.  Employees 
become eligible for a one-tim e, 2.5% merit-based pay increase on the 10 th, 15th, 20th, and 
25th year of Borough employment.  An employee shall receive such an increase only after 
a performance evaluation reflects th e employee’s satisfactory perfor mance of his or her 
work duties.  Any other pay adjustments shall be made in accordance with section 9.05(D) 
of this Employee Handbook. 

 
D.  Merit-based increases other than those described in Section 9.05(C) may be awarded when 

an employee has reached some tangible, professional milestone, such as the completion of 
educational courses, degrees, or certifications that directly relate to the employee’s work 
duties for the Borough.  Such increases shall be  awarded at the Mayor ’s sole discretion.  
As a guideline, in determining the amount of merit-based compensation, additional general 
rule, such compensation can may be awarded by the Mayor at any level up to and including 
the amount of the cost of living adjustm ent.; however, the Mayor m ay Deviation deviate 
from this guideline is allowable with the approval of the Assembly. 

 
Black typeface = current language. 
Red strikethrough = deleted language. 
Blue typeface = new language.  
    



1 | P a g e  
 

 
  
  

 
 

Agenda Statement 
 
Date:   January 30, 2018 
 
To:  Mayor Osterback and Assembly 
 
From:  Anne Bailey, Borough Administrator 
 
Re: Resolution 18-25 Authorizing a Salary Increase for the Borough Clerk 
 
The Aleutians East Borough (Borough) Clerk serves at the pleasure of the Borough Assembly. 
The Borough Clerk has not received a salary increase for several years, other than the Borough-
wide Cost of Living Adjustment (“COLA”) afforded to all regular employees on an annual basis. 
The Borough Assembly has determined that the Borough Clerk’s annual salary should be 
increased to reflect her years of service to the Borough.  
 
Per Resolution 18-25, the Assembly will authorize a salary increase of $10,000.00 for the 
Borough Clerk adjusting the Clerk’s salary to $97,558.00. This amount mirrors the merit -based 
pay adjustment outlined in Resolution 18-24 for other Borough employees.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Administration recommends approval of Resolution 18-25- Authorizing a salary increase for the 
Borough Clerk.  
 



 

 
 

ANCHORAGE OFFICE * 3380 C Street, Ste. 205 * Anchorage, AK 99503-3952 * (907)274-7555 * Fax (907)276-7569 * Email: admin@aleutianseast.org 
KING COVE OFFICE * P.O. Box 49 King Cove, AK  99612 * (907) 497-2588 * Fax (907)497-2386 * Email: finance@aleutianseast.org 

SAND POINT OFFICE * P.O. Box 349 * Sand Point, AK  99661 * (907)383-2699 * Fax: (907)383-3496 * Email: clerk@aleutianseast.org 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-25 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY 
AUTHORIZING A SALARY INCREASE FOR THE BOROUGH CLERK 

 
WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough (“Borough”) Clerk serves at the pleasure of the 

Borough Assembly; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Borough Clerk has not received a ny salary increase for several years, 
other than the Borough-wide Cost of Living Ad justment (“COLA”) afforded to all regular  
employees on an annual basis; and, 
   

WHEREAS, the Borough Assem bly has determ ined that the Borough Clerk’s annual  
salary should be increased to reflect her years of service to the Borough; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Borough Asse mbly believes that such adjustm ent should be calculated 
according to the newly am ended Section 9. 05 of the Aleutian s East Boroug h Em ployee 
Handbook, adopted pursuant to Resolution 18-24. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Aleutians East Borough as follows: 
 

Section 1. The Borough Clerk’s annual salary shall be adjusted to $97,558.00. 
 

Section 2. Such adjustm ent shall be made retroactive to July 1, 2017, and the 
Borough Clerk’s pay throughout the re mainder of Fiscal Year 2018 sh all be adjusted as m ay be 
necessary to ensure full payment of the adjusted amount. 
 

Section 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.  
 
 



1 | P a g e  
 

  

 
 

Agenda Statement 
 
Date:   February 1, 2018 
 
To:  Mayor Osterback and Assembly 
 
From:  Mary Tesche, Assistant Administrator 
 
Re: Resolution 18-26 authorizing a Deed of Easement to the City of Akutan for the Akutan 
Raw Water Transmission Line Project 
 
The City of Akutan (City) and the Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium (ANTHC) are in the 
process of designing and constructing a new water transmission system for the City’s water 
utility. The project consists of replacing the raw water transmission line and other components of 
the impoundment dam to complete a series of upgrades to the utility. Construction is scheduled 
to take place this summer. 
 
A portion of the transmission line is designed to cross Borough property adjacent to the Akutan 
School. The City and ANTHC are requesting the Borough grant a Deed of Easement for 
approximately .09 acres of land that will be used in perpetuity for the construction and 
maintenance of the transmission line.  
 
A copy of the terms of the Easement, as well as the surveyed parcel, is attached to Resolution 18-
26 for reference.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Administration recommends approval of Resolution 18-26 authorizing a Deed of Easement to the 
City of Akutan for the Akutan Raw Water Transmission Line Project. 



 

 
 

PASSED AND AP PROVED BY THE ALEUTIANS EA ST BOROUGH ASSE MBLY 
on this 8th day of February, 2018. 
 
      ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH, ALASKA 
 
 

_________________________________  
Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Tina Anderson, Clerk 





KQA-17-E4-legal                                                                               Page 1 of 4 
 

DEED OF EASEMENT 
FOR 

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 
 

Easement Parcel KQA-17-P4, Akutan, Alaska 
 

      Grantor: Aleutians East Borough    Grantee: City of Akutan 
P.O. Box 349        P.O. Box 109 
Sand Point, AK 99611                           Akutan, AK  99553 

 
 
 
THIS DEED OF EASEMENT made and entered into this  ________day of __________, 
2018, by the Aleutians East Borough, hereinafter referred to as the Grantor(s), and the City of 
Akutan, hereinafter referred to as the Grantee(s):  That in order to secure future interest in the 
land should title be transferred, the Grantor does hereby grant and convey unto the Grantee, 
its successors and assigns, a utility easem ent for the purpose of construction and maintenance 
of a raw water line and all appu rtenances, loca ted on the Grantor ’s property located within  
Section 11, Township 70 South, Range 112 West, Seward Meridian, Alaska.  The easement is 
shown in th e attached  Exhibit “KQA-17-E4” and labeled Easem ent Parcel “ KQA-17-P4”, 
and is more specifically that portion of said Section 11 described as follows: 
 
A strip of land 20 feet wide, being 10 feet on each side of the following described centerline, 
commencing at a found BLM brass cap monument, being the north easterly corner of Lot 1A, 
Akutan School Subdivision, Plat 97-11, Aleutian Islands Recording District; thence, 
S47°24’55”W, along the north westerly boundary of said Lot 1A, a distance of 59.30 feet to 
the True Point of Beginning of Easement Parcel KQA-17-P4; thence S37° 27' 41"E, a 
distance of 12.41 feet; thence S14° 57' 41"E, a distance of 20.00 feet; thence S59° 57' 41"E, a 
distance of 55.78 feet; thence S14° 57' 41"E, a distance of 35.78 feet; thence S37° 27' 41"E, a 
distance of 37.95 feet; thence S14° 07' 32"W, a distance of 9.70 feet; thence S31° 47' 21"W, a 
distance of 31.75 feet, more or less, to a point of intersection with the north eastern boundary 
of Easement Parcel AKUO5-P2 Recorded as Document #2005-000602-0 within the 
Aleutian Islands Recording District. 
 
 
Said easement contains 0.09 acre(s), or 4067 Sq. Ft. more or less. 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS: 
 
THE EASEMENT IS GRANTED subject to the condition tha t th e Grantee  con struct and 
maintain the aforesaid improvements on the p arcel in a wor kmanlike manner, ind emnify the 
landowners against liability for damages to life or property arising from the occupancy or use 
of the land by the Grantee, and resto re the lands as nearly as may be possible to their origin al 
condition u pon com pletion of con struction in  accordance with acceptable eng ineering 
practices.  The easem ent is perpet ual so long  as the e asement shall a ctually be u sed for the 
purpose specified.  The easem ent may be term inated in whole, or in part, by the Grantor, if  
non-use of the easement for the specified purpose exists for a consecutive two year period. 
 
 
ALEUTIAN ISLANDS RECORDING DISTRICT 
 
 

tanderson
Typewritten Text



KQA-17-E4-Grantor                                                                                                  Page 2 of 4 

CERTIFICATION:                         Deed of Easement for Easement KQA-17-P4 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this instrument 
at _______________________________________________, Alaska 

 
By:  (Signature) _________________________      ________________________________ 
                                   Grantor  
 
 
        (Printed)  __________________________       ________________________________ 
 
                        __________________________       ________________________________ 
                                             Title                                                       Address 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA                                   ) 
                                                                       )  ss: 
THIRD JUDICAL DISTRICT  ) 
 
 
 
        THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT ON THIS ____ day of _____________ 2018, before me 
the undersigned Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, duly commissioned and sworn, 
personally appeared _______________________________ to me known to be the individual 
described in and who executed the above and foregoing instrument in the capacity as stated 
therein and acknowledged to me that he/she signed and sealed the same freely and voluntarily 
for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
         
                                                                                           
                                                                                             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR ALASKA 
(place stamp above) 
 
My commission expires:_________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALEUTIAN ISLANDS Recording District        
 
Return to:  ATTENTION: Mr. Paul Russell, PLS 
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium, DEHE  
4500 Diplomacy Drive 
Anchorage, Alaska  99508 
 

 



KQA-17-E4-Grantee                                                                                                  Page 3 of 4 

CERTIFICATION:                         Deed of Easement for Easement KQA-17-P4 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this instrument 
at _______________________________________________, Alaska 

 
By:  (Signature) _________________________      ________________________________ 
                                   Grantee  
 
 
        (Printed)  __________________________       ________________________________ 
 
                        __________________________       ________________________________ 
                                             Title                                                       Address 
 
 
STATE OF ALASKA                                   ) 
                                                                       )  ss: 
THIRD JUDICAL DISTRICT  ) 
 
 
 
        THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT ON THIS ____ day of _____________ 2018, before me 
the undersigned Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, duly commissioned and sworn, 
personally appeared _______________________________ to me known to be the individual 
described in and who executed the above and foregoing instrument in the capacity as stated 
therein and acknowledged to me that he/she signed and sealed the same freely and voluntarily 
for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
         
                                                                                           
                                                                                             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR ALASKA 
(place stamp above) 
 
My commission expires:_________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ALEUTIAN ISLANDS Recording District        
 
Return to:  ATTENTION: Mr. Paul Russell, PLS 
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium, DEHE  
4500 Diplomacy DriveAnchorage, Alaska  99508 
 

 





 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 18-26 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY 
AUTHORIZING A DEED OF EASEMENT TO THE CITY OF AKUTAN FOR THE 
AKUTAN RAW WATER TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, Akutan, Alaska is a Second Class City located within the boundaries of the 
Aleutians East Borough (Borough); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Akutan (City) and the Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 
(ANTHC) are participating in a joint project to upgrade the City’s water utility; and  

WHEREAS, the project involves the installation of a new water transmission line connecting the 
City’s raw water impoundment to the water treatment plant; and 

WHEREAS, the project requires a Deed of Easement from the Borough for approximately .09 
acres of Borough property for the purpose of construction and maintenance of the raw water line 
and all appurtenances, a copy of which is attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough Municipal Code (AEBMC) Chapter 50.10 titled Real 
Property Acquisition and Disposal provides for the disposal of real property owned by the 
Borough; and  

WHEREAS, AEBMC Sec. 50.10.070 (d) allows the Borough to convey property to the state, the 
federal government, or another local government at less than the market value; and 

WHEREAS, the Assembly has determined that the disposal of this property to the City to 
complete the project is for the public good, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Assembly authorizes the Mayor to issue a Deed 
of Easement to the City of Akutan for the Akutan Raw Water Transmission Line Project at less 
than fair market value under AEBMC 50.10.070 (d). 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Aleutians East Borough on this ___ day of _____, 2018.  
 
 
_______________________________ 
Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



 
 

 
_______________________________ 
Tina Anderson, Clerk 



1 | P a g e  
 

  

 
 

Agenda Statement 
 
Date:   February 1, 2018 
 
To:  Mayor Osterback and Assembly 
 
From:  Mary Tesche, Assistant Administrator 
 
Re: Resolution 18-27 approving the projects and initiatives identified on the Borough 
Strategic Plan  
 
The Aleutians East Borough (Borough) conducted a Planning Work Session on December 13th-
15th, 2017, to help identify projects and initiatives that would be included on the Borough’s 
Strategic Plan. Representatives from each community, outside stakeholders, and members of the 
public were in attendance and actively engaged in conversations about the Borough’s role in 
community projects. The result of those conversations is the draft Borough Strategic Plan, which 
is presented with Resolution 18-27 for your review and approval. 
 
Mayor Osterback, staff, and PGS consultants defined which projects would be part of the 
Borough’s strategic plan based on the information shared to the Assembly during the work 
session. Many of the projects identified on the plan are currently being pursued or actively being 
completed. The plan also defines project leads, quarterly project outcomes, and year-end targets. 
This will ensure accountability and transparency through the next year of project activities. 
 
The plan is intended to be a living document and subject to modification by the project leads. 
Modifications could include changes in personnel or moving certain project components to a 
different quarter. PGS will hold a 6-month review with the Assembly to report on progress and 
to make any major modifications. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Administration recommends approval of Resolution 18-27 approving the projects and initiatives 
identified on the Borough Strategic Plan 



Transportation - King Cove & Cold Bay Road Airport Access - Anne Bailey
   Strategic Initiative C:

Transportation - King Cove & 
Cold Bay Road Airport Access

3-Year Goal:
•Road between King Cove 
& Cold Bay opened for use

1-Year Target:
•Community engagement & 

construction preparation initiated
02/28/1908/31/18 11/30/1805/31/18

Our Vision:
Healthy People, Healthy 

Schools, Healthy Communities
  Diversification of industry 

including our natural resources 
& community flexibility for 
Borough stability (7) (22)

  Healthy people with a strong 
cultural identity (7) (16)

  Our schools & community are 
providing quality education 
including secondary education 
& vocational skills within the 
communities (4) (13)

  Planned infrastructure projects 
completed (8)

  Availability, utilization & 
development of connectivity 
(physical & electronic) (4)

TA Tina Anderson
AB Anne Bailey
CE Chris Emrich
BRG Brad Gilman
BG Butch Gundersen
JG Justine Gundersen
GH Gary Hennigh
MH Mark Hickey
CL Charlotte Levy
EM Emil Mobeck
AO Alvin Osterback
TS Tuna Scanlan
AS Angela Simpson
LT Laura Tanis
MT Mary Tesche
EW Ernie Weiss

Vision Navigation® 
Chart #1

03/01/18 - 02/28/19

Purpose:
To ensure the standard of 

living, well-being & future of 
our communities

Version 1.0, 01/29/18

      Improvement Project B.2:
Marine Infrastructure - 

Nelson Lagoon Dock Repair
2-Year Goal:

•Final repairs on the 
Nelson Lagoon dock completed

1-Year Target:
•Nelson Lagoon dock construction 

contractor under contract
Metric:

•Progress of completed tasks

   Improvement Project B.3:
Marine Infrastructure - 

Akutan Harbor
2-Year Goal:

•Akutan Harbor project closed
1-Year Target:

•All Akutan Harbor mitigation 
measures completed

   Improvement Project B.4:
Marine Infrastructure - 

False Pass Harbor House Design
2-Year Goal:

•Design for a harbor house in 
False Pass completed

1-Year Target:
•Request for qualifications issued 

for harbor house in False Pass

   Improvement Project B.1:
Marine Infrastructure - 

Akun Dock & Breakwater
3-Year Goal:

•Akun dock & breakwater feasibility 
study completed
1-Year Target:

•Akun dock & breakwater assessed 
& high-level plan completed

02/28/1908/31/18

Marine Infrastructure - Alvin Osterback

11/30/18

Dock harbor 
management agree-

ment executed
B.1.1    AB

05/31/18

2. Nelson Lagoon Dock Repair - Anne Bailey

3. Akutan Harbor - Mary Tesche

4. False Pass Harbor House Design - Anne Bailey

5. Cold Bay Dock Repairs - Anne Bailey

Bid documents 
completed
B.1.4    MT

Tariff rates 
defined

B.1.2   BG

Side 
location & owner-
ship determined

B.3.1   CE

Funding 
options & project 

partners identified

B.5.3    MH

Additional 
funding secured, if 

necessary
B.1.5    MT

Beaches 
cleaned

B.2.2  MT

AEB marine 
facilities management 

handbook updated
B.2.6   AB

Funds 
appropriated for 
feasibility study

B.5.1    AB

Current state 
status with DOT&PF 

determined

B.5.2    MH

Responsible 
party for completing the 
feasibility study on the 

dock determined

B.5.4    AB

1. Akun Dock & Breakwater - Anne Bailey

Assessment 
of current status 

completed

B.5.1    MH

Funding 
secured for traditional 
vessel feasibility study

B.5.2    AB

Feasibility 
study for traditional 
vessel completed

B.5.4    MT

Projects to 
expedite feasibility 

study initiated

B.5.5    MT

  Improvement Project B.5:
Marine Infrastructure - 
Cold Bay Dock Repairs

3-Year Goal:
•Design with cost estimate completed

1-Year Target:
•Responsible party for completing 

the feasibility study on 
the dock determined

Engineer/
Project Manager 

hired
B.1.3    MT

Construction 
contractors evaluated

B.1.6    MT

Construction 
contractor under 

contract
B.1.7    MT

Stellar Eider 
signs posted

B.2.1  CL Harbor deve-
lopment & operations 

plan completed
B.2.7   TS

Harbor local 
area plan updated

B.2.3   TS

Summary report & 
procedure for Steller Eider 
collisions received from the 

Army Corps of Engineers
B.2.4    AB

Salinity data 
report on North Creek 

received from the Army 
Corps of Engineers

B.2.5   AB

Assessment 
of funding sources 

completed
B.2.8   AB

Request 
for qualifications 

written

B.3.2   AB

Request 
for qualifications 

issued

B.3.3   AB

Borough 
projects to expedite 

feasibility study identified

B.5.3     AB

Advisory 
committee 
established

C.1    AB

Planning work 
session to educate 

stakeholders completed

C.2    MT

Funding 
appropriated for 
project activities

C.3    AB

Advisory 
committee approach on 

community impact completed

C.6       MT

Fisheries Advocacy - Ernie Weiss
   Strategic Initiative A:

Fisheries Advocacy 
3-Year Goal:

•Protect & strengthen our 
existing fisheries
1-Year Target:

•Ensure expertise is ready & prepared 
for the next round of Board 

of Fisheries meetings
02/28/1908/31/18 11/30/1805/31/18

Board of 
Fish strategy 

defined

A.1    EW

Funding 
assessed & allocated, 

as needed

A.2    AB

Board of 
Fish strategy 
implemented

A.3    EW

Board of Fish 
strategy assessed for 

effectiveness

A.4    AO

DRAFT v1.0.2



02/28/1908/31/18

Government & Policy Advocacy - Alvin Osterback
    Strategic Initiative D:

Government & Policy Advocacy
3-Year Goal:

•AEBs legislative advocacy 
capabilities strengthened

1-Year Target:
•Helicopter operations subsidized 

through EAS, legislative support for the 
King Cove & Cold Bay road continued,

& systems for monitoring airline 
activities in place

11/30/18

Legislative 
agenda defined – 
State & Federal

D.6    AO

Airline 
service monitoring 

system in effect
D.1    CL

05/31/18

02/28/1908/31/18

Social Infrastructure & Community Well-Being - Alvin Osterback

    Strategic Initiative E.1:
Social Infrastructure & Community 

Well-Being - Nelson Lagoon 
School Renovations 

1-Year Target:
•Nelson Lagoon school property 

transferred & assessment completed

11/30/18

Nelson 
Lagoon School 

property transfer plan 
completed
E.1.1   AB

05/31/18

02/28/1908/31/18

Borough Property Surveys - Ernie Weiss

    Strategic Initiative F:
Borough Property Surveys

3-Year Goal:
•Complete surveys for all Borough 

designated lands through the Alaska 
Municipal Entitlement Act

1-Year Target:
•Complete plat for Port Moller & 
property survey for Sandy River

11/30/1805/31/18

Existing 
EAS & mail contracts 

determined
D.2    MT

USPS discus-
sions on improved 

mail delivery initiated
D.4   BRG

USPS discus-
sions on improved 

mail delivery completed
D.7    AO

Lobbying 
strategy defined for 

helicopter operations 
(EAS)

D.3    BRG

Lobbying 
strategy initiated for 

helicopter operations 
(EAS)

D.5    AB

Helicopter 
operations transferred 

out of Borough
D.8    AB

Nelson 
Lagoon Tribal 

resolution adopted
E.1.2   JG

Deed trans-
ferred by State

E.1.3   AB

Assessment 
of the Nelson Lagoon 

school completed
E.1.5   MT Assessment 

results delivered 
to Nelson Lagoon 

Tribal Council
E.1.6   MT

Borough 
project involvement 

completed
E.1.7   AB

Dowl 
services for Assess-

ment engaged
E.1.4   MT

    Strategic Initiative E.2:
Social Infrastructure & Community 

Well-Being - Cold Bay Clinic
3-Year Goal:

•New health care clinic in 
Cold Bay open for use

1-Year Target:
•Funding established and assessment 

completed for new health care 
clinic in Cold Bay

    Strategic Initiative E.3:
Social Infrastructure & Community 

Well-Being - Cold Bay School
1-Year Target:

•School building/property transferred 
to the community of Cold Bay 

& assessed

Assessment 
of current project 
status completed

E.2.1   MT

Responsible 
partner for purchasing 
equipment identified

E.2.2   MT

Potential 
funding sources 

identified
E.2.3   MT

Grant appli-
cations researched 

& initiated
E.2.4   MT

Funding 
received for construc-

tion of new clinic
E.2.5   MT

Proposed 
use of school building 

determined by City 
of Cold Bay
E.3.1   AS

School 
building/property 

transfer plan in place
E.3.2   AB

School 
building/property deed 

transferred by State
E.3.3   AB

Dowl 
services for assess-

ment engaged
E.3.4   MT

Assessment 
of the school 

building/property 
completed
E.3.5   MT

Assessment 
results delivered to City 

of Cold Bay
E.3.6   MT

Borough 
project involvement 

completed
E.3.7   AB

Proposed 
use of school building 

determined by City 
of Cold Bay

F.1    MT

Survey 
instructions for Sandy 

River received
F.2   EW

Survey 
company for Sandy 

River hired
F.5   EW

Sandy River 
survey completed

F.6   EW

Sandy River 
plat approved

F.7   EW

All Municipal 
Entitlement Act 

properties identified
F.3   EW

Property 
survey plan for 
2019 designed 

F.4   EW

Property 
survey plan for 
2019 initiated 

F.8   EW

Our Vision:
Healthy People, Healthy 

Schools, Healthy Communities
  Diversification of industry 

including our natural resources 
& community flexibility for 
Borough stability (7) (22)

  Healthy people with a strong 
cultural identity (7) (16)

  Our schools & community are 
providing quality education 
including secondary education 
& vocational skills within the 
communities (4) (13)

  Planned infrastructure projects 
completed (8)

  Availability, utilization & 
development of connectivity 
(physical & electronic) (4)

TA Tina Anderson
AB Anne Bailey
CE Chris Emrich
BRG Brad Gilman
BG Butch Gundersen
JG Justine Gundersen
GH Gary Hennigh
MH Mark Hickey
CL Charlotte Levy
EM Emil Mobeck
AO Alvin Osterback
TS Tuna Scanlan
AS Angela Simpson
LT Laura Tanis
MT Mary Tesche
EW Ernie Weiss

Vision Navigation® 
Chart #2

03/01/18 - 02/28/19

Purpose:
To ensure the standard of 

living, well-being & future of 
our communities

Borough Asset Management - Charlotte Levy

   Improvement Project 1:
Borough Asset Management 

1-Year Target:
•Borough Asset management database 

designed & implemented

Database 
design initiated 

1.1       CL

02/28/1908/31/18 11/30/1805/31/18
Version 1.0, 01/29/18

1. Nelson Lagoon School Renovations - Anne Bailey

2. Cold Bay Clinic - Mary Tesche

3. Cold Bay School - Anne Bailey

Borough asset 
inventory 

completed

1.3       CL

Database design 
completed  

1.2       CL

Borough 
asset history 
documented

1.4       CL

Borough asset 
database 
updated

1.5       CL

DRAFT v1.0.2



02/28/1908/31/18

Borough Property Management - Anne Bailey
    Strategic Initiative G:

Borough Property Management
2-Year Goal:

•To have an airline (or airlines) utilize 
the Cold Bay terminal 

1-Year Target:
•Plan & agreements in place to lease

the downstairs of the terminal

11/30/18

Building 
punch-list items 

identified 
G.2    EM

Lease subject 
matter expert/writer 

contracted 
G.1    AB

05/31/18

Internal Improvement - Anne Bailey

   Improvement Project 2.1:
Internal Improvement - 

Office Technology & Connectivity
1-Year Target:

•Improved IT tech services & 
staff functionality

02/28/1908/31/18

Communications - Laura Tanis
    Strategic Initiative H:

Communications
3-Year Goal:

•Improved communication infrastructure
1-Year Target:

•Complete assessment of current 
infrastructure in each community, 

& build relationships with 
communications provider(s)

11/30/1805/31/18

     Improvement Project 2.2:
Internal Improvement - 

Retention Schedule
1-Year Target:

•Implement a retention schedule for 
borough documents & records

Capabilities of 
current communication 
infrastructure in each 
community assessed

H.1    LT

Available 
providers & partners 

identified
H.2    LT

Information on 
communications dis-

tributed to communities
H.3     LT

Building 
punch-list items 

completed
G.3    EM

Cold Bay 
terminal draft lease 

completed 
G.4   AB

Potential 
lease holders 

identified 
G.5    AB

Lease 
(or leases) 
executed  
G.6    AB

Role of 
Borough in improving 

communications 
infrastructure defined

H.4    AO

   Improvement Project 2.3:
Internal Process - 

HR Tools (Employee Handbook)
1-Year Target:

•Employee handbook updated & 
approved by the assembly

     Improvement Project 2.4:
Internal Process - 

Budget Request Process
1-Year Target:

•Budget request process 
established & implemented

Our Vision:
Healthy People, Healthy 

Schools, Healthy Communities
  Diversification of industry 

including our natural resources 
& community flexibility for 
Borough stability (7) (22)

  Healthy people with a strong 
cultural identity (7) (16)

  Our schools & community are 
providing quality education 
including secondary education 
& vocational skills within the 
communities (4) (13)

  Planned infrastructure projects 
completed (8)

  Availability, utilization & 
development of connectivity 
(physical & electronic) (4)

TA Tina Anderson
AB Anne Bailey
CE Chris Emrich
BRG Brad Gilman
BG Butch Gundersen
JG Justine Gundersen
GH Gary Hennigh
MH Mark Hickey
CL Charlotte Levy
EM Emil Mobeck
AO Alvin Osterback
TS Tuna Scanlan
AS Angela Simpson
LT Laura Tanis
MT Mary Tesche
EW Ernie Weiss

Vision Navigation® 
Chart #3

03/01/18 - 02/28/19

Purpose:
To ensure the standard of 

living, well-being & future of 
our communities

Version 2.0, 01/29/18

1. Office Technology & Connectivity - Mary Tesche

2. Retention Schedule - Tina Anderson

General commun-
ication & technology 

assessment completed  

2.2.1       CL

Retention schedule 
approved by 

Assembly

2.2.1       MT

Improvement 
opportunities 

identified 

2.2.2       CL

Technology 
services RFP 

written  

2.2.3       MT

Technology 
Service RFP 

issued   

2.2.4       MT

Technology 
services provider 

contracted   

2.2.5       MT

Communication & 
technology improve-
ment plans designed 

2.2.6       MT

Communication & 
technology improve-
ment plans funded

2.2.7       AB

Communication & 
technology improve-

ment plans completed

2.2.8       MT

Retention schedule 
compliance needs 

assessed 

2.2.2       CL

Retention schedule 
compliance plan 

designed 

2.2.3       TA

Retention schedule 
compliance plan 

executed

2.2.4       TA Retention schedule 
compliance plan 

completed

2.2.7       TA
Retention schedule 
compliance training 

designed

2.2.5       TA

All borough staff have 
Completed Retention 

schedule training

2.2.6       MT

02/28/1908/31/18 11/30/1805/31/18

3. HR Tools (Employee Handbook) - Anne Bailey

4. Budget Request Process - Anne Bailey

Employee handbook 
update & execution 

plan designed 

2.3.2       AB

Current
 employee hand-
book assessed  

2.3.1       AB

Rough draft employee 
handbook written & 

presented to the assembly 

2.3.3       AB

New employee 
handbook approved 

by assembly

2.3.4       AB

Employee 
handbook update 

completed  

2.3.5       AB

Draft budget 
request process 

outlined

2.4.1       AB

Assembly & 
community feed-

back received

2.4.2       AB

Budget 
request process 

approved 

2.4.3       AB

Budget request 
process 

implemented 

2.4.4       AB

02/28/1908/31/18

Youth Advisory on AEB Assembly - Tina Anderson

    Strategic Initiative I:
Youth Advisory on AEB Assembly

1-Year Target:
•Youth advisory position filled 

on AEB assembly 

11/30/18

Assembly 
prepared
I.2    TA

AEB code for 
youth involvement 

researched
I.1    TA

05/31/18

Program 
selection process 
defined for youth 

participation
I.3    TA

Youth 
representative 

assigned
I.5    TA

Training plan
 for youth representa-

tives defined
I.4    TA

Training plan 
for youth representa-

tives completed
I.6    TA

DRAFT v1.0.2



 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 18-27 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY APPROVING 
THE PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES IDENTIFIED ON THE BOROUGH STRATEGIC 
PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, the Aleutians East Borough (Borough) conducted a Planning Work Session on 
December 13th, 14th, and 15th, 2017, for the purpose of identifying Borough projects and 
initiatives; and 

WHEREAS, regional stakeholders and representatives from each Borough community 
participated in the work session and created a comprehensive list of ongoing and future projects 
and initiatives within the Borough; and 

WHEREAS, the information gathered from the work session has been compiled into the 
Borough Strategic Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto; and  

WHEREAS, the Strategic Plan identifies projects and initiatives that are important in fulfilling 
the Borough’s vision and purpose; and  

WHEREAS, the Strategic Plan will provide a foundation to identify, execute, and complete 
project components that will help the Borough reach targeted goals; and  

WHEREAS, the Strategic Plan is intended to be a living document, subject to modification by 
project leaders.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Borough Assembly approves the projects and 
initiatives identified on the Borough Strategic Plan, and authorizes project leaders to make 
necessary modifications to project components that will help the Borough reach targeted goals. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Aleutians East Borough on this ___ day of _____, 2018.  
 
 
_______________________________ 
Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 18-28 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH ASSEMBLY REQUESTING 
THE ALASKA LEGISLATURE PRIORITIZE FUNDING FOR THE CONTINUED 

SERVICE OF THE ALASKA MARINE HIGHWAY SYSTEM. 
 
WHEREAS, the Alaska Marine Highway System (AMHS) is vitally important to the continued well-
being of the communities of the Aleutians East Borough and other Alaska coastal communities; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the seasonal twice a month ferry runs to southwest Alaska are a lifeline for travelers in 
our region including students, teachers, family relatives, fishermen, health workers and others; and 
 
WHEREAS, the AMHS is a critical link for the transport of vehicles for residents in SW Alaska and 
for moving equipment for community projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the AMHS also brings in tourists to Alaska that spend money and enrich the local 
communities and overall State economy; and 
 
WHEREAS, recent lapses in the Tustumena ferry schedule due to unplanned vessel drydock needs 
were devastating to individuals and community businesses that count on the ferry service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the continuation of AMHS service is contingent on continued funding appropriations 
by the Alaska Legislature; and 
 
WHEREAS, even more travelers could schedule and ride the AMHS with certainty if the AMHS 
was forward funded, resulting in increased revenue for the System. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly requests the 
Alaska Legislature to prioritize funding that will maintain the current level of AMHS service; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Aleutians East Borough Assembly requests the Alaska 
Legislature consider investing in the AMHS to forward fund the System to result in an even more 
reliable system that will attract more ridership 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Aleutians East Borough on this 8th day of February, 2018. 
 
 
 
_____________________    ATTEST: _____________________ 
Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor      Tina Anderson, Clerk  

tanderson
Typewritten Text
.



 
 

Tina Anderson, Clerk 



Public Hearings 



1 | P a g e  
 

  

 
 

Agenda Statement 
 
Date:   January 4, 2018 
 
To:  Mayor Osterback and Assembly 
 
From:  Mary Tesche, Assistant Administrator 
 
Re: Ordinance 18-04 amending Title 40, Chapter 40.05 of the Aleutians East Borough Code 
of Ordinances adding a new section 40.05.105 to provide a Platting Board 
 
The AEB Code establishes planning, platting, and land use regulations for the Borough under 
Title 40. Much of the land within the Borough is federally restricted or controlled by local 
governments; however, for portions of land within the Borough that are outside federal or 
municipal boundaries, planning, platting and land use is administered by the AEB Planning 
Commission. 
 
Ordinance 18-04 allows the Assembly to act as the AEB Platting Board for the purpose of 
formally reviewing and approving plats when the Planning Commission is inactive or otherwise 
unable to meet. The establishment of a Platting Board does not currently exist within the AEB 
Code. This ordinance also allows the Mayor and/or his delegate to approve abbreviated plats 
when the plat does not warrant a formal review. 
 
In the event of an appeal to a decision made by the Assembly acting as the Platting Board, this 
ordinance allows for a hearing officer to hear the concerns of a plat approval, and issue a third-
party decision regarding the appeal.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Administration recommends approval of Ordinance 18-04 amending Title 40, Chapter 40.05 of 
the AEB Code adding a new section 40.05.105 to provide a Platting Board.  



   

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ANCHORAGE OFFICE * 3380 C Street, Ste. 205 * Anchorage, AK 99503-3952 * (907) 274-7555  Fax:(907) 276-7569 
KING COVE OFFICE * P. O. Box 49 * King Cove, AK  99612 * (907) 497-2588 * Fax: (907) 497-2386 

SAND POINT OFFICE *  P. O. Box 349 * Sand Point, AK  99661 * (907) 383-2699 * Fax: (907) 383-3496 
 

 

 
ORDINANCE SERIAL NO. 18-04 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 40, CHAPTER 40.05 

OF THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH CODE OF ORDINANCES 
ADDING A NEW SECTION 40.05.105 TO PROVIDE A PLATTING BOARD  

 
WHEREAS, the legislative power of the Aleutians East Borough (“Borough”) is vested 

in its Borough Assembly under Alaska State Statute Sec. 29.20.050; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Borough’s Code of Ordinances, Title 40, establishes planning, platting 

and land use for the Borough; and 
 
WHEREAS, Title 40 of the Borough’s Code of Ordinances does not presently provide a 

Platting Board for the Borough; and 
 
WHEREAS, in or der t o provide a Platting B oard for t he Borough, i t i s necessary t o 

revise Title 40 of the Borough’s Code of Ordinances and add new Section 
40.05.105, Platting Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Assembly believes such revision to be in the Borough’s best interests. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE ORDAINED BY THE ASSEMBLY OF THE 
ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Amendment of Borough Code.  Amendment of the Aleutians East Borough 
Code of Ordinances, Title 40, Chapter 40.05.105 is hereby enacted as follows:    

 

 
 
 



   
 

 

 
 

40.05.105 Platting Board 
 
(a) In the event that the Aleutians East Borough Planning Commission is unable to 

meet, then the Aleutians East Borough Assembly shall act as the Aleutians East 
Borough Platting Board; 

 
(b) If an appeal is filed regarding a Platting Board decision issued by the Assembly 

acting as the Platting Board, then the Aleutians East Borough will retain a 
Hearing Officer to hear the appeal; 

 
(c) Hearing Officer is an individual designated to conduct a hearing involving a 

question concerning the appropriateness of a plat approval or such other matters 
as may be assigned. 

 
(d) For abbreviated plats, the Platting Authority is granted to the Mayor and/or his 

delegate. 
 

 
Section 2.  Classification.  This Ordinance shall be of a permanent nature and shall 

become a part of the Aleutians East Borough Code of Ordinances. 

Section 3. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance, or any application thereof 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this 
Ordinance and the application to other persons or circumstances shall not 
be affected thereby. 

Section 4. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption, and 
shall be included in the Aleutians East Borough Code at the time of its 
next regular supplementation and printing or ratification by the qualified 
voters of the Aleutians East Borough.   

 
Passed and adopted by the Aleutians East Borough Assembly this _____ day of 

__________, 2018. 
 
 

     
______________________________ 

       Alvin D. Osterback, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Tina Anderson, Borough Clerk 

(SEAL)  



 
 

Agenda Statement 
 

Date of Meeting:  January 11, 2018 
 
To:    Mayor Osterback and Assembly Members 
 
From:    Anne Bailey, Administrator 
   Roxann Newman, Finance Director 
    
 
RE: Ordinance 18-05 Amending the Operating and Capital Budget for the Aleutians East 
Borough Fiscal Year 2018  
 
The proposed Aleutians East Borough (Borough) mid-year budget adjustments for Fiscal Year 
2018 are outlined below: 
 
Budget Adjustments outlined in Ordinance 18-05 
 

1. Audit Expenditure Increase: The audit expenditures increased by $10,000.00, which is 
reflected in the Finance Operating Fund Expenditures line item. The audit expense 
increased from $50,000 to $60,000 for FY18. 
 

2. Salary Adjustment: The Assistant Administrator Salary is decreased by $5,863.00 to 
$90,000.00.  
 

3. Vehicle Purchase Addition: Propose adding a vehicle line item to Dept. 900 Other in 
the amount of $40,000 to purchase a truck for the Maintenance Department.  

 
Permanent Fund Earning Mid-Year Budget Appropriations not outlined in Ordinance 18-
05 
 

1. Sand Point School Electrical Work: Move $110,000 from the project contingency line 
item (E20-866-209-888 project contingency) to the Sand Point School Project 
Contingency line item (E41-800-867-888). This expenditure was approved by the 
Assembly via Resolution 17-27 at the June 30, 2017 Assembly Meeting. The invoice for 
this service was paid in November 2017 out of the Project Contingency line item.  
 
 



Agenda Statement 
Meeting Date:  December 8, 2016 
FY18 AEB Capital Improvement Projects List 

Page 2 
 

 
2. Sand Point Harbor Float A Design: Move $105,226.00 from the project contingency 

line item (E20-866-209-888 project contingency) to the Sand Point Harbor line item 
(E20-831-209-850 capital construction) resulting in $205,226.00 in the Sand Point 
Harbor line item. The Assembly authorized the Mayor to negotiate and execute a contract 
with moffat & nichol for the Sand Point New Harbor “A” Float – Phase 1: Design and 
Permitting in an amount not to exceed $205,226.00 by the Assembly via Resolution 17-
29 at the June 30, 2017 Assembly Meeting. Per the November 2017 financials the 
Borough has expended $139,400.70 on this project.  
 

3. Cold Bay Preschool: Add a Cold Bay Preschool line item and move $13,500.00 from 
the project contingency line item (E20-866-209-888 project contingency). This was 
approved by the Assembly via Resolution 18-07 at the November 9, 2017 Assembly 
Meeting.  
 

4. False Pass School Assessment: Propose adding a project contingency line item to 
Dept. 800 – Capital – School Sub Dept. 857 False Pass School in the amount of $50,000 
to initiate an assessment of the False Pass School. The funds could be re-appropriated 
from the project contingency line item (E20-866-209-888 project contingency) in Dept. 
866 AEB projects.  
 

5. King Cove School Assessment:  Propose adding a project contingency line item to 
Dept. 800 – Capital – School Sub Dept. 868 King Cove School in the amount of $50,000 
to initiate an assessment of the king Cove School. The funds could be re-appropriated 
from the project contingency line item (E20-866-209-888 project contingency) in Dept. 
866 AEB projects.  
 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE 18-05 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET FOR 
THE ALEUTIANS EAST BOROUGH FISCAL YEAR 2018. 
 
Section 1.  Classification This is a non-code ordinance 
Section 2.  Effective Date This ordinance becomes effective upon Adoption. 
Section 3.  Severability The terms, provisions, and sections of this 

Ordinance are severable. 
Section 4.  Content The operating and capital budget for the Aleutians 

East Borough and the Aleutians East Borough 
School District for Fiscal Year 2018 is amended as 
follows: 

 
REVENUES       FY18 BUDGET 
   
Local       
 Interest Income    $35,000.00 
 AEB Fish Tax    $3,200,779.00 
 AEBSD Refund     
 Other Revenue    $50,000.00 
      
State      
 Shared Fishery Tax         $2,093,686.72 

 
Extraterritorial Fish 
Tax    $101,299 

 Landing Tax    $35,222 
 Debt Reimbursement   $1,311,650 
 State Aid to Local Government   $258,921 
Federal       
 Payment in Lieu of Taxes   $559,000 
 USF&WS Lands    $36,256 
       
 Total FY18 Revenues  $7,681,813.72 

       

 
AEBSD 
Revenue     $8,179,533 

 
       



Ordinance 18-05 

2 

 
 
 
 
OPERATING FUND EXPENDITURES       

       
 Mayor     $268,696 
 Assembly     $158,000 
 Administration    $344,450 
 Assistant Administrator    $144,825 
 Clerk/Planning    $189,920 
 Planning Commission    $55,500 
 Finance     $276,914 
 Natural Resources    $201,936 
 Communications Manager    $178,047 
 Maintenance Director    $118,657 
 Educational Support    $845,000 
 KCAP    $127,500 

 
Other 
Gen.Fund      

  Equipment    $35,000 
  AEB Vehicles    $40,000 
  Repairs    $5,000 
  Utilities    $25,000 
  Aleutia Crab    $58,522 
  Legal    $100,000 
  Insurance    $160,000 
  Bank Fees    $12,000 
  EATS    $150,000 
  Misc.   $96,000 
  Donations   $23,500 
  NLG Rev. Sharing   12,900 
  Web Service/Tech   $30,000 
           Total Other   $747,922 
      

 
Total General 
Fund    $3,657,367 

      
 Capital Projects    $0 
 Bond Projects    $0 

 Debt Services    $2,170,000 

 Maintenance Reserve    
$100,000 

     

 
Total 
Expenditure     5,927,367 

 
Transfer to Helicopter 
Operation    $1,500,000 



Ordinance 18-05 

3 

      
 AEB Surplus     $254,446 
      

 
AEBSD 
Expenses    

 
$8,179,533 

     
       
Fund 20, AEB Community Grant, Revenues    $2,954,000 
Fund 20, AEB Community Grant, Exp.    $2,954,000 
     
Fund 22, Helicopter, Revenues    $395,000 
Fund 22, Helicopter, Expenditures    $1,895,0000 
     
Fund 22, Terminal Operations, Revenues    $139,620 
Fund 22, Terminal Operations, Expenditures    $84,075 
       
Fund 24, Bond Project, Revenues   0 
Fund 24, Bond Project, Expenditures    0 
    
Fund 30, Bond Payments, Revenues   0 
Fund 30, Bond Payments, Expenditures   0 
    
Fund 40, Permanent Fund, Revenues   $35,000 
Fund 40, Permanent Fund, Expenditures   $35,000 
       
Fund 41, Maintenance Reserve, Revenues   $ 
Fund 41, Maintenance Reserve, Expenditures   $ 
       
    
    
       
    
   

 
Passed and adopted by the Aleutians East Borough Assembly this    day of 
February, 2018. 
 
Date Introduced:   01/11/2018 
 
Date Adopted:    
          
            
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Clerk  



REVENUES  FY17 BudgetFY18 Budget FY18 Mid-Year

AEBSD Revenues 8,128,388.00$           8,179,533.00$                     

Interest Income 35,000.00$                 35,000.00$                          

Local AEB Fish Tax 3,200,779.00$           3,200,779.00$                     

AEBSD Refund

Other Revenue 50,000.00$                 50,000.00$                          

State Shared Fishery Tax 2,067,181.00$                     2,093,686.72$                                

 Extraterritorial Fish Tax 101,299.00$               101,299.00$                        

Landing Tax 35,222.00$                 35,222.00$                          

Debt Reimbursement 1,311,650.00$           1,311,650.00$                     

State Aid to Local Governments 258,921.00$               258,921.00$                                    

Federal Payment in Lieu of Taxes 559,000.00$               559,000.00$                        

USF&WS Lands 36,256.00$                 36,256.00$                          

Total FY Revenues 7,655,308.00$           7,681,813.72$                    

Operating Fund Expenditures

Mayor 268,696.00$               268,696.00$                        

Assembly 158,000.00$               158,000.00$                        

Administration 344,450.00$               344,450.00$                        

Assistant Administrator 150,688.00$               144,825.00$                        

Clerk/Planning 189,920.00$               189,920.00$                        

Planning Commission 55,500.00$                 55,500.00$                          

Finance 266,914.00$               276,914.00$                        

Natural Resources 201,936.00$               201,936.00$                        

Communication Manager 178,047.00$               178,047.00$                        

Maintenance Director  118,657.00$               118,657.00$                        

Educational Support 845,000.00$               845,000.00$                        

KCAP 127,500.00$               127,500.00$                        

Other GF    

Equipment 35,000.00$                 35,000.00$                          

AEB Vehicles -$                             40,000.00$                          

Repairs 5,000.00$                   5,000.00$                            

Utilities 25,000.00$                 25,000.00$                          

Aleutia Crab  58,522.00$                 58,522.00$                          

Legal 100,000.00$               100,000.00$                        

Insurance 160,000.00$               160,000.00$                        

Bank Fees 12,000.00$                 12,000.00$                          

EATS 150,000.00$               150,000.00$                        

Misc. 96,000.00$                 96,000.00$                          

Donations 23,500.00$                 23,500.00$                          



NLG Rev. Sharing  12,900.00$                 12,900.00$                          

Web Service/Tech Support 30,000.00$                 30,000.00$                          

707,922.00$              747,922.00$                        

Total General Fund 3,613,230.00$                3,657,367.00$                          

Capital Projects

Bond Projects

Debt Services 2,170,000.00$           2,170,000.00$                     

Maintenance Reserve 100,000.00$               100,000.00$                        

Total Expenditure 5,883,230.00$           5,927,367.00$                    

Transfer to Helicopter Operation 1,500,000.00$           1,500,000.00$                     

AEB Surplus 227,941.00$               254,446.72$                      

  

AEBSD  Expenditures 8,128,388.00$           8,179,533.00$                    

Fund 20 Community Grants AEB, Revenues 2,954,000.00$           2,954,000.00$                     

Community Grants AEB, Expenditures 2,954,000.00$           2,954,000.00$                     

Fund 22, Helicopter, Revenues 395,000.00$               395,000.00$                        

Fund 22, Helicopter, Expenditures  1,895,000.00$           1,895,000.00$                   

Fund 22, Terminal Operations, Revenues 139,620.00$               139,620.00$                        

Fund 22, Terminal Operations, Expenditures 84,075.00$                84,075.00$                        

Fund 24, Bond Project, Revenues -$                             -$                                      

Fund 24, Bond Project, Expenditures -$                             -$                                      

Fund 30, Bond Payments, Revenues -$                             -$                                      

Fund 30, Bond Payments, Expenditures -$                             -$                                      

Fund 40, Permanent Fund, Revenues 35,000.00$                 35,000.00$                          

Fund 40, Permanent Fund, Expenditures 35,000.00$                 35,000.00$                          

Fund 41 Maintenance Reserve, Revenues -$                             -$                                      

Fund 41 Maintenance Reserve, Expenditures -$                             -$                                      



FY18 Budget FY18 Mid-Year

Mayor's Office  

Salary 80,364.00$       80,364.00$           
Fringe 29,232.00$        29,232.00$            

Travel 36,000.00$        36,000.00$            

Phone 1,500.00$          1,500.00$              

Supplies 1,000.00$          1,000.00$              

Lobbying, federal 75,600.00$        75,600.00$            

Lobbying, state 45,000.00$        45,000.00$            

Total Mayor's Office 268,696.00$     268,696.00$          

Assembly

Meeting Fee 25,000.00$        25,000.00$            

Fringe 90,000.00$        90,000.00$            

Travel 40,000.00$        40,000.00$            

Supplies 3,000.00$          3,000.00$              

Total Assembly 158,000.00$     158,000.00$          

Administration

Salary 177,008.00$     177,008.00$          

Fringe 66,438.00$        66,438.00$            

Engineering 25,000.00$        25,000.00$            

Travel & per diem 25,500.00$        25,500.00$            

Phone 7,100.00$          7,100.00$              

Postage 2,500.00$          2,500.00$              

Supplies 15,000.00$        15,000.00$            

Rent 23,404.00$        23,404.00$            

Dues & fees 2,500.00$          2,500.00$              

Total Administration 344,450.00$     344,450.00$          

Assistant Administrator

Salary 95,863.00$        90,000.00$            

Fringe 31,422.00$        31,422.00$            

Travel 10,000.00$        10,000.00$            

Phone 2,000.00$          2,000.00$              

Supplies 2,500.00$          2,500.00$              

Rent 8,903.00$          8,903.00$              

Total Assistant Administrator 150,688.00$     144,825.00$          

Clerk/Planning

Salary 93,974.00$        93,974.00$            

Fringe 34,946.00$        34,946.00$            

Travel & per diem 12,500.00$        12,500.00$            

Phone 7,500.00$          7,500.00$              

Postage 1,000.00$          1,000.00$              

Supplies 5,000.00$          5,000.00$              

Utilities 20,000.00$        20,000.00$            



Dues & fees 5,000.00$          5,000.00$              

Elections 10,000.00$        10,000.00$            

 

Total Clerk/Planning 189,920.00$     189,920.00$          

Planning Commission

Salary 10,000.00$        10,000.00$            

Fringe 500.00$             500.00$                  

Contract 25,000.00$        25,000.00$            

Travel/Per diem 20,000.00$        20,000.00$            

Permitting -$                    -$                        

Total Planning Commission 55,500.00$       55,500.00$            

Finance

Salary 135,049.00$     135,049.00$          

Fringe 53,365.00$        53,365.00$            

Travel & per diem 7,000.00$          7,000.00$              

Phone 8,000.00$          8,000.00$              

Postage 1,000.00$          1,000.00$              

Supplies 7,500.00$          7,500.00$              

Utilities 5,000.00$          5,000.00$              

Audit 50,000.00$         60,000.00$            

Total Finance 266,914.00$     276,914.00$          

Natural Resources

Salary 92,571.00$        92,571.00$            

Fringe 31,462.00$        31,462.00$            

Travel & per diem 20,000.00$        20,000.00$            

Phone 1,500.00$          1,500.00$              

Supplies 2,500.00$          2,500.00$              

NPFMC 15,000.00$        15,000.00$            

BOF Meeting 30,000.00$        30,000.00$            

Rent 8,903.00$          8,903.00$              

Total 201,936.00$     201,936.00$          

Communication Manager  

Salary 98,973.00$        98,973.00$            

Fringe 34,158.00$        34,158.00$            

Travel & per diem 15,000.00$        15,000.00$            

Phone 2,400.00$          2,400.00$              

Supplies 2,500.00$          2,500.00$              

Rent 10,016.00$        10,016.00$            

Advertising/promotions 15,000.00$        15,000.00$            

Total 178,047.00$     178,047.00$          

Other Equipment 35,000.00$        35,000.00$            



AEB Vehicles -$                    40,000.00$            

Repairs 5,000.00$          5,000.00$              

Utilities 25,000.00$        25,000.00$            

Aleutia Crab 58,522.00$        58,522.00$            

Legal 100,000.00$     100,000.00$          

Insurance 160,000.00$     160,000.00$          

Bank Fees 12,000.00$        12,000.00$            

EATS 150,000.00$     150,000.00$          

Misc. 96,000.00$        96,000.00$            

Donations 23,500.00$        23,500.00$            

NLG Rev. Sharing 12,900.00$        12,900.00$            

Web Service/Tech Support 30,000.00$        30,000.00$            

Total Other 707,922.00$     747,922.00$          

Maintenance Director

Salary 64,633.00$        64,633.00$            

Fringe 31,024.00$        31,024.00$            

Travel & per diem 15,000.00$        15,000.00$            

Phone 1,000.00$          1,000.00$              

Supplies 5,000.00$          5,000.00$              

Utilities 2,000.00$          2,000.00$              

Total Public Works 118,657.00$     118,657.00$          

Education

Local Contribution 800,000.00$     800,000.00$          

Scholarships 25,000.00$        25,000.00$            

Student travel 20,000.00$        20,000.00$            

 

Total Educational Support 845,000.00$     845,000.00$          

KCAP

Salary 2,500.00$          2,500.00$              

Fringe 20,000.00$        20,000.00$            

Travel & per diem 4,000.00$          4,000.00$              

Supplies 1,000.00$          1,000.00$              

Maintenance 100,000.00$     100,000.00$          

 127,500.00$     127,500.00$          

TOTAL OPERATING BUDGT 3,613,230.00$  3,663,230.00$      



FY17 Mid YearFY18 FY18 Mid-Year

Fund 22 Terminal Operations

Revenues
Remaining construction Loan/
Remaining FAA reimbursement
Other Income
Leases 139,620.00$           139,620.00$           

 139,620.00$           139,620.00$          

Expenses
Salary 27,958.00$             27,958.00$             

Fringe 3,617.00$                3,617.00$               

Contract
Travel & Perdiem
Phone, Internet 4,500.00$                4,500.00$               

Supplies 7,500.00$                7,500.00$               

Rental/Lease
Utilities 24,000.00$             24,000.00$             

Fuel/Gas 1,500.00$                1,500.00$               

Fuel/diesel 15,000.00$             15,000.00$             

84,075.00$             84,075.00$             

Fund 22 Helicopter Operations

 Revenues
 
Medivacs 5,000.00$                5,000.00$               

Freight 90,000.00$             90,000.00$             

Other Income
Tickets, fees, etc. 300,000.00$           300,000.00$           

395,000.00$           395,000.00$          

Expenses
Salary 130,520.00$           130,520.00$           

Fringe 32,140.00$             32,140.00$             

Travel 5,000.00$                5,000.00$               

Phone/Internet 2,140.00$                2,140.00$               

Supplies 60,000.00$             60,000.00$             

Contract 1,453,000.00$        1,453,000.00$       

Fuel/gas 12,000.00$             12,000.00$             

Fuel/diesel 150,000.00$           150,000.00$           

Insurance 18,200.00$             18,200.00$             

Utilities 8,000.00$                8,000.00$               

Rent/Lease 24,000.00$             24,000.00$             

1,895,000.00$        1,895,000.00$       



Aleutians East Borough--Capital Project List

Proposed FY18 Capital Project Funding-PFE Allocation

Project

Possible Funding 

Source(s) Current Funding

FY17 Budget 

as Amended

Approved 

FY18 Budget

FY18 Mid-Year 

Budget 

Amendment

False Pass Harbor Bonds/Leg 339,265$             

Akutan Harbor Bonds/Leg -$                         100,000$        -$                     

Akutan Harbor Floats - B Float Various 427,540$             -$                     -$                     

King Cove Access Road Leg * 512,500$        512,500$        

Sand Point School Repairs -$                         50,000$           110,000.00$        *Sand Point School Electrical

Nelson Lagoon Erosion Leg/PFE 903,000$             -$                     

Cold Bay Clinic Leg/Bonds/PFE 1,618,139$          -$                     1,000,000$     

Akutan Airport Transportation Link CSA/Leg/Bonds ** -$                     -$                     

King Cove Harbor-Stub Breakwater Leg/Bonds -$                         -$                     -$                     

Sand Point Harbor Floats -$                     -$                     

   -Design/Eng/Mgmt. PFE -$                         100,000$         105,226.00$        *Sand Point Float A

   -Construction Leg/Bonds -$                         -$                     -$                     

Cold Bay Dock/Harbor Leg/Bonds -$                         -$                     -$                     

Nelson Lagoon Dock Repairs PFE/Leg/Bonds -$                         125,000$        900,000$        

Nelson Lagoon School-Renovations 50,000$          

Cold Bay School 50,000$           13,500.00$          *Cold Bay Preschool

Cold Bay Preschool

Akutan School Repairs 50,000$          

King Cove School Assessment  50,000.00$          *

False Pass School Assessment  50,000.00$          *

False Pass Harbor House -$                     -$                     

   -Design/Eng Other -$                         -$                     100,000$        

Borough Property Surveys -$                         85,000$          85,000$          

Total Project Funding 1,122,500$     2,597,500$     

AEB Capital Project Contingency Fund 245,500$        356,500$        27,774.00$          

-$                     -$                     

Total PFE & Contingency Fund 1,368,000$     2,954,000$     2,954,000.00$    

*This project has funding from the 

following sources: $2 million State 

grant; FY17-$100,000; $2 million ADOT 

for construction

**This project includes approx. $5.5 

million in funding from Borough bonds, 

State funds and a State grant to the City 

of Akutan



 
 

Ordinances 

tanderson
Typewritten Text
Introduction Ordinances under consent agenda at this time.



 

 

Resolutions 

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text
All under Consent Agenda at this time.

tanderson
Typewritten Text



 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text
None



New Business 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text
None.



REPORTS AND UPDATES 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor Osterback and AEB Assembly 
From:  Anne Bailey, Borough Administrator 
Subject: Assembly Report  
Date:  February 1, 2018 
 
Washington DC Trip 
On January 22, 2018, the King Cove Corporation and U.S. Interior Secretary Zinke signed a land 
exchange that will allow the community to establish reliable overland access to Cold Bay. Now 
that the agreement has been signed the Interior and King Cove Native Corporation will begin 
identifying land of equal value to be exchanged between the two entities to construct the road.  
 
While in DC, Mayor Osterback, Borough Lobbyist Brad Gilman and I met with the U.S. 
Department of Transportation to discuss the essential air service program in Akutan; the Army 
Corps to discuss the Akun Dock and Breakwater Feasibility Study and with the Alaska 
Delegation to discuss the False Pass Harbor litigation and the feasibility study on Akun.  
 
Juneau Trip 
While in Juneau, the group met with Speaker of the House Edgmon; Governor Walker, 
Commission Luiken (DOT&PF; Senator Cathy Giessel; Representative Paul Seaton, 
Commission Cotton (ADF&G); Representative Jonathan Kreiss-Tomkin’s staff; Commissioner 
Mack (DNR) Commissioner Navarre (DCCED); the United States Coast Guard and Senator 
Hoffman’s staff. Mayor Osterback also testified in front of the House Fisheries committee 
regarding House Bill 188. The Borough’s focus was to support the King Cove/Cold Bay Road, 
discuss the limited entry salmon permits and to discuss the Cold Bay Clinic construction project 
and the Akun Breakwater project.  
 
King Cove/Cold Bay Lawsuit 
On January 31, 2018, nine environmental groups, led by Friends of Alaska Wildlife Refuges, 
filed a complaint in federal court naming Secretary of the Interior Ryan Zinke, his agency and 
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service as defendants. A link to the ADN article is below: 
https://www.adn.com/alaska-news/rural-alaska/2018/01/31/environmental-groups-sue-trump-
administration-over-road-through-alaska-wildlife-refuge-2/ 
 
A link to the lawsuit complaint is found below: 
https://s3.amazonaws.com/arc-wordpress-client-uploads/adn/wp-
content/uploads/2018/01/31022933/2018-01-31-complaint.pdf 
 

 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

Hovercraft Update 
The Borough Maritime Attorney and Keith Whittemore are working on the final changes to the 
Purchase and Sale Agreement with JSC “Circle Maritime Invest.” I hope to have a final 
agreement signed soon.   
 
A fourth amendment to the Letter of Intent with JSC “Circle Maritime Invest” was executed 
extending the date for Borough approval of the Purchase and Sale of the hovercraft to February 
9, 2018. This extension will allow additional time for the negotiation of the final details of the 
Purchase and Sale Agreement.  
 
Logistics are also being arranged for the transport of the hovercraft. I anticipate the move to 
occur during the third week of February.   
 
Borough Strategic Plan 
Mayor Osterback, Mary and I met with PGS on Monday, January 29th to finalize a few more 
items for the Strategic Plan. A draft version of the plan will be presented to the Assembly at the 
February 8, 2018 Assembly Meeting for review and approval.  
 
Budget Work Session  
A Borough Budget Work Session has been scheduled on February 28th from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 
p.m. (lunch provided) in Anchorage. Currently APCM and Newhouse & Vogler will be present 
to discuss the Borough’s investment accounts and our FY2017 audit. An agenda will be available 
soon.  
 
Other Items 

 Just a reminder that the SWAMC conference is scheduled on March 1st and 2nd. 
 I am also continuously conducting other day to day operations.  

 
If you have any questions, comments or concerns please contact me at (907) 274-7580 or 
abailey@aeboro.org. 
 

   
Mayor Mack, Mayor Schaack,       Visiting with Senator Sullivan 
      Mayor Osterback  
 



3 | P a g e  
 

 

   
Governor Walker and Lt. Governor Mallott         Cake with Senator Murkowksi 
 

  
     Mayor Osterback testifying before the   Mayor Mack with Speaker of the  

House Fisheries Committee    House Edgmon 



   

1 
 

To:  The Honorable Mayor Osterback, AEB Assembly  
From:   Mary Tesche, Assistant Administrator 
Subject: Assembly Report 
Date:  February 2, 2018  
 
 
Strategic Planning 
 

• Anne and I met with Professional Growth Systems several times in the past few weeks to 
put together the Strategic Plan draft. We also met with Mayor Osterback to finalize the 
plan and include any last-minute projects and initiatives.  

• We held meetings with staff to discuss certain project outcomes they will be responsible 
for. Each person will submit a detailed list of action items to complete their assigned 
project outcome. Those will be submitted by mid-February to give us enough time to 
review and make changes as necessary before the first quarter begins on March 1. 
 

Cold Bay Clinic 
• The Rasmuson Foundation Letter of Intent was submitted on January 22nd, 2017.  
• The Rasmuson Foundation will then need to invite the Borough to submit a grant 

application that will be due by March. If the Borough is successful in receiving a grant 
from the Foundation, project funding will be available in 2019. 

• The Borough submitted a request to the State of Alaska CAPSIS for $500,000 for clinic 
construction. By our estimates, we still need an additional $2.4M for the project. This is 
an increase of approximately $200,000 due to adding additional line items for 
architectural and engineering, and administrative costs. 

• The Cold Bay Clinic is included on the Borough’s Strategic Plan (subject to review and 
approval of Assembly Resolution 18-27). There are several project components planned 
for the next year, including a project assessment and identifying funding opportunities. I 
will be working in partnership with EAT and the City of Cold Bay to identify and secure 
funding sources for construction. 

 
Helicopter Operation Summary - January 

• I will provide an oral report of the January helicopter operations during the Assembly 
meeting. 

• I continue to work on a number of personnel items related to the helicopter operation. 
This work is ongoing.  

• I have been assisting with preparing the hangar for hovercraft transport. This has included 
coordinating inspections for equipment and replacing equipment parts as needed.  

• Anne and I will be traveling to Akutan February 14th-16th to discuss helicopter operations 
with the crew and our employees. I will give a report on this trip during the next 
Assembly meeting.  
 

Other Items 
• I attended the City of Akutan Council Meeting on behalf of the Borough on January 23rd. 

I gave a report on the hovercraft sale, the CAPSIS request for the Akun Breakwater and 
Dock project, and the upcoming trip to Akutan. 



   

2 
 

• I am working with the Borough Clerk and the Borough Attorney on a records retention 
Ordinance. I am reviewing a draft records retention schedule that will be presented at a 
future Assembly meeting.  

• We published a Request for Proposals for Auditing Services on Monday, January 29th. 
Proposals are due on February 13th, and Assembly approval of the contract is planned for 
the next meeting. 

• Anne and I met with the Mayor and Maintenance Director to discuss the draft 
Memorandum of Understanding between the Borough and the School District for 
maintenance. The draft is being revised and will be presented to the Superintendent for 
review soon.  

• I continue to help with daily operations as needed. 
 
Please contact me at (907) 274-7559 or mtesche@aeboro.org with any questions or comments.  
 

mailto:mtesche@aeboro.org


  www.aebfish.org   www.facebook.com/AEBfish  eweiss@aeboro.org   907-274-7557   2/2/18   page 1         

 
To:  The Honorable Mayor Osterback, Aleutians East Borough Assembly  
From:  Ernie Weiss, Natural Resources Director  
Subj:  Report to the Assembly  
Date:  February 2, 2018 
 
International Pacific Halibut Commission 
 The IPHC held their Annual Meeting last week in Portland. For only the second time in the 94 
year history of the IPHC, the US and Canadian Commissioners were unable to agree on Pacific halibut 
catch limits for 2018. Each country will now go through separate processes to set catch limits. If the US 
Commissioners catch limit recommendations for the US areas are approved, our South Peninsula Area 3B 
will take the biggest hit – a reduction of 17.84% from 2017 down to 3.27 million pounds for 2018. 

The Commission tabled until 2020 any action on IPHC Proposal A-1 ‘to consider the intent and 
purpose of the IPHC Closed Area’ that stretches along the northern shore of the AEB from Stroganoff 
Point to Cape Sarichef and extends seaward approximately 150 miles. The area is currently closed to 
directed halibut fishing with the intent to protect juvenile halibut. 
 The Pacific halibut season will open March 24, 2018 and close on November 7, 2018. 
 
North Pacific Fishery Management Council/NMFS 

The Council meets in Seattle February 5th – 12th. One major agenda item slated for initial review 
would raise the Chinook PSC limit for non-pollock trawl fisheries in the GOA. There is also a full-day 
Ecosystem Research workshop for the AP, SSC, Council & public Wednesday Feb 7. As a member of the 
steering committee for this workshop, I’ve participated in several planning teleconferences the past few 
months in preparation for the workshop.  Go to www.npfmc.org for more info. 

 The comment period for the 5-year review of  the western DPS Steller sea lion closes Feb 6th. I 
am submitting comments to NMFS on behalf of the AEB requesting 3 rookery sites within the AEB be 
added to the list of sites where a one nautical mile buffer is sufficient for vessel transit (currently 3nm) 
for vessel safety. Link to my comments on the 5-year review of the SSL endangered species listing here. 
 
Boards of Game and Fisheries 
  The Board of Game meets in Dillingham this month 16th through the 23rd, and will consider 
southwest AK game proposals. I submitted comment in support of ADFG Proposal 126 that would 
increase the bag limit for the South Alaska Peninsula caribou herd in Unit 9D as the population increases. 
Other game proposals of interest at this meeting: Proposal 131 to remove the brown bear bag limit of 1 
every 4 years for resident hunters; Proposal 132 to create a resident only early season for brown bear; 
Proposal 134 to restrict ptarmigan hunting in Unit 9. More info including live stream of the meeting here. 

The Board of Fish meets for the final time this cycle for the Statewide Dungeness Crab, Shrimp, 
& Miscellaneous Shellfish meeting on March 6-9, 2018. Of interest to fishermen in our region: Proposal 
236 would increase  the  Dutch  Harbor  food  and  bait  herring  fishery  allocation,  eliminate  the  Dutch 
Harbor food and bait herring fishery allocations between gear types, and allow the Dutch Harbor food and 
bait herring fishery to open earlier on June 1st.  The board will also consider new Dungeness crab fishery 
regs for our region at this meeting. More info on the Board of Fisheries March meeting found here. 

I have recently been in contact with our local Fish & Game Advisory Committees; we hope to 
bring representatives from each AC and/or community to Anchorage in preparation for submitting Board 
of Fish proposals for the next cycle, deadline April 10th. This could be an opportunity for our local AC’s 
to work together and to work with our salmon genetics expert Eric Volk. Fish & Game regional AC 
coordinator Taryn Oconner-Brito is also interested in helping out. Our most likely available window of 
time for this session is probably around the first week in April. 

http://www.aebfish.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish
mailto:eweiss@aeboro.org
http://www.npfmc.org/
http://www.aebfish.org/sslcomment020118.pdf
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/index.cfm?adfg=gameboard.main
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static/regulations/regprocess/fisheriesboard/pdfs/2017-2018/proposals/236.pdf
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/static/regulations/regprocess/fisheriesboard/pdfs/2017-2018/proposals/236.pdf
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/index.cfm?adfg=fisheriesboard.meetinginfo&date=03-06-2018&meeting=anchorage


  www.aebfish.org   www.facebook.com/AEBfish  eweiss@aeboro.org   907-274-7557   2/2/18   page 2         

Municipal Entitlement Lands 
I checked in this week with the State survey office responsible for approving the Port Moller 

survey, ASLS 2016-49, and also responsible for issuing the survey instructions for our next muni lands 
survey project area – Sandy River. I also spoke this week with Bill McClintock, whose firm surveyed Port 
Moller and is slated to survey our Sandy River tracts.  

Regarding the approval of ASLS 2016-49, McClintock and Assoc. have responded to several State 
requests of clarification or correction, but McClintock will likely need to return to Port Moller to install 2 
additional monuments near to Love Creek before final approval. 

Survey instructions could be ready for the Sandy River survey project as soon as March 1, which 
would allow for early season field work. Because the survey instructions can take up to a year or more to 
receive, the Assembly may wish to begin prioritizing which municipal lands should be surveyed next after 
Sandy River. I will have several alternatives for Assembly consideration at the next meeting. 

As a result of the December AEB Planning Session, and a followup meeting in January with 
Administrators Anne & Mary, I have started outlining the required tasks on a timeline for this ongoing 
municipal lands survey project, using PGS’s Vision Navigation® Outcome Definition forms. This new 
process is likely to benefit all AEB projects. 
 
State & Federal Issues 
 After the AEB and other cities and tribes penned a request to Governor Walker for a GOA Pacific 
cod fishery disaster declaration consideration, the Governors office soon replied that their office is already 
working with the Department of Fish and Game to compile the information necessary for the Governor to 
make a decision to potentially request the Secretary of Commerce make a determination. 
 I have recently been working with Mayor Osterback, Laura and Mark Hickey to move forward the 
concept outlined in AEB Resolution 18-23, to allow an additional name on limited entry salmon permits, 
through the Alaska Legislative process.  
 I also recently drafted a memorandum in support of onshore processing and in support of 
sideboards applied to any Jones Act waivers for new offshore catcher processor vessels that could decrease 
onshore seafood processing in the AEB. The memorandum was given to the Alaska Delegation when the 
Mayor and Administrator recently traveled to DC. The memo is attached to this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
I will in Seattle for the NPFMC February meeting and am not able to attend this Assembly meeting. 

Recent meetings attended 
Anchorage ADFG Advisory Committee meeting    Anchorage  1/9/18 
Alaska Marine Science Symposium     Anchorage  1/22-1/25/18 
International Pacific Halibut Commission Annual Meeting  (Portland) Webcast 1/23-1/26/18 
Ecosystem Research Workshop Steering Committee   Teleconference  1/29/18  
Chignik Fish & Game Advisory Committee meeting   Teleconference  1/31/18 
 

Upcoming meetings/planning to attend 
North Pacific Fishery Management Council    Seattle   2/5-2/12/18 
Alaska Board of Game SW AK meeting in Dillingham   Webcast  2/16-2/23/18 
Southwest Alaska Municipal Conference    Capt Cook Hotel 3/1-3/2/18 
Board of Fisheries Dungeness/Statewide meeting   Egan Center  3/6 – 3/9/18 

Please call if you have any questions or concerns. 

 

http://www.aebfish.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AEBfish
mailto:eweiss@aeboro.org
http://www.aebfish.org/pcodletter122917.pdf
http://www.aebfish.org/aebres1823.pdf


AKUTAN . COLD BAY . NTI.'ON IAGOON

IAI.'[ PA's. KING COVI . 
'AND 

POINI

January 22,2018

Aleutians East Borough Request for Sideboards to Jones Act Waiver

The Aleutians East Borough and all of our communities are highly dependent on fisheries in the

Gulf of Alaska and the Bering Sea, particularly fish that are delivered onshore to our shore-based

processors. These shore-based processors collect the raw fish tax on shore-based deliveries in our

communities that fund our local govemments, and the continued presence of these shore-based

processing companies in our communities maintains a foundation for the local economies.

The Aleutians East Borough supports the continued shore-based processing of the fish harvested

off of our shores. We oppose any increase in the amount of fish processed offshore in the Gulf of
Alaska and the Bering Sea that would reduce the amount of fish processed onshore and negatively

impact regional shore-based processors and the communities they help sustain.

A proposed legislative waiver of the Jones Act, that requires all steel that is used in the hulls of
newly built US fishing vessels be fabricated within the United States, could potentially threaten

our local onshore processors and communities. The company "Fisherman's Finest" that operates

vessels in the Amendment 80 sector, is requesting a waiver for the new vessel "America's Finest"

that has been built with at least l0olo foreign steel in the hull. Fishermen's Finest has been

increasing Pacific cod production in recent years and this new vessel, if granted the Jones Act

waiver, would allow their fleet to unfaitly take an even larger percentage of the open access Pacific

cod quota to be processed offshore, reducing the amount available onshore, thus harming our

communities.

The Aleutians East Borough requests that if a Jones Act waiver is granted for the new non-

compliant vessel America's Finest, that Congress include 'sideboards' that would prohibit

Fishermen's Finest vessels from increasing fishing/processing activities in open access fisheries

beyond the company's current levels, particularly Pacific cod in the Gulf of Alaska and Bering

Sea. Attaching these sideboards to the proposed waiver could give the North Pacific Fishery

Management Council an opportunity to consider the issue, meanwhile protecting our local coastal

communities.

Contact: Ernie Weiss, Natural Resources Director eweiss@aeboro.org

ANCHOMGB OFFTCE . 3380 C Street, Ste. 20t . Anchorage, Arggr13.-3,95}. (907) 274-7555 . Fax: (907) 276_7j69

KING C0YE OFFICE . P.0. Box 49 . King Cove, l&99612 . (907) 497-2588 . Fax: (907) 497-2386

SAND P0INT OffiCE . P.0. Box 349 . Sand Point, M 99661 . (907) 383-2699 . Farc: (907) 383-3496



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To:  Honorable Mayor Osterback and Aleutians East Borough Assembly 

From:  Laura Tanis, AEB Communications Director 

Through:  Anne Bailey, AEB Administrator 

Subject: Communications Director’s Report to the Assembly 

Date:  Feb. 2, 2018 

 
 
Trip to Washington, D.C.: (Jan. 21 – 24th) 
 
Our group traveled to Washington, D.C. for the King Cove land exchange signing ceremony between the 
King Cove Corporation and the Department of the Interior. Those who traveled to Washington, D.C. 
included AEB Mayor Alvin Osterback, AEB Administrator Anne Bailey, myself, King Cove Mayor Henry 
Mack, King Cove Administrator Gary Hennigh, King Cove Corporation spokeswoman Della Trumble, 
Aleut Corporation President/CEO Thomas Mack, Cold Bay Mayor Dailey Schaack and Cold Bay 
Administrator Angela Simpson. The signing ceremony took place at the Department of the Interior with 
Secretary Ryan Zinke, Sen. Lisa Murkowski, Sen. Dan Sullivan, Congressman Don Young, Governor Bill 
Walker and Lt. Governor Byron Mallott. Afterwards, there was a press conference for the national media. 
Later in the day, there was another media press event via teleconference for the Alaska media. The media 
events involved coordination with communications directors/press secretaries from DOI, the Alaska 
Delegation and the Governor’s office. Both events were well-attended. They resulted in news stories from 
the New York Times, the Washington Post, the Washington Examiner, E & E News, The Hill, Politico, the 
Alaska Dispatch, the Fairbanks Daily News-Miner, the Alaska Journal of Commerce, APRN, KTUU and 
others. Here are the links to the news stories: 
 
Washington Post: 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/energy-environment/wp/2018/01/22/zinke-to-sign-land-swap-
deal-allowing-road-through-alaskas-izembek-wilderness/?utm_term=.2a5f11d17fb9 
 
New York Times/Associated Press: 
https://www.nytimes.com/aponline/2018/01/22/us/ap-us-alaska-wilderness-road.html 
 
Washington Examiner: 
http://www.washingtonexaminer.com/ryan-zinke-announces-deal-allowing-road-through-alaska-wildlife-
refuge/article/2646653 
 
 
E&E News:  

https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/energy-environment/wp/2018/01/22/zinke-to-sign-land-swap-deal-allowing-road-through-alaskas-izembek-wilderness/?utm_term=.2a5f11d17fb9
https://www.washingtonpost.com/news/energy-environment/wp/2018/01/22/zinke-to-sign-land-swap-deal-allowing-road-through-alaskas-izembek-wilderness/?utm_term=.2a5f11d17fb9
https://www.nytimes.com/aponline/2018/01/22/us/ap-us-alaska-wilderness-road.html
http://www.washingtonexaminer.com/ryan-zinke-announces-deal-allowing-road-through-alaska-wildlife-refuge/article/2646653
http://www.washingtonexaminer.com/ryan-zinke-announces-deal-allowing-road-through-alaska-wildlife-refuge/article/2646653


https://www.eenews.net/stories/1060071575  
 
The Hill: 
http://thehill.com/policy/energy-environment/370106-zinke-advances-road-through-alaska-wildlife-
refuge  
 
Politico: 
https://www.politico.com/agenda/story/2018/01/26/trump-policy-trade-pollution-rules-000625 
 
Alaska Dispatch: 
https://www.adn.com/politics/2018/01/22/king-cove-and-feds-sign-deal-to-advance-proposed-road-
through-wildlife-refuge/ 
 
Fairbanks Daily News-Miner: 
http://www.newsminer.com/news/alaska_news/king-cove-road-moves-ahead-after-long-
delay/article_77745fda-fff0-11e7-9d5b-affa6a18132c.html 
 
Alaska Journal of Commerce: 
http://www.alaskajournal.com/2018-01-22/king-cove-road-deal-checks-another-item-alaska-do-
list#.Wme42JM-eRs 
 
KTUU: 
http://www.ktuu.com/content/news/US-approves-Alaska-road.html 
 
http://www.graydc.com/content/news/Secretary-Zinke-signs-land-transfer-paving-way-for-King-Cove-
road-470567733.html 
 
KTBY: 
http://www.youralaskalink.com/news/alaska-s-d-c-delegation-express-king-cove-
gratitude/article_364c1f8c-ffe3-11e7-b4bb-7f45fa6afb0b.html  
 
APRN: 
https://www.alaskapublic.org/2018/01/22/zinke-signs-land-trade-to-allow-road-for-king-cove/  
 
Transportation Today News.com:  
https://transportationtodaynews.com/news/7771-republicans-democrats-diverge-proposed-land-transfer-
build-road-alaskas-izembek-national-wildlife-refuge/ 
 
Daily Caller: 
http://dailycallernewsfoundation.org/2018/01/22/trump-personally-promised-senator-murkowski-hed-
help-this-remote-alaskan-village/ 
 
WNYC Radio – The Takeaway: 
https://www.wnyc.org/story/zinke-paves-way-road-through-alaskan-wildlife-refuge/ 
 
KFQD  - interview with Sen. Murkowski:  
https://soundcloud.com/kfqd/1-23-18-dave-stieren-show-senator-lisa-murkowski?in=kfqd/sets/dontmiss  
 
KSDP radio - interview with Sen. Murkowski: 
http://apradio.org/mp3/2018-01-24-LisaMurkowski.mp3  
 

https://www.eenews.net/stories/1060071575
http://thehill.com/policy/energy-environment/370106-zinke-advances-road-through-alaska-wildlife-refuge
http://thehill.com/policy/energy-environment/370106-zinke-advances-road-through-alaska-wildlife-refuge
https://www.adn.com/politics/2018/01/22/king-cove-and-feds-sign-deal-to-advance-proposed-road-through-wildlife-refuge/
https://www.adn.com/politics/2018/01/22/king-cove-and-feds-sign-deal-to-advance-proposed-road-through-wildlife-refuge/
http://www.newsminer.com/news/alaska_news/king-cove-road-moves-ahead-after-long-delay/article_77745fda-fff0-11e7-9d5b-affa6a18132c.html
http://www.newsminer.com/news/alaska_news/king-cove-road-moves-ahead-after-long-delay/article_77745fda-fff0-11e7-9d5b-affa6a18132c.html
http://www.alaskajournal.com/2018-01-22/king-cove-road-deal-checks-another-item-alaska-do-list#.Wme42JM-eRs
http://www.alaskajournal.com/2018-01-22/king-cove-road-deal-checks-another-item-alaska-do-list#.Wme42JM-eRs
http://www.ktuu.com/content/news/US-approves-Alaska-road.html
http://www.graydc.com/content/news/Secretary-Zinke-signs-land-transfer-paving-way-for-King-Cove-road-470567733.html
http://www.graydc.com/content/news/Secretary-Zinke-signs-land-transfer-paving-way-for-King-Cove-road-470567733.html
http://www.youralaskalink.com/news/alaska-s-d-c-delegation-express-king-cove-gratitude/article_364c1f8c-ffe3-11e7-b4bb-7f45fa6afb0b.html
http://www.youralaskalink.com/news/alaska-s-d-c-delegation-express-king-cove-gratitude/article_364c1f8c-ffe3-11e7-b4bb-7f45fa6afb0b.html
https://www.alaskapublic.org/2018/01/22/zinke-signs-land-trade-to-allow-road-for-king-cove/
https://transportationtodaynews.com/news/7771-republicans-democrats-diverge-proposed-land-transfer-build-road-alaskas-izembek-national-wildlife-refuge/
https://transportationtodaynews.com/news/7771-republicans-democrats-diverge-proposed-land-transfer-build-road-alaskas-izembek-national-wildlife-refuge/
http://dailycallernewsfoundation.org/2018/01/22/trump-personally-promised-senator-murkowski-hed-help-this-remote-alaskan-village/
http://dailycallernewsfoundation.org/2018/01/22/trump-personally-promised-senator-murkowski-hed-help-this-remote-alaskan-village/
https://www.wnyc.org/story/zinke-paves-way-road-through-alaskan-wildlife-refuge/
https://soundcloud.com/kfqd/1-23-18-dave-stieren-show-senator-lisa-murkowski?in=kfqd/sets/dontmiss
http://apradio.org/mp3/2018-01-24-LisaMurkowski.mp3


KUCB radio - interview with Sen. Murkowski:   
http://kucb.org/post/newscast-012318  
 
The Cordova Times: 
https://www.thecordovatimes.com/2018/01/26/feds-okay-king-cove-road-wildlife-refuge/ 
 
 
On Jan. 31, 2018, nine environmental groups filed a lawsuit against the Department of the Interior, Interior 
Secretary Ryan Zinke and USF&WS. Several news stories followed. We provided a quote from Della 
Trumble and will monitor the lawsuit. 
 
 
In the Loop – (Jan. 22nd and Jan. 19th) Headlines include:     
 

 King Cove Applauds Sec. Zinke for Signing Land Exchange 
 Reasons to Change the Transfer of Limited Entry Salmon Permits 
 GCI Exploring Plans to Lay Fiber Optic Cable from Levelock to Unalaska 
 TelAlaska to Consider Satellite Proposals Supporting Significantly More Broadband 
 PPSF Vice President Reflects on 2017, Shares Plans to Rebuild Port Moller Plant 
 Trident Seafoods Outlines New Direction for False Pass Fish Plant, plans to Rebuild the Akutan 

Plant 
 PenAir CEO Remains Committed to Alaska Following Bankruptcy 
 Grant Aviation Shares Plans to Improve Airline Service, Addresses Community Concerns 
 AEBSD Superintendent Michael Seifert Discusses the Challenges of Flat Funding from the State, 

Maintenance Issues 
 Eastern Aleutian Tribes CEO Discusses EAT’s New Health Programs; Goals for the Future 
 Borough Juneau Lobbyist Mark Hickey Points Picture of State Budget Status, Forecast for Future 
 AEB Administrator Anne Bailey Shares Mission, Progress of Borough Projects 
 AEB Mayor Alvin Osterback Outlines his Priorities for the Borough 

 
 
Miscellaneous Projects: 
 

 Completed Myths vs. Facts document regarding the King Cove land exchange and road. 
It can be found here: http://bit.ly/2Ecnbn0  

 Researched limited entry salmon permits in Washington state to compare it to Alaska’s program. 
Researching past legislation as to why WA’s program was started and why they changed it to two 
alternate operators in addition to the permit holder. 

 Provided free-lance writer with photos for a USA Today article on sailing the ferry through the 
Aleutians. 

 Working on the next In the Loop newsletter. 
 
As always, I’m happy to help get the word out about an event or issue in your community. Please 
call or email me any time with information. ltanis@aeboro.org.  

http://kucb.org/post/newscast-012318
https://www.thecordovatimes.com/2018/01/26/feds-okay-king-cove-road-wildlife-refuge/
http://bit.ly/2Ecnbn0
mailto:ltanis@aeboro.org


 

 

  

  
  

  

LEGISLATIVE REPORT #18-01 
By Mark Hickey, Hickey & Associates – January 28, 2018 

Biennial Budgeting? Use of Permanent Fund Earnings?  
Payroll Tax?  Many Options, Few Answers. 

 

 

The state faces a projected 

budget deficit for FY 2019 of 

$2.5 to $2.7 billion.  Use of 

funds from the Earnings 

Reserve Account (ERA) of the 

Permanent Fund (PF) will be 

required to cover this gap.  

The question is whether to 

enact a structured approach 

or do it with a simple draw 

from the ERA. 

The governor is proposing a 

three-year payroll tax, in part 

to support some additional, 

critical capital spending.  

While some interest may exist 

to consider the proposed 

motor fuel tax increase, there 

may be little appetite in the 

Senate majority to consider a 

broad-based tax. 

Both bodies passed versions of a 

bill last session to restructure the 

Permanent Fund (SB 26).   While 

there is general agreement to 

use a percentage of the five-

year “percent of market value” 

(POMV) average to pay for 

state services and the PF 

dividend, there are major 

differences in the details that 

will have to be resolved in a 

conference committee or 

through new legislation. 

Other major issues include K-

12 education funding, payment 

of PERS & TRS unfunded 

liabilities, and new revenue 

ideas (e.g., fuel taxes; head tax, 

etc.). 

 

Governor Walker is proposing legislation (HB 

283/SB 141) to convert Alaska’s budgeting process 

from annual to biennial.  The two-year budget 

would pass in the first session of a new legislature, 

leaving the second session time to focus on policy 

legislation.  A key argument in favor is to provide 

more certainty and stability for critical services, while 

reducing the negative impact from late budgets. 

 

 

 Biennial Budget; Alaska Economic Recovery Act 
 

 

 

Special Orders 

 

Education Funding 

The governor’s FY 2019 budget proposes flat 
funding for K-12 education funding, and full 
funding of the state’s share for school debt 
reimbursement.  Several new proposals to 
provide early funding of K-12 are in play.  
This includes SB 131 and HB 287, and the 
governor’s biennial budget idea. 

  

Community Assistance 
 

Funding exists in the Community Assis-
tance Fund to provide $20 million for 
community assistance in FY 2019.  The 
governor’s budget provides additional 
funding to increase this amount to $30 
million.  Another $8 million is needed to 
provide the same amount as what was 
received in FY 2017 and FY 2018.  
 

Today marks the 13th day of the 2nd Regular 
Session of the 30th Alaska State Legislature. 

 

Motor Fuel Taxes 
 
Both the House and Senate versions of the 
governor’s proposal to triple the state 
excise taxes on motor fuels remain in the 
respective Finance Committees.   Many 
legislators in both bodies have expressed a 
willingness to pursue some version of an 
increase in the state’s motor fuel taxes. 

 

The governor’s other key initiative is the Alaska 

Economic Recovery Act.  It proposes new capital 

spending of $800 million over three years funded 

from the proceeds of a 1.5% payroll tax (HB 281/SB 

139).  That bill is projected to produce $320 million 

per year, with an annual cap per person of not more 

than $2,200.  More information can be found at 

Alaska Economic Recovery Act. 

 

https://www.omb.alaska.gov/ombfiles/19_budget/PDFs/Alaska_Economic_Recovery_Plan_Overview_12-15-17.pdf


 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

2 

  

                  

 

 

 

 

Check out what your legislators are doing in 
Juneau!  New bills are in BLUE, change in status 

in RED, and passed bills in GREEN. 

HJR 2 by Rauscher 
HJR 7 by Tilton 

SJR 2 - State Affairs 

Proposes a constitutional amendment to impose a 
spending limit of approximately $4 billion. 

HJR 2/7 pending House STA 

SJR 2 pending Senate STA 

HB 111 by House 
Resources 
HB 133 by Gara 

HB 111 amends Alaska’s system of oil & gas tax 
credits to reduce state fiscal impact.  HB 133 
addresses portions of the current oil and gas tax 
regime created by SB 21, but not tax credits. 

HB 111 enacted last year 
HB 133 pending House 
Resources  

HB 115 by House 
Finance 
SB 101 by Olson 

The version passed by the House imposes a state 
income tax (now based on adjusted gross income) 
offset by PFD credit.  SB 101 proposes the income 
tax piece as well. 

Passed House 4/16/17 
Failed Senate 5/12/17 
SB 101 pending Senate L&C 

HB 161 by Rauscher Places an advisory vote on the use of permanent 
fund earnings to finance government before 
qualified voters at the next general election. 

Pending House State Affairs 

HB 192 by Pruitt Proposes an appropriation limit on Unrestricted 
General Fund and creates a new formula for PFD 
calculation and distribution. 

Pending House Finance 

HB 243 by Eastman Requires a statewide advisory vote on the passage 
of an individual income tax. 

Pending House State Affairs 

HB 248 by Eastman Requires statewide advisory vote on the passage 
of an individual income tax, a state sales tax, and 
changes to the calculation of the PF dividend. 

Pending House State Affairs 

 

Summary of State Legislation 
Each report will provide a list of legislative 

measures of interest, divided into five main 

topics:  fiscal plan measures, general 

municipal issues, education measures, fishery 

& resource issues, and energy matters.  

House measures will be described first, 

followed by Senate measures.  Companion 

bills (measures in both bodies) will be listed 

together, with priority given to bills 

sponsored by majority members. Bills that 

passed last year have been removed. 

More information about these measures can 

be found at Alaska State Legislature. 

 

Vervet Monkey, 
Victoria Falls, 
Zambia 

Fiscal Plan Measures 

          

                       Continued on page three 

http://w3.legis.state.ak.us/


 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

3 

 

  

HB 281/SB 139 
by governor 

 

Imposes a tax on net earnings from self-employment 
and wages of 1.5%.  Establishes an Alaska Economic 
Recovery Tax Account in the general fund for capital 
projects. 

Referred to House Finance 
Referred to Senate State Affairs 
and Finance 

HB 282/SB 140 
by governor 

Alaska Economic Recovery Act-$280 million in 
capital spending tied to payroll tax proposal.  
Includes $70 million to DEED Major Maintenance 
Grant Fund program. 

HB 282 referred House FIN 
SB 140 referred Senate FIN 
 

HB 283/SB 141 
by governor 

Biennial Budget Proposal-Proposes to amend the 
current budget process from an annual to a biennial 
budget.  Provides more certainty for AMHS & K-12 
funding, at least for the second year. 

HB 283 referred House STA & 
FIN 
SB 141 referred Senate STA & 
FIN 

SJR 1 by 
Wielechowski 

Proposes a constitutional amendment to guarantee 
Permanent Fund dividends using a POMV method. 

Pending Senate Judiciary 

SJR 7 by 
Dunleavy 

Provides that a tax, a tax increase, or any other 
revenue-producing measure shall not take effect until 
approved by the voters of this state. 

Pending Senate L&C 

SJR 8 by Begich 
HJR 23 by Tuck 

Proposes an amendment to the Alaska Constitution 
that investments made from the principal of the 
Permanent Fund shall adhere to the “prudent 
investor rule”. Enshrines dividend in the constitution. 

SJR 8 pending Senate State 
Affairs 
HJR 23 pending House Finance 

SJR 9 by 
Stedman 

Proposes constitutional amendment for annual 
dividends and support of general services.   Sets 
POMV draw at not less than 2 percent for dividends, 
and not more than 4.5 percent total. 

Referred to Senate State Affairs, 
Judiciary and Finance 

SJR 10 by 
Begich 

Proposes constitutional amendment for annual 
dividends and to support general services.   Sets 
POMV draw at 5%, with 40% of that amount for 
dividends, 40% for services, and 20% for inflation-
proofing. 

Referred to Senate State Affairs, 
Judiciary and Finance 

SB 12 by Bishop Establishes an employment tax on wages and net 
earnings from self-employment.  Permits use of 
proceeds to fund education facilities. 

Pending Senate Labor & 
Commerce 

SB 21 by 
Stedman 

Proposes a new formula to determine the amount of 
the annual Permanent Fund dividend, with a cap on 
use of earnings to fund state services. 

Pending Senate Finance 

           Continued on page four 



 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SB 25/HB 60 by 
governor 

Proposes tripling the excise taxes on motor fuels to be 
phased in over a two-year period.  House TRA CS 
reduces marine fuel tax for commercial fishing and 
delays the second increase by 1 year. 

SB 25 pending Senate Finance  
HB 60 pending House Finance 
 

SB 26/HB 61 by 
governor 

Restructures Permanent Fund by annual transfer of 
up to 5.25% of the five-year POMV average to the 
general fund to pay for state services and the PF 
dividend.  Sets the dividend at $1,000 for next 2 years, 
with similar results expected in future. 

SB 26 passed House 4/12/17 
Senate failed to concur 
Pending conference committee 
HB 61 pending House Finance 

SB 70 by Senate 
Finance 

Restructures Permanent Fund using 5.25% of the 
POMV earnings until FY 2021, then reduces the draw 
to 5%, sets the dividend at $1,000 for 3 years, and 
imposes a statutory spending limit. 

Pending Senate Finance 
Inserted into SB 26 as 
replacement 

SB 84 by 
Dunleavy 
HB 187 by 
Wilson 

Defines the intent of the legislature to use the equal 
draw principle for use of earnings from the 
permanent fund, splitting any draw equally with 
dividend payments. 

SB 84 pending Senate Finance 
HB 187 pending House State 
Affairs 

SB 130 by 
Meyer 

Specifies that no individual income tax or statewide 
general sales tax can be passed by the legislature until 
ratified by voters in an election. 

Referred to Senate STA & FIN 
Scheduled 1/30 

King Penguins, South Georgia Island 

“Apparently finding your family is easier than solving 
Alaska’s fiscal challenges!” 

 



 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

5 

  

HJR 14 by Edgmon Urges the Federal Communications Commission 
to increase Rural Health Care Program budget. 

Passed House 4/5/17 
Pending Senate Rules 

HJR 27 by Kito Proposes constitutional amendment to prohibit a 
legislator from serving more than eight successive 
years, but can be eligible again after two years. 

Referred to House State Affairs, 
Judiciary and Finance 

HB 11 by Kawasaki Allows employers to adopt a retirement incentive 
program (RIP) for both TRS and PERS members 
of a defined benefit plan. 

Pending House State Affairs 

HB 20 by Claman Allows individuals holding elective public office 
in the state to solemnize marriages. 

Pending House Rules 

HB 35 by Gara Establishes a new “Safer Alaska Streets and 
Communities Program” as a supplement to 
Community Assistance.  Requires use of funds for 
police, fire and EMT services or other priorities. 

Pending House C&RA 

HB 37 by Josephson Requires the state to contribute towards PERS for 
a peace officer or firefighter who’s unable to work 
and is receiving workers’ compensation. 

Pending House Finance 

HB 45 by Tarr Creates the Equal Pay and Living Wage Act, 
increasing the minimum wage to $15 and expands 
duties of State Commission for Human Rights.  

Pending House State Affairs 

HB 46 by Tarr Increases in-state preference requirements on a 
municipality purchasing agricultural or fisheries 
products harvested or processed outside the state. 

Pending House Finance 

HB 47 by Foster Provides relief for local PERS contribution by 
municipalities with a population that decreased 
by more than 25 percent between 2000 and 2010. 

Passed House 5/15/17 
Pending Senate State Affairs 

HB 50 by Kito Requires use of most “qualified and suitable” 
provider of architectural, engineering, or land 
surveying services for state-funded contracts. 

Pending House State Affairs 

 

HB 72 by Thompson Establishes procedures on the collection of 
biometric data.  Applies to municipalities. 

Pending House Judiciary 

HB 82 by Kreiss-
Tomkins 

Allows off-highway driver’s licenses for residents 
in any community with no access to a DMV. 

Passed House 4/9/17 
Pending Senate TRA 

HB 83 by Kito 
SB 52 by Egan 

Allows teachers and other public employees a 
choice between a defined benefit pension versus 
the current defined contribution 401K plan. 

HB 83 pending House L&C 
SB 52 pending Senate C&RA 

HB 84 by Kreiss-
Tomkins 

Increases the amount a municipality may exempt 
from property tax to $150,000 of assessed value. 

Pending House C&RA 

HB 91 by Kito Establishes an administrative registration fee for 
registered lobbyists, and imposes a tax of 2.5% on 
income earned from lobbying activities. 

Pending House Finance 

General Municipal Issues 
 

    Continued on page six 



 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

6 

  

HB 116 by Eastman Repeals 1% art in public places requirement for 
contracts entered after effective date. 

Pending House State Affairs 

HB 117 by House 
Transportation 

Provides that the two new Alaska Class Ferries 
and the replacement vessel for the MV 
Tustumena are not subject to 1% art requirement. 

Pending House Transportation 
 

HB 160 by Tilton Replaces current language on the use of enhanced 
911 surcharge revenues.  Redefines what is meant 
by “emergency communications system”. 

Pending House C&RA 

HB 163/SB 82 by 
governor 

 

Authorizes the Dept. of Public Safety to make 
agreements with nonprofit regional corps. and 
federal, tribal and local government agencies to 
provide law enforcement services. 

HB 163 pending House STA 
SB 82 pending Senate C&RA 

HB 175 by Fansler Adds Alaska to the National Popular Vote 
Compact for election of the U.S. President & Vice-
President 

Pending House Judiciary 

HB 185 by Sullivan-
Leonard 

Requires that all regular sessions of the Alaska 
Legislature occur at the Legislative Information 
Office in the Municipality of Anchorage. 

Pending House State Affairs 

HB 205 by Eastman Prohibits a municipality from adopting or 
enforcing an ordinance or policy regarding 
sanctuary jurisdiction. 

Pending House C&RA 

HB 223 by Claman 

 

Prohibits penalties for violations of a municipal 
ordinance greater than what the state requires. 

Pending House Judiciary 

HB 225 Johnston by 
request 

Clarifies that a “nonconsensual common law lien” 
is a lien on real or personal property that is not 
specifically in municipal ordinances. 

Pending House Judiciary 

HB 233 by Tuck 
SB 116 by Coghill 
 

Extends the sunset of numerous education tax 
credits from December 28, 2018 to January 1, 2025, 
and repeals the decrease in dollar value and scope 
scheduled for January 1, 2021. 

HB 233 pending House EDC  
SB 116 pending Senate L&C 
 

HB 236 by Kawasaki Extends the Alaska senior benefits payment 
program from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2022. 

Pending House HSS 

HB 246 by 
Guttenberg 

Establishes a Broadband Development 
Commission to develop a statewide system. 

Pending House State Affairs 

HB 252 by Stutes Allows all municipalities and villages with the 
option to regulate smoking in workplaces and 
public buildings. 

Pending House C&RA 

HB 256 by Eastman Authorizes the state, through the PFD, to accept a 
donation for a public purpose. 

Referred to House L&C, State 
Affairs and Finance 

     Continued on page seven 



 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

7 

  

HB 271 by Claman Similar to SB 63, but allows communities to “opt 
out” of workplace smoking prohibitions. 

Referred to House Judiciary 

HB 294/SB 149 by 
governor 

Doubles surcharges on violations of municipal 
ordinances. 

Both bills referred to respective 
JUD & FIN Cmtes. 

HB 300 by Wool 

 

Prohibits state/municipal enforcement of federal 
marijuana law if inconsistent with state law. 

Referred to House C&RA and 
Judiciary 

SB 8 by Stevens Provides that federally recognized tribal 
governments may also receive contributions 
through the PFD application process. 

Pending Senate State Affairs 
Scheduled 1/30 

SB 18 by Hoffman Provides authority to create an “energy” borough, 
but maintains any existing regional educational 
attendance area (REAA) funded solely by state. 

Pending Senate C&RA 

SB 62 by D. Wilson 
HB 153 by Eastman 

Repeals the certificate of need (CON) program for 
health care facilities.  Defines what is meant by a 
“residential psychiatric treatment center”. 

SB 62 pending Senate L&C  
HB 153 pending House HSS 

SB 63 by Micciche Proposes a comprehensive, statewide ban on 
smoking in workplaces and public places. 

Passed House JUD 1/24, 
scheduled House Rules 1/29 

SB 76 by Micciche Clarifies that only the Alcohol Beverage Control 
Board may authorize certain licenses, permits and 
endorsements. 

Pending Senate L&C 

SB 90 by D. Wilson Prevents the Dept. of Health & Social Services 
from awarding a matching grant to a muni or 
community for the costs of providing essential 
human services. 

Pending Senate C&RA 

SB 97 by MacKinnon Proposes more legislative oversight of decision by 
administration to issue pension obligation bonds. 
Caps allowable amount at $2.5 billion. 

Passed Senate 4/7/17 
Pending House Finance 

SB 107 by Senate 
Finance 

Clarifies funds from the Alaska capital income 
fund are for state facilities preventive or deferred 
maintenance versus “any public purpose”. 

Passed Senate 4/12/17 
Pending House Finance 

SB 113 by Stevens 

 

Changes when the first regular session of a 
legislature convenes, and increases the duration 
of the second regular session from 90 days to 
adjourn within 120 days. 

Pending Senate Finance 



 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

8 

  

HJR 29 by Rauscher Urges Congress to reauthorize the Secure Rural 
Schools and Self-Determination Act of 2000. 

Referred H STA, JUD & FIN 
Scheduled 1/30, 2/1 

HB 26 by Tarr Requires employers to provide breaks and private 
rooms for nursing mothers. 

Pending House Labor & 
Commerce 

HB 30 by Tarr Requires employers to provide 1 hour of paid sick 
leave for every 40 hours worked. 

Pending House Labor & 
Commerce 

HB 34 by Tarr Increases the minimum distance for selling alcohol 
near schools from 20 to 500 feet. 

Pending House C&RA 

HB 52 by Kawasaki 
SB 99 by Begich 

Defines pre-elementary programs within school 
districts, and requires regulation of such programs 
by the Board of Education. 

HB 52 pending House EDU 
SB 99 pending Senate EDU 
SB 99 scheduled 1/31 

HB 64 by 
Drummond 
SB 27 by Dunleavy 

Establishes a new task force on reading proficiency 
and reading instruction, and on the effects of 
dyslexia. 

Both bills pending Senate 
EDU 
 

HB 71/SB 31 by 
governor 

Proposes a two-year freeze on salary increases and 
merit step increases for non-union state and 
University employees. 

HB 71 pending State Affairs 
SB 31 pending Senate Rules 

HB 86 by Claman Removes default of a student loan as a reason to 
deny renewal of occupational license for a 
registered financial broker-dealer. 

HB 86 passed House 3/29/17 
Pending Senate L&C 
Scheduled 1/30 

HB 102 by Kreiss-
Tomkins 
SB 75 by Costello 

Amends existing law relating to “limited teacher 
certificates” by restricting the initial certificate to a 
one-year period. 

HB 102 passed House 
4/5/17, pending Senate L&C, 
scheduled 1/30 
SB 75 pending Senate L&C 

HB 135 by Westlake Amends the school construction grant program to 
allow DEED to extend the time for a district to 
provide the required local match. 

Passed House 4/5/17 
Pending Senate FIN 

HB 146 by Claman Proposes a school tax on earnings and wages, with 
the intent that the proceeds are used to fund K-12 
public education. 

Pending House FIN 

HB 212 by Westlake Adds funding of “major maintenance” projects to 
the REAA & small municipal school district fund. 

Pending House Education 

HB 213 by Parish Amends law relating to investment and use of 
earnings from the public school trust fund to 
generate more annual investment income. 

Pending House Finance 
Scheduled 1/30 
 

HB 221 by 
Drummond 

Authorizes the Commission on Postsecondary 
Education to develop a statewide workforce and 
education-related statistics program. 

Pending House Education 

Education Measures 
 

  

    Continued on page nine 



 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

9 

  

HB 224 by Johnston Establishes a new mechanism to rehire retired 
teachers and allow continued receipt of retirement 
benefits. 

Pending House State Affairs  

HB 287 by Seaton & 
20 others 

Separate K-12 education funding bill by entire 
House majority.  Intended to provide earlier 
funding for FY 2019 needs.  Fully funds BSA. 

Referred to House Finance 
Scheduled 1/30 
 

SB 7 by Stevens 
HB 166 by Parish 

Establishes a museum construction matching grant 
program in Commerce. 

SB 7 pending Senate Finance 
HB 166 pending House FIN 

SB 78 by Bishop Creates an education endowment fund and a PF 
dividend lottery or raffle to help fund K-12 
education. 

Pending House Finance 

SB 87 by 
MacKinnon 

Proposes use of energy efficiency standards and 
standardized building methods and equipment for 
school construction and major maintenance. 

Pending Senate Finance 

SB 96 by Education Proposes several measures including new virtual 
education program, school consolidations and 
funding to pursue health insurance pooling. 

Pending Senate Finance 

SB 102 by Senate 
Finance 

Increases funding for Internet services for school 
districts, with intent to bring 197 additional schools 
up to 25Mbps. 

Pending Senate Rules 

SB 103 by Senate 
Finance 

Establishes the Alaska education innovation grant 
program, providing funding by eliminating the 
Alaska performance scholarship program. 

Pending House Education 

SB 104 by Senate 
Finance 

Provides all school districts with a three-year 
reprieve from updating or renewing curriculum, 
and directs DEED to find new curriculum for math 
and English language arts as a new option. 

Pending Senate Rules 

SB 131 by Stevens Requires governor to submit separate K-12 
education funding appropriation bill by the 
beginning of each session, with passage by the 
legislature required by April 1 of each year. 

Referred Senate EDU & FIN 
Moved by Senate EDU 1/25 
Referred to Senate FIN 
 

SB 159/HB 306 by 
governor 

Provides the Department of Administration with 
ability to change distribution options by regulation 
for the current TRS/PERS defined contribution 
programs. 

SB 159 referred to Senate STA 
& FIN 
HB 306 referred to House 
L&C and FIN 



 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

10 

  

HJR 12 by Tarr Opposes the U.S. Food & Drug Administration’s 
approval of AquaBounty AquAdvantage 
genetically engineered salmon. 

Passed House 
Pending Senate Resources 
Scheduled 1/29 

HCR 8 by House 
Fisheries 
SCR 7 by Stevens 

Expresses support for the Kodiak Seafood and 
Marine Science Center & urges the University to 
maintain it as an important resource in the state. 

HCR 8 pending Senate L&C, 
scheduled 1/30 

SCR 7 pending Senate EDU 

HB 14 by Josephson Increases and broadens scope of permitting 
requirements for a large-scale metallic sulfide 
mine within the watershed of the Bristol Bay 
Fisheries Reserve. 

Pending House Resources 
 

HB 17 by Josephson Establishes a fish and wildlife conservation 
program within the fish and game fund. 

Pending House Resources 

HB 29 by Tarr Prohibits the sale of genetically modified fish or 
fish product in the state. 

Pending House Fisheries 

HB 32 by Tarr Provides guidelines for the labeling of 
genetically engineered food. 

Pending House Resources 

HB 39 by Josephson Strikes existing language for non-residents not 
being required to have a non-resident wolf tag to 
take a wolf. 

Pending House Resources 

HB 40 by Josephson Provides penalties and civil remedies for 
trapping within 200 feet of certain public 
facilities, areas and trails. 

Pending House Resources 

HB 56 by Ortiz 
SB 71 by Stevens 

Increases the amount a borrower may have 
outstanding on certain commercial fishing loans 
from $300,000 to $400,000. 

Both bills pending Senate 
Finance 

HB 63 by Pruitt Transfers several responsibilities from the Dept. 
of Commerce to Revenue, including certain 
agricultural functions.  Establishes an Alaska 
Minerals Commission within Natural Resources. 

Pending House State Affairs 

HB 76 by Ortiz 
SB 95 by Stevens 

Allows hatcheries that artificially propagate 
aquatic plants and shellfish for sale to be an 
eligible applicant for state loans and sets limits. 

Both bills pending Senate 
Finance 

HB 87 by Stutes Provides that a member of the Board of Game or 
Fisheries may deliberate on a matter before the 
board even if they or an immediate family 
member have a personal or financial interest.   
CS removed option to allow members to vote. 

Pending Senate State Affairs 

HB 88 by Stutes Increases the Board of Fisheries from seven 
members to nine members. 

Pending House Fisheries 

  Continued on page eleven 

 

Fishery & Resource Issues 



 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

11 

 

 

 

 

HB 101 by T. Wilson Creates an affirmative defense and an exemption 
from payment of fines for those reporting the 
unlawful taking of certain big game animals. 

Pending House Resources 

HB 128 by Ortiz 
SB 89 by Stevens 

Adds new program to Title 16, authorizing 
nonprofits to engage in shellfish enhancement 
projects with conditions and exemptions. 

Both bills pending Senate 
Finance 

HB 129/SB 60 by 
governor 

Allows for a person to correct a citation for not 
having the appropriate license or tag on their 
person.  Also allows person to produce license in 
electronic form. 

HB 129 scheduled House 
Judiciary 1/29, 1/31 
SB 60 pending Senate Judiciary 

HB 134 by Josephson Proposes at least one member of the Board of 
Game whose main use of game resources is non-
consumptive, and one member who is actively 
engaged in the tourism industry. 

Pending House Rules 

HB 149 by Chenault Provides the Board of Fisheries shall meet on a 
five-year cycle to consider regulatory proposals, 
and defines the general area of Southcentral to 
include Kenai. 

Pending House Fisheries 

HB 154 by Fansler Creates new authority to create state fish and 
game reserves, and establishes the Holitna River 
Basin Hunting, Fishing and Trapping Reserve. 

Pending House Fisheries 

HB 177 by Tarr Establishes the aquatic invasive species response 
fund, and provides ADF&G a broad spectrum of 
methods to try and eliminate any outbreak. 

Pending House Finance 

HB 183 by Talerico Provides for a PFD land sale using a lottery to 
sell parcels of land from the state’s Land 
Disposal Bank. 

Pending House State Affairs 

HB 188 by Kreiss-
Tomkins 

Establishes Regional Fisheries Trusts to retain 
fishing permits and then lease them to Alaska 
fishermen for a limited period. 

Pending House Fisheries 
Scheduled 1/30 

HB 199 by Stutes Known as the “Wild Salmon Legacy Act,” it 
updates Alaska’s fish habitat protection and 
permitting law. 

Pending House Fisheries 

HB 201 by Josephson Authorizes home rule and general law muni’s to 
regulate trapping for the limited purpose of 
preventing injury to persons or property. 

Pending House Rules 

HB 211 by Westlake Specifies that a nonresident must be 
accompanied by a person who is qualified to 
hunt caribou from certain select caribou herds. 

Pending Senate State Affairs 

   Continued on page twelve 



 

 

A bi-weekly report by Mark Hickey 
 

Issue #18-01, January 28, 2018 
 

12 

 

 

 

HB 231 by Governor 
SB 115 by Governor 

Adjusts the salary ranges for the commissioners 
of the Commercial Fisheries Entry Commission 
(CFEC) downward. 

HB 231 pending House 
Fisheries 
SB 115 pending Senate State 
Affairs 

HB 237 by Neuman 

 

Requires the Board of Fisheries to set an “optimal 
escapement goal” for salmon stocks to meet. 

Pending House Fisheries 

HB 260 by Saddler Specifies that proof of sport fishing, hunting or 
trapping licenses, tags or other ID cards may be 
presented in electronic or paper form. 

Referred to House Fisheries, 
Resources and Finance 

HB 263 by Knopp Exempts certain water taxi operators from 
regulation as transportation services by the Big 
Game Commercial Services Board. 

Referred to House 
Transportation & Resources 
Scheduled 2/1 

HB 267 by Edgmon Requires the release of certain records of guided 
hunts and sport fishing activities to munici-
palities for verification of taxes payable. 

Referred to House C&RA & 
Resources, heard 1/25 
Scheduled 1/30 

SB 11 by Bishop Establishes that the taking of antlerless moose is 
prohibited except as authorized by emergency 
order. 

Pending Senate Resources 

SB 64 by Micciche Adopts the Uniform Environmental Covenants 
Act.  Provides for notices of activity and use 
limitation at contaminated sites. 

Pending House L&C 

SB 135 by Micciche Establishes Cook Inlet buy-back program for set 
net entry permits and provides for a vote by 
permit holders whether to be included. 

Referred to Senate Resources & 
Finance 

HJR 18 by Tuck Calls on Congressional delegation to promote 
Alaska as a renewable energy development 
leader. 

Pending House Energy 
 

HB 81 by Kreiss-
Tomkins 

Makes federally recognized tribes and non-profits 
eligible for loans from the Alaska energy 
efficiency revolving loan fund. 

Pending Senate Finance 

HB 173 by Josephson Establishes the Alaska Climate Change Response 
Commission and fund.  Creates a $.01 per barrel 
surcharge on all oil produced on state lands. 

Pending House Resources 

Energy Matters 
 



December 2017 / January 2018 
EAT Monthly Update Page 1 
 

Service 
Passport to Healthy Travel Program: 

4th Quarter Winner:  Colleen Barker 
from Akutan 
 
*Remember to come in for your annual       
preventative screenings. 
 

 
 Adak - Upcoming Services: - March 21 – 28th:  Shonna Wheeler (DHAT)  

 
 Akutan - Upcoming Services: - February 15 – 23rd:  Dr. Michael Costa, Gaby Costa 

(Dental Assistant), and Shonna Wheeler (DHAT) 
 

 Cold Bay - Upcoming Services: - March 23 – 24th:  SCF Dental (I am not sure they are 
scheduling appointments, but I wanted to let you know they are coming through, if an 
emergency happens.) 
 

 False Pass - Upcoming Services: 
 February 26 – 28th:  Rita Kittoe (Public Health Nurse)  
 March 20 – 23rd:  SCF Dental 

 
 King Cove - Upcoming Services:  

 December 21 – February 14th:  Shonna Wheeler (DHAT) 
 January 8th until March 19th :  David Modde (BH Clinician) 
 January 20th – February 13th :  Dr. Michael Costa and Gaby Costa (Dental Assistant) 
 February 24th – March 21st:  Shonna Wheeler (DHAT) 
 March 28th – Health Fair at City Gym 

Eastern Aleutian Tribes 
Press Release 

December 2017 - January 2018 

 
                   Anchorage Office “Ugly Christmas Sweater” winners: 

      Linda Mack (HR Assistant) and Brenda Hammermeister (Purchasing Tech.) 
December 22, 2018  

 



December 2017 / January 2018 
EAT Monthly Update Page 2 
 

 
 Nelson Lagoon - Upcoming Services: - March 24 – 30th:  SCF Dental 

 
 Sand Point - Upcoming Services: 

 January 29 – February 2nd :  Jennifer Harrison (CEO) 
 February 19 – March 2nd :  SCF Dental Team 
 February 15 – 24th :  Edgar Smith (Operations Director) 
 March 19 – April 2nd:  Dr. Michael Costa and Gaby Costa (Dental Assistant) 

 
 Whittier – Notice of Closure: 

 Clinic will be closed for the big move on these days: 
 Closed at Noon on Wednesday, January 31st 
 Closed on Thursday, February 1st 
 Closed on Friday, February 2nd 

 We will re-open in the new building on Monday, February 5th  
 
People 
 Welcome:   

 William Wheeles, IT Technician (Anchorage) started on 
December 18th (See picture on right.) 

 Carol Kirkland, Nurse Practitioner (Sand Point) started 
on January 15th  

 Kyle Cardwell, BH&W Manager (Anchorage and 
traveling 50%) will be starting on February 22nd  

 Dawn Underwood, Nurse Practitioner (King Cove) will 
be starting on February 26th  

 Tony Underwood, Nurse Practitioner (King Cove) will 
be starting on February 26th  
 

 Open Positions: 
 Community Health Aides* – Adak and Nelson Lagoon & recruiting for traveling CHAPs 
 Community Health Aide (CHA)/ CHR* – Akutan and False Pass and recruiting for 

traveling CHAPs 
 Community Wellness Advocate/BHA* (full-time) – Cold Bay, False Pass, King Cove, or 

Nelson Lagoon with regular travel to the other three villages 
 Dental Hygienist 
 Elder Program Manager (RN or LCSW) - Anchorage 
 Behavioral Health Clinician – King Cove  
 Nurse Practitioner (NP)/Physician Assistant (PA) – Adak, Akutan, Cold Bay, and 

recruiting for traveling NP/PA 
 

*Note:  No experience necessary.  Training will be provided. 
 



December 2017 / January 2018 
EAT Monthly Update Page 3 
 

 Caught Ya Caring for December:  - Terri Douglas 
(Nurse Practitioner) - Terri was the first provider I 
worked with when I began working with EAT’s. My 
very first day she was teaching me what equipment 
was had and how to use a majority of it. By the 
second day, she was teaching me how to do 
venipunctures and start I.V.’s (not on patients of 
course). Every time I have worked with her since 
then she has always helped me in times of conflict 
with myself and my abilities. She has sat and 
answered my millions of questions about my 
profession in the medical field and how the 
opportunity for furthering my education is vast and 
accessible. Terri is such a motivational individual 
from the way she interacts with her patients to the 
charm she has that basically just empowers everyone 
she meets to strive for their best and try their hardest.  (See picture on right.) 

 Melinda Johnson (CHAP in Sand Point) - Melinda is always helpful and constantly 
asking if there is something else that she can do any minute that she has any downtime. 
She has been a tremendous help in giving great patient care, whether it’s booking 
appointments and travel or seeing her own patients. It’s a pleasure to have her back in 
clinic and she is a welcome addition to the staff here in Sand Point. 

 Lynn Fuller (CIC in Cold Bay) is front desk, clinic lead, janitor, apartment oversee’er 
for the Cold Bay clinic. She is very detailed and very thorough in whatever task she does. 
She uses the training we give her and takes it to another level, uses anyone and 
everything to complete the task correctly. She keeps ahead of the task curve in Cold Bay, 
where people can come piling in all at once, medevacs happen of spur of the moments, all 
in the while taking the time to register a patient. Her registering of a patient is complete 
and correct, Billing hardly has to correct one for her. She has uncanny nack to stay 
focused till the task is completed correctly. She takes what we train her with, adapts it to 
the clinic style of operations for the Cold Bay site, making sure the outcome of the task 
are what is needed for good patient care, and what is best for Eastern Aleutian Tribes. 

 Amanda Richardson (PA-C in Sand Point/Anchorage) - A young woman needed to be 
seen for a significant health issue on a day the clinic was closed. The individual that 
brought her had driven off after letting her out of the vehicle. The woman was young and 
far from home and had no way to reach the individual that dropped her off. She explained 
her health situation so I had her call 911 on the waiting room phone. Amanda at first said 
it was not an emergency, but did see the individual and established the health issue was 
significant. She did an awesome job calming the young woman and treating the 
significant health issue. 
 

Annual Awards for 2017: 
 We are Respectful – Eula Schofield (CIC in Whittier) 
 We have Integrity – Lorna Osterback (CHR in Sand Point) 



December 2017 / January 2018 
EAT Monthly Update Page 4 
 

 We have Dignity – Eleanore Starr (BH Clinician in Sand Point) 
 We are Caring – Bonita Babcock (CHAP in 

King Cove) 
 We have Empowerment – Brenda 

Hammermeister (Purchasing Tech. in 
Anchorage) 

 We have Innovation – Nellie Roehl (Clinical 
Applications Manager) 

 We have Collaboration – Susan Bailey (RN 
Case Manager in King Cove) 

 Employee of the Year – Marta Hahn (RN 
Patient Navigator in Anchorage) *See picture 
on right. 

 
Caught Ya Caring for January: 

 Troy Brandell (CIC, Sand Point) - During down time he has gone through the front 
office and cleaned out all cabinets, and shelfs and discarded old forms that are no longer 
being used since we started EHR.  He has organized the front office cabinets so items are 
easy to find.  Good job Troy!  

 
Service 
 Medical Highlight – Staff members throughout EAT are participating with the State of 

Alaska on a project to improve blood pressure in our region.  The approach is comprehensive 
and forward-leaning to reduce heart attacks and strokes. 
 

 CHAP Highlight – Currently in the process of adding other labs to all clinics, including a 
point-of-care HIV test that can have a preliminary result within 10 minutes. 

 
 Dental Highlight – The Dental Team has been implementing a denture clinic in Akutan for 

2018, which will take a total of four visits. 
  
 Behavioral Health and Wellness – We continue to advocate for eliminating the legal barrier 

for getting the medication called Suboxone into our PickPoint machines, but while that 
barrier still exists, we were successful in obtaining approval for RASU Pharmacy to send out 
Vivitrol injections which is a medication used to assist in abstinence from alcohol and 
opiate medication.   

 
 Case Management Highlight - Our two Registered Nurses (Marta Hahn and Susan Bailey) 

visited the Elders from our communities that are currently living in long-term care facilities. 
 
 Operations Highlights: 

 Whittier – We are physically in the process of moving to the new clinic.  We 
successfully obtained a small grant from Rasmuson Foundation to help us pay for some 
new equipment. 



December 2017 / January 2018 
EAT Monthly Update Page 5 
 

 
 King Cove –  

 New fire alarm has been installed.   
 The staff members are planning a 

large health fair on Wednesday, 
March 28th in the City Gym with a 
theme of “physical activity”.  GCI is 
sponsoring Nick Hanson the “Eskimo 
Ninja” from the American Ninja 
Warrior Show to attend. 
 

 False Pass – Gearing up to provide additional support and equipment for when the fish 
processing plant expands its workforce this summer.   

 
 Community Health Representatives (CHRs) – The King Cove CHRs are gearing up for 

providing two Elder lunches per week when the community center renovations are 
completed. 

 
Finance 
 Annual Audit completed; EAT continues to be a low-risk auditee.  

Kudos to the Finance Department!  
 Our HRSA grant (25% of EAT’s annual funding) was approved for 

the next three years. 
 Billing Department is moving to Novitas Solutions for Medicare, 

because EAT is eligible for a higher rate per visit for our I.H.S. 
beneficiaries that are also eligible for Medicare. 

 Working with City of Sand Point to complete the 105(l) lease 
requirements, so they can move from the Village-Built Clinic (VBC) 
lease program and we both can receive additional funding for building 
maintenance, janitorial, and utilities. 

 
Growth 
 Together with APIA, we continue to interview applicants for the new Intensive Out-

Patient (IOP) treatment program coordinator.  This will be a shared position hired by APIA, 
but also with an office at EAT’s Anchorage Office.  The delay in finding qualified applicants 
is delaying the start-date of the new IOP program. 
 

 Successful completion of providing physical therapy services for one-week in King Cove 
and one-week in Sand Point in 2017.  We need to do a financial analysis of the pilot project 
to see if we are still breaking even.  If so, then we would like to continue the one-week visits 
to King Cove and Sand Point and expand the project to Cold Bay, False Pass, and Nelson 
Lagoon in 2018. 



Assembly Comments 



Public Comments 



Date & Location of Next 
Meeting 

tanderson
Typewritten Text



Adjournment 

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

TINA ANDERSON
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text

tanderson
Typewritten Text


	Aleutians East Borough Assembly Meeting
	Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
	Adoption of Agenda  
	February 8, 2018 Agenda

	Community Roll Call & Public Comment on Agenda Items
	Minutes 
	January 11, 2018 Assembly Minutes

	Financial Report
	January Financial Report

	Investment Report
	December Investment

	Consent Agenda
	Agenda Statement-Ordinance 18-06.
	Introduction Ordinance 18-06, Records Management.

	Ordinance 18-07 tideland lease for False Pass Seafoods to assume tidelands lease between Bering Pacific Seafoods, LLC and AEB.
	Exhibit A. Tidelands Lease.
	Dock Tideland Lease Assignment, Assumption and Consent Agreement.

	Ordinance 18-08, tidelands lease for False Pass Seafoods, LLC for the outfall line to be used to contract a False Pass Fish processing facility.
	Appendix A
	Tidelands Lease

	Agenda Statement-Res. 18-24.
	Resolution 18-24, Amending Section 9.05 of the AEB Employee Handbook..
	Exhibit A.

	Agenda Statement, Resolution 18-25.
	Resolution 18-25, authorizing a salary increase for the Borough Clerk.

	Agenda Statement-Resolution 18-26.
	ANTHC letter
	Deed of Easement for Public Utility Easement.
	Resolution 18-26, authorizing a deed of easement to the City of Akutan for Akutan raw water transmission line project..

	Agenda Statement-Resolution 18-27. 
	Charts DRAFT
	Resolution 18-27, approving the projects and initiatives identified on the Borough Strategic Plan.

	Resolution 18-28, requesting the Alaska Legislature prioritize funding for the continued services of the Alaska Marine Highway System.
	Public Hearings
	Agenda Statement-Ordinance 18-04.
	Public Hearing Ordinance 18-04 amending Title 40, Chapter 40.05, and adding new section 40.05.105.

	Agenda Statement-Ordinance 18-05.
	FY18 AEB Capital Improvement Projects List.
	Public Hearing Ordinance 18-05, amending FY18 budget.
	FY18 amendment spreadsheets
	Fund 22 Spreadsheet.
	FY18 Capital Project Funding PFE Allocation.


	Ordinances
	Resolutions
	Old Business None
	New Business None
	Reports and Updates
	Administrator's Report 
	Assistant Administrator Report
	Resource Director Report
	AEB Request for Sideboards to Jones Act Waiver.

	Communications Director Report
	AEB Lobbyist, Hickey Report.
	Eastern Aleutian Tribes Report.

	Assembly Comments
	Public Comments
	Next Meeting Date & Place 
	Adjournment



